Public Document Pack

C'l";ﬁﬂﬂ .
T i Y Filint
i " Contact Officer:
!ilulgxgbul re Sharon Thomas 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: CliIr Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham, Patrick Heesom,
Andrew Holgate, Dave Hughes, Paul Johnson, Richard Jones, Mike Lowe,
Hilary McGuill, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect and Arnold Woolley

+ 1 Labour vacancy

15 September 2017
Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee which will be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 21st September, 2017 in the
Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.
3  MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12)

Purpose: To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on
13 July 2017.

4  COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT (THIS MEETING
IS DESIGNATED AS A STATUTORY CRIME & DISORDER SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE MEETING) (Pages 13 - 30)

Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Planning and Public
Protection

Purpose: To provide Members with assurance and an overview of the
Community Safety Partnership’s activities and progress in
2016/17.



ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR
WALES (Pages 31 - 60)

Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and
Assets

Purpose: To be assured by the report of the Wales Audit Office and
support the executive response.

WALES AUDIT OFFICE STUDY REPORTS (Pages 61 - 94)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: To be assured by the reports of the Wales Audit Office and
support the executive response.

COUNCIL PLAN 2017 - 23 (Pages 95 - 184)

Report of Chief Executive - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

Purpose: The Committee endorses and supports:
i) the considerations of Overview and Scrutiny committees to
inform the development of the final Council Plan 2017-23
ii) the overall content of the Council Plan and ‘How we
measure achievement * document for the ‘Serving Council’
priority
i) the proposed targets for the national performance indicators

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY ACTION PLAN (Pages 185 - 200)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management and Assets

Purpose: To consider the Procurement Strategy Action Plan

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2017/18 (MONTH 4) AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME MONITORING (MONTH 4) (Pages 201 - 264)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Purpose: The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) and the Month
4 (end of July) capital programme information for 2017/18.



10

11

WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT Q1 2017/18 (Pages 265 - 298)

Report of Senior Manager, Human Resources & Organisational Development
- Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Purpose: To consider the Workforce Information Report for Quarter 1 of
2017/18.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 299 - 306)

Report of Democratic Services Manager

Purpose: To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate
Resources

Yours sincerely

Qo]

Robert Robins
Democratic Services Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
13 JULY 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room,
County Hall, Mold on Thursday, 13 July 2017

PRESENT: Councillor Clive Carver (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham,
Patrick Heesom, Andrew Holgate, Paul Johnson, Richard Jones, Mike Lowe,
Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect and Arnold Woolley

APOLOGY: Councillor Hilary McGuill

SUBSTITUTE: Councillor David Wisinger (for Ron Hampson)

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Bernie Attridge

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Aaron Shotton, Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance; Councillor Billy Mullin, Cabinet Member for Corporate Management;
Chief Executive; Corporate Finance Manager; and Corporate Business &
Communications Executive Officer

IN ATTENDANCE: Democratic Services Manager and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of 15 June 2017 were submitted.
RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

COUNCIL PLAN 2017-23

Councillor Aaron Shotton introduced the draft Council Plan 2017-23
which had been reviewed and refreshed to reflect the Council’s key priorities
for the five year term of the new administration. It was a statutory duty for the
Council to adopt the Plan (which replaced the former Improvement Plan) and
its importance in identifying priorities and objectives, particularly during times
of austerity, was recognised.

In correcting the purpose of the report shown on the agenda, the Chief

Executive sought comments to feedback to Cabinet so that each Overview &
Scrutiny committee could consider their respective areas. Responses would

1
Page 5



be reported back to this Committee and Cabinet in September 2017 to help
inform the final Plan prior to seeking Council approval. The previous themes
had been consolidated into six priorities for delivery over the next five years,
with particular focus on the first year.

The Corporate Business and Communications Executive Officer said
that the general structure of the former plan had been retained but that national
policy issues may affect the delivery of some outcomes. The table within the
Plan indicated the desired impact of each priority and sub-priority which linked
to the Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and commitment to
the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The management of
risks was also set out for each section. Details on target performance and
milestones would be shared in the second part ‘How we measure achievement’
document to be shared at a later stage.

Councillor Billy Mullin spoke about the Council’s record on performance
as recognised by the Wales Audit Office, and the intention to build on those
achievements.

Councillor Richard Jones welcomed the ongoing improvements in the
structure of the Plan. His concerns were on the content which he said lacked
details on how the priorities would be measured for their achievement. He
reflected on previous Plans which he felt had focussed on the Deeside area
and sought assurance that spend on current priorities would be spread
equitably across the county.

The Chief Executive said that some issues were county-wide but gave
examples of others specifically targeted according to areas of need or
dependent on funding. Such geographical-based schemes and their benefits
to wider areas would be referenced in the second part of the document.

Councillor Aaron Shotton explained that reference to Deeside had been
due to regional and national focus on the economic importance of the growth
of the Deeside Enterprise Zone from which the whole of Flintshire would benefit.
He also referred to the extension of the Council house building programme to
other parts of the county.

Whilst Councillor Jones acknowledged Deeside as the employment
centre of the county with benefits to wider areas, he felt it was important that
other communities should receive equal funding, particularly to regenerate town
centres.

The importance of tourism was highlighted by Councillor Vicky Perfect
to help boost the local economy.

Councillor Arnold Woolley suggested alternatives to the word ‘impact’
which had been repetitively used in the Plan. He raised queries on the link
between social housing and the Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH) and
the need to define poverty to target support appropriately. He suggested other
priority areas such as the safeguarding of young people against drug abuse;

2
Page 6



education training to meet required skills; tackling environmental crime such as
dog fouling; and private sector rented housing.

In response, Councillor Aaron Shotton said that more specific reference
could be made to tourism which had been recognised under the ‘Green Council’
priority. He said there were clear benchmarks on poverty and that a balanced
view was needed on priority areas as opposed to the Council’s daily business.
The background to some of the topics suggested formed part of the Welsh
Government framework, including other issues such as reviewing Council Tax
policy on Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO). Whilst this stage of the
document set out the aims of priorities, the second part on measuring
achievement would include the level of detail sought by Members.

The Chief Executive explained that the priorities were based on long-
term impacts with supporting strategies which would be considered in the
follow-up document by each Overview & Scrutiny committee. Many of the other
priority areas suggested were society issues on which the Council could only
have a degree of influence.

Whilst supporting the aims of the priorities, Councillor Patrick Heesom
felt unable to support the Plan in its current form as it did not demonstrate a
mechanism for achieving outcomes.

The Corporate Business and Communications Executive Officer
reiterated that the second part of the document would feature measures and
milestones on which progress would be scrutinised, however the draft Plan did
include details on how achievement would be measured.

In response to Councillor Heesom’s concerns on the need for more
clarity, the Chief Executive reminded Members that the draft Plan built upon the
previous Improvement Plan where long-established mechanisms, supported by
strategies, had helped to drive performance.

Councillor Paul Johnson said that the document should include
reference to Brexit as a potentially significant risk to outcomes on the local
economy over the next five years. The Chief Executive suggested that
elements on the local economy in the Plan could be strengthened and he spoke
about regional discussions currently taking place.

Following a query by Councillor Holgate on Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP), it was acknowledged that this should be included in the glossary along
with any other abbreviations. Members emphasised the need for the document
to be meaningful and suggested that links be used to help explain phrases.

Councillor David Wisinger suggested consultation with Public Health
Wales on planning applications for attic bedsit conversions to prevent
overcrowding and would take this up with Planning. He agreed with the point
made about reviewing Council Tax in HMOs.

3
Page 7



10.

Councillor Woolley said that the front of the document should refer to
work on the priorities being ‘in conjunction with statutory or essential partners’.
The Chief Executive said that this could be clarified in addition to the handshake
symbol.

Councillor Jones reiterated his concerns on the content of the current
document and was unable to support the full recommendation on that basis.

The Chief Executive confirmed that Members’ comments on the content
of the draft Plan would be considered by Cabinet.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee informs the Cabinet that it supports the structure,
format and content of the ‘public’ version of the Council (Improvement)
Plan for 2017-23 which will be submitted to Council for approval in due
course; and

(b)  That, where Members expressed concerns, these will be considered by
the officers.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2016/17 (OUTTURN) AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME MONITORING (OUTTURN)

The Corporate Finance Manager presented a report on the revenue
budget monitoring 2016/17 (outturn) for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) and the Capital Programme 2016/17 (outturn), prior
to consideration by Cabinet.

Revenue Budget Monitoring

The final position (subject to audit) reported a net in-year operating
deficit of £0.846m. The overall outturn included a positive impact from the
change in Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) accounting policy which
effectively eliminated the operating deficit with net spend being £2.039m lower
than budget. The report superseded the month 12 position previously reported
to Cabinet (appended as a link to the documents). A brief overview was given
on the main movements for the year with details of significant movements since
month 12. An update was also given on contingency reserves and the
programme of efficiencies on which an improvement was shown on the
previous year. The main changes within earmarked reserves included a
significant reduction in the Single Status Reserve due to the continuing draw
down of funding to meet approved costs.

On the HRA, the net in-year expenditure was £0.018m lower than
budget, with a closing balance of £1.116m representing 3.5% of total
expenditure (above the minimum 3% recommended level).

During explanation on the MRP accounting policy change, attention was
drawn to the Council report of 6 December 2016.

4
Page 8



11.

Councillor Richard Jones questioned the interpretation of wording on the
outcome of the position on Revenue Support Grant (RSG) funding. The Chief
Executive clarified the strong stance taken by Flintshire as part of collective
local government lobbying WG for a fairer funding settlement which had
resulted in a more favourable outcome than expected.

In response to a query by Councillor Haydn Bateman, officers explained
about the approach to building up Winter Maintenance reserves and the use of
Single Status reserves.

Following a request by Councillor Patrick Heesom, the Corporate
Finance Manager agreed to provide a breakdown of the proportion of
contingency reserves used to meet the impact of community asset transfers.

Capital Programme

A table showing changes to the programme during 2016/17 indicated a
revised budget of £65.968m. Since the last quarter, there was a net increase
in the programme total of £5.918m as detailed in sections 1.06-1.08. The total
amount to be carried forward into 2017/18 was £3.589m which was a significant
reduction on the previous year. An update on the funding of 2016/17 approved
schemes reported the availability of £5.066m which was earmarked to fund
future capital schemes.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Revenue Budget Monitoring (outturn) report for 2016/17 be
accepted;

(b)  That the Capital Programme (outturn) report for 2016/17 be accepted;
and

(c)  The Committee confirmed that there are no specific issues to be brought
to the attention of the Cabinet.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2017/18 (INTERIM)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced a report on the revenue
budget monitoring interim position for 2017/18 prior to consideration by Cabinet.
He gave a reminder that during the early part of the year, resources were
dedicated to the closure of the accounts for 2016/17 to comply with the statutory
deadline. The initial assessment at this early stage was that expenditure was
projected to be £0.978m higher than budget, however this did not reflect a
complete projected outturn position which would be reported in September.
During an update on the monitoring of risks and other emerging risks, reference
was made to the additional funding allocations from Welsh Government on
social care. No significant variances were reported on the Housing Revenue
Account.

5
Page 9



12.

The Corporate Finance Manager agreed to share information on the
pressures arising from gas engine income requested by Councillor Haydn
Bateman.

In response to comments from Councillor Richard Jones, the Chief
Executive provided clarification on the Intermediate Care Fund grant and the
withdrawal of payment software portal subscriptions.

The Chairman requested more details on the efficiency shortfall in car
parking permits at County Hall and was told that figures would be shared.
Councillor Jones suggested that town centre traders could also be offered the
reduced cost of car parking permits. The Chief Executive said that a controlled
system was now in place for parking at County Hall and that arrangements
would be subject to further review.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (interim) report be
accepted; and

(b)  The Committee confirmed that there are no specific issues to be brought
to the attention of the Cabinet.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY UPDATE

The Chief Executive and Corporate Finance Manager introduced the
report on the revised financial forecast for 2018/19 as part of the refresh of the
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).

A presentation was delivered covering the following areas:

Financial Forecast 2018/19

Main Pressures

Risks and Potential Impacts from 2017/18
National Position

National Case Making

Next Steps

The revised forecast showed a projected gap of £11.7m for 2017/18 prior
to any modelling on increased Council Tax levels. The forecast was based on
a range of information including national, local and workforce pressures. Whilst
some issues could be predicted with certainty, others were outside the control
of the Council. The two most significant factors were the local government
financial settlement for 2017/18 and Council Tax levels.

Councillor Aaron Shotton highlighted the importance of councils in
Wales continuing to collectively lobby the Welsh Government (WG) for fairer
funding and for Flintshire to make its case amongst those in a low funded
position. Reasonable assumptions had been made on grant funding and

6
Page 10



13.

14.

reference was made to the possibility of ‘hidden’ funding cuts from the UK
Government which could affect Wales.

In response to a question from Councillor Richard Jones, the Chief
Executive said that work would continue on developing the MTFS, however it
was inevitable that the forecasted budget gap could not be met without affecting
front-line services. This had been widely acknowledged during the last budget
consultation process where Overview & Scrutiny committees had considered
options for their respective areas.

RESOLVED:

That, having considered the report, the Committee informs the Cabinet that it
supports the framework for the revision of the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2016/17 OUTTURN REPORT

The Chief Executive introduced the update report to consider progress
towards the delivery of the impacts set out in the 2016/17 Improvement Plan,
focussing on the areas of under-performance relevant to the Committee at year
end.

The Corporate Business & Communications Executive Officer reported
good progress on actions and performance against targets, with explanation
given on the only red area on percentage of employee turnover. The maijority
of identified risks were moderate or minor, and the only red risk area was on
the scale of the financial challenge.

Councillor Richard Jones raised an issue on consistency of outcome
ratings when comparing two actions. It was explained that the first action
involved the newly introduced Contract Procedure Rules on which community
benefits would be achieved over the longer term. Although progress had been
made on the Armed Forces Covenant, outcomes had not yet achieved 100%
at this stage. Councillor Jones also pointed out that the Public Space Protection
Order (PSPO) in Buckley had not been recognised within that Key Performance
Indicator. On a request for commentary on the percentage of employee
turnover, a brief update was given and would be further explained in the next
Workforce Information update. On the percentage of high-risk repeat victims
of domestic abuse referred to the Flintshire Multi-Agency Risk Assessment
Conference (MARAC), officers would establish whether the target of 28 was set
locally or nationally as this was higher than the previous year.

RESOLVED:
That the Improvement Plan 2016/17 outturn report be received.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The following actions were agreed:

7
Page 11



15.

e The Council Plan 2017-23 to be included for September 2017.

e Consultation on the Electoral Reform White Paper (scheduled for
September 2017) was due to open at the end of the month.

e The Regional Emergency Planning Manager to be invited in
October 2017 to present his annual report.

¢ A representative from the Fire & Rescue Authority had been invited
in November 2017 for the budget consultation item.

e Although unavailable for the meeting in December 2017, the Police
& Crime Commissioner would be invited to attend on another date
as part of the annual arrangement with the Committee.

e Members of the Committee were encouraged to attend the
forthcoming ‘Aligning the Levers of Change’ workshop.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Forward Work Programme as submitted, be approved with
amendments; and

(b)  That the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the
Chairman, be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between
meetings, should this be necessary.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press and public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10am and ended at 12.25pm)

Chairman

8
Page 12



Agenda Item 4

(" Sir y Fflint
-y . .
Flintshire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday, 21 September 2017
Report Subject Community Safety Partnership Annual Report
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Public Protection
Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To provide Members with an overview of the Community Safety Partnership’s
activities and progress. The Committee fulfils the role of the Statutory Crime &
Disorder Scrutiny Committee for Flintshire so is the recipient of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To note and support the contents of the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | BACKGROUND OF THE FLINTSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFEY
PARTNERSHIP

1.01 | The Flintshire Community Safety Partnership is required to formally report
to this Committee on an annual basis to provide an overview of activities
undertaken over the previous twelve months. This ensures that the
Partnership meets its obligations under sections 19 and 20 of the Police &
Criminal Justice Act 2006.

1.02 | Flintshire County Council has g statutgry duty under the Crime and Disorder
Fage 1o




Act 1998, and the subsequent amendments by the Police and Justice Act
2006, to work in partnership with the police, health service, probation and
fire service as a community safety agenda partnership.

1.03

There has been a partnership in existence in Flintshire since 1999. To
support the partnership, the County is served by a small team of local
authority and police officers who work on shared priorities including
domestic abuse, substance misuse and anti-social behaviour, along with the
Neighbourhood Wardens.

1.04

In recent years the drive to rationalise the cost and bureaucracy of
partnerships has led to significant changes in the Flintshire Community
Safety Partnership’s governance structure. In April 2013 the Partnership
merged with the Local Service Board (which has since become the Public
Service Board). This has had minimal impact on the operational delivery
structure; however at a strategic level it has meant a greater consistency of
approach. The statutory duties of the Community Safety Partnership
continue to be fulfilled.

1.05

Considerable progress has also been made in the way community safety
partnerships across the region have worked together. The establishment of
the North Wales Safer Communities Board (SCB) in July 2012 has been the
most significant development. This Board represents a partnership between
all the statutory authorities across the region (as defined by the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998), along with the voluntary sector. The overall aim of the
Board is to introduce greater consistency in this area of work, whilst allowing
opportunities to share expertise and work more effectively and efficiently.

1.06

The Flintshire Community Safety Partnership has set up a more specialist
and operational People Are Safe Board to oversee partnership work. The
Board has a detailed Plan with priorities and outcomes supported by
performance measures with regular reporting.

1.07

The Plan reflects the recommendations contained within the regional
Strategic Assessment, and also takes into account the Police and Crime
Plan and the work of the Substance Misuse Area Planning Board. The SCB
at a regional level concentrates on common regional issues such as counter
terrorism, re-offending, and hidden crimes (as identified in the Strategic
Assessment). A copy of the latest SCB Plan accompanies this report.

1.08

The Flintshire People are Safe Board has the following priorities outlined
below, and reports to both the PSB and SCB at regular intervals.

1. Prevent Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour

Reduce victim based crime

Reduce ASB

Increase the reporting of Hate Crime

Support vulnerable people to prevent them becoming victims of crime
Reduce repeat incidents of victim based crime and ASB for victims and
perpetrators

= Work with MARAC to reduce the levels of repeat high risk victims of
Domestic Abuse

» Deal effectively with higE risk cgqu of Domestic Abuse.
Zf



» Increase the confidence in reporting Domestic Abuse and Sexual
Violence

* Increase awareness amongst young people of domestic abuse and
sexual violence

2. Reduce harm and the risk of harm
= Reduce substance misuse
» Reduce drug and alcohol use
=  Community Tension Monitoring
3. Deliver an Effective Response
» Reduce reoffending

» Understand and address migration impacts on the community safety
agenda.

1.09 | Some of the key activities that have been identified to support these
priorities are as follows.

e Work with the PCC'’s ‘victim hub’ to ensure an enhanced service to
victims of crime.

¢ Maintain the multi-agency intelligence led approach to tackle ASB
through monthly tasking and ad hoc professionals meetings.

e Raise awareness of violence against women by supporting the
International White Ribbon Campaign on a local and regional level.

¢ Implementation of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse
and Sexual Violence (Wales) National Training Framework.

e Establish a virtual network to disseminate information and advice on
substance misuse appropriately.

e Look at how OWL can use other forms of social media to reach the
wider community.

e Implementation of recommendations emerging from the Harm
Reduction and Drug Poisoning Review Group.

¢ Implementation of alcohol brief intervention training as per the
alcohol demand reduction work stream.

e Target repeat offenders (adults) via an Integrated Offender
Management (IOM) process. Identifying those who cause the most
harm (prolific offenders) and addressing their re-offending behaviour.

e Targeting young offenders to reduce offending and re-offending by
implementing the Flintshire Youth Justice Service Plan.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | None as a result of this report.
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

Page 15




3.01

None as a result of this report.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

None as a result of this report.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan, 2017-2021.

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

Contact Officer: Sian Jones, Community and Business Protection Manager
Telephone: 01352 702132
E-mail: sian-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference)

A MARAC, or multi-agency risk assessment conference, is a meeting where
information is shared on the highest risk domestic abuse cases between
representatives of local police, probation, health, child protection, housing
practitioners, Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs) and other
specialists from the statutory and voluntary sectors.

After sharing all relevant information about a victim, representatives discuss
options for increasing safety for the victim and turn these options into a co-
ordinated action plan. The primary focus of the MARAC is to safeguard the
adult victim.

7.02

National Training Framework

The National Training Framework for violence against women, domestic
abuse and sexual violence outlines the Welsh Government's requirements
for training on these subjects across the public service and specialist third
sector.

The Framework is made up of six levels. Officers employed by the
‘responsible authorities’ (as defined by statute) will be required to undertake
training in relation to domestic abuse and sexual violence.

7.03

Public Services Board (PSB)

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 established
statutory PSBs, which replaces the voluntary Local Service Boards in each
local authority area. The role of the board is to:

Page 16




assess the state of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being in its area

set objectives that are designed to maximise the PSBs contribution
to the well-being goals.

Each PSB must prepare and publish a plan setting out its objectives and the
steps it will take to meet them. This is called a Local Well-being Plan. It must

state:

why the PSB feels their objectives will contribute within their local
area to achieving the well-being goals

how it has had regard to the assessment of Local Well-being in
setting its objectives and steps to take.

7.04

Safer Communities Board (SCB)

The aim of the Safer Communities Board (SCB) is to provide strategic
direction for the exercise of the Community Safety and Youth Justice
functions across the region. The SCB promotes consistency of policy
objectives, and the shared use of expertise and resources across the region.

The objectives of the SCB include:-

Reducing bureaucracy and formality through streamlining strategic
and operational functions.

Identifying shared and/or common priorities

Acting as a lobbying group to influence the Welsh Government,
Home Office and Local Policing Body.

Establishing a common and consistent framework for strategic,
tactical and operational delivery at regional, sub-regional and local
levels.

Facilitating and encouraging regional working in the interests of
public value.

Providing a more efficient and consistent service in contributing to reducing
crime and disorder and improving the criminal justice services in North
Wales.

Page 17




This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR SIR h K TrGseoe S eoe e

 YNYS MON

LI OF ANGLESEY CoNWY
COUNTY COUNCIL CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

wca
Third sector C VC

support Wales

North Wales Safer

W Communities Board
wrexham (NWSCB) Plan,

BWRDEISTREF SIROL

wrecsam 2017 - 2021

6T obed

Gwasanaeth Prawf
. Cenedlaethol
National Probation
Service

Q\ G Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol
C

™ Betsi Cadwaladr

RU
S University Health Board Gwasanaeth Tan ac Achub
WALES Fire and Rescue Service

Cwmni Adsefydiu Cymunedol

Community Rehabilitation Company

) 4

Cymru
Wales

CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighsbire

COUNTY COUNCIL

CYNGOR

i Y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



http://www.north-wales.police.uk/
http://www.wcva.org.uk/members-partners/county-voluntary-councils

0z abed

Foreword
The aim of the North Wales Safer Communities Board is to make North Wales a safe place.
The role of the Safer Communities Board members is to work in partnership to achieve that aim.

In developing this plan, we have worked alongside the Police and Crime Commissioner to ensure that the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
strategic outcomes are embedded within the plan.

Our plan has clear priorities which have been informed by a North Wales strategic assessment undertaken in November 2016 and the local
community safety partnerships across the 6 counties of North Wales. It is vital that we maintain the links with local communities to enable us
to understand and respond differently to crime and anti-social behaviour, which is often not confined to administrative boundaries. By learning
from each other’s experiences, identifying good practice and understanding what works and doesn’t work we are better able to deliver
successful outcomes and remove obstacles.

Clir Hugh Jones JP
Chair, North Wales Safer Communities Board



T¢ obed

Contents

What is the North Wales Safer Communities Board?

4
Introduction to our plan 5
Our shared values 5
The statutory framework 5
What does the evidence tell us? 6
The North Wales strategic assessment 5
The North Wales Safer Communities Board focus 3

The six North Wales Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP) focus

12




z¢ obed

What is the North Wales Safer Communities Board?

The North Wales Safer Communities Board was established in July 2012 and our work is already influencing how the region’s public
organisations strategically tackle crime and disorder.

We are a partnership of senior leaders and elected members from North Wales’ public organisations, established to tackle crime and disorder1.
The following organisations are represented:

= Anglesey County Council

= Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board

=  Community Rehabilitation Company

=  Conwy County Borough Council

=  Cyngor Gwynedd

= Denbighshire County Council

=  Flintshire County Council

=  Medrwn Mon (on behalf of Welsh Council for Voluntary Action)
= National Probation Service

= North Wales Fire and Rescue Service

= North Wales Police

= Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
=  Welsh Government

=  Wrexham County Borough Council

1 As defined by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998



ez abed

Introduction to our North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan

This North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan outlines how we will focus our work over the next 4 years, and specifically the next 12 months,
by working in partnership to prevent and tackle crime and disorder. It sets out how the Board has prioritised its areas of work, and summarises
the main outcomes, priorities, and indicators.

This is the delivery document for the Police and Crime Plan and sets out: (1) what the Board will do and; (2) what the Board expects local
Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) to focus on. These are all based on the need identified in the ‘strategic assessment’, which is the
evidence base for the Police and Crime Plan. However it should be noted that the statutory responsibilities to discharge the relevant sections of
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 continue to sit with local CSPs.

Our shared values

1. Working together to keep people safe by enabling the best services we can
2. Working collectively to put our communities first

3. Supporting the most vulnerable in our communities

4. Seeking to minimise the effects of reducing resources on front line services
5. Developing new ways of working in partnership

6. Delivering on our promises

The Statutory Framework

Section 6 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, requires responsible
authorities to work in partnership to implement strategies that:

= Reduce crime and disorder in the area
=  Combat substance misuse in the area; and
= Reduce reoffending

In drawing up those strategies, responsible authorities are required by the 2011 Act to have regard to the police and crime objectives of the
Police and Crime Commissioner for North Wales.



7z abed

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s objectives are:

. Domestic abuse

Ll Modern slavery

. Organised crime

. Sexual abuse (including Child Sexual Exploitation, CSE)
] Delivering safer neighbourhoods

What does the evidence tell us?

In working together we use evidence from “strategic needs assessments” to provide a needs basis in order to determine where we should
focus our finite resources. The same strategic needs assessments provide the evidential basis for the Police and Crime Plan.

Key Two

Evidence Plan Delivery Strands

Strategic

Needs =)

Assessments




Gz abed

The Strategic Needs Assessment

A strategic needs assessment was undertaken by North Wales Police in November 2016 and refreshed in April 2017 with the objective of
evaluating crime and disorder issues impacting on the communities of North Wales.

A national risk assessment matrix was used to assess areas of crime and disorder and inform priority setting.

The matrix assesses each area by identifying:

e The nature and degree of the harm.

e The Likelihood of the Impact occurring.

e The level of Risk posed after mitigation has been considered (mitigation is the capacity and capability of organisations to manage the
issue).

The areas that were identified as high risk priorities for North Wales were:

e Child Sexual Exploitation

e Domestic Abuse

e Modern Day Slavery

e Organised Crime and the supply of illegal drugs



9z abed

The North Wales Safer Communities Board focus

Based on the information in the North Wales strategic assessment, the Police and Crime Commissioners Plan and the local Community Safety
Partnership knowledge the table below outlines the work that the NW SCB will oversee:

NWSCB Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer
Focus
1 PCC Objective: Domestic Violence
1.1 | Regionalised DA service | ® Work with Welsh = Regional Domestic * Increase the confidence Colin Everett
established and Government and the Abuse service (strategic of victims to report
embedded across North North Wales regional DAC and operational)in place domestic abuse and
Wales Manager to implement for April 2018 agreed by sexual violence
the Violence Against all partners.
Women, Domestic Abuse | = Clarity of local and
and Sexual Violence regional roles agreed
(Wales) Act 2015 and communicated
PCC Objective: Modern Slavery
2.1 | Develop our servicesto | = Develop a multi-agency = |ncreased number of ® |ncreased awareness of Annwen Morgan
better understand and approach to awareness referrals are received by modern slavery
act against Modern raising, victim care, the relevant agencies = Protection of high risk
Slavery prevention and victims of modern
investigation slavery
PCC Objective: Organised Crime
3.1 | Technology enabled = Guidance to safeguard ® Providing education and | * Protect the most Mark Polin

crime

against technology
enabled crime is produced

information on the
prevention of cyber
crime

= NWSCB partners have a
safe environment to
share information

vulnerable from cyber
crime

= Anincreased awareness
of technology enabled
crime




/¢ abed

NWSCB Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer
Focus
3.2 | Drugs and Alcohol = Support and hold to = Delivering on the APB’s | = Reduce the impact of Lee Robinson
account the APB to commissioning priorities substance misuse on
implement the WG our communities
substance misuse strategy
3.3 | Counter Terrorism = Agree guidance on how = CONTEST Board and = Reduce the risk of a Iwan Davies
the Counter Terrorism and Channel Panels terrorist attack in the
Security Act 2015 will be operating effectively region
delivered = Anincrease in the = Vulnerable people are
number of front line safeguarded from the
staff in NWSCB partners involvement in violent
agencies who have been extremism
appropriately trained in
Prevent
3.4 | Drug supply = Tackle the OCGs that = Set up multi agency = Better sharing of Mark Polin
supply Class A drugs OCG panels intelligence re OCGs
across NWSCB partners.
= Areduction in the
= Develop our = Share experiences of number of NSP users Lee Robinson / Vicky
understanding of NPS Wrexham town centre and a better public Jones
via the town centre understanding of the
action plan. dangers of NPS.
4 PCC Objective: Sexual Abuse (including Child Sexual Exploitation, CSE)
4.1 | Child Sexual Exploitation | = Share intelligence

amongst partners to
understand the risks

= |mplementation of a
prevention strategy
monitored through NW
Safeguarding Board

= Protection of young
people from CSE

= To deter and breakup
perpetrator networks

Mark Polin




gz abed

NWSCB Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer
Focus
PCC Objective: Delivering Safer Neighbourhoods

5.1 | Community Tension = Embed effective Local partnerships agree Community tensions are Annwen Morgan
Monitoring partnership community arrangements for identified and
tension monitoring community tension addressed at an early
processes monitoring stage
Local Authorities
maintain a strategic
overview of potential
community tensions to
inform local decision
making
5.2 | Hate Crime = Embed “Tackling Hate Front line services An increase in Hate Annwen Morgan
Crimes and Incidents: A increase their Crime reporting
framework for action”? understanding of Hate Victims of Hate Crime
crime and support an receive appropriate
increase in reporting support
5.3 | Supporting familiesand | = Identify and support Using an ACE informed Reduction in demand on Lee Robinson
children at risk of ACE’s vulnerable families who lens for early frontline services
exhibit challenging intervention and root Reduction in crime and
behaviours cause prevention disorder rates
5.4 | Reduce Reoffending =  Minimise gaps in service Support the delivery of Reduction in re- Andy Jones
provision for those at risk the All Wales Reducing offending rates
of offending Reoffending Strategy
5.5 | Youth Justice ®= |mprove collaborative Adopt regional YJ plan Reduction in young Colin Everett / Youth

working across the region
Review the Youth Justice

people entering the
criminal justice system

Justice Board Chairs

2 Welsh Government Tackling Hate Crimes and Incidents: A Framework for Action [2014]

10




62 obed

NWSCB
Focus

Actions

Milestones

Success

Lead Officer

structures in light of
reduced funding

Prevent those in the
criminal system from
custodial sentencing
For young offenders to
have fulfilling life plans
which help them avoid
re-offending in the
future

5.6 | Migration changes = The migration toolkit Relevant information is The impacts of Annwen Morgan
identifies migration shared in a timely and demographic change on
patterns and the appropriate way the community safety
implications for agenda are understood
community safety and addressed
Governance of the NWSCB
6.1 | Ensure our work is = Enhance the research and The NW SCB and each Information is shared in Mark Polin
evidence based analysis processes across CSP will sign off a data a timely and
partners. sharing protocol appropriate way
Consolidate Needs A proposal and
Assessments to support timetable for
resource allocation and consolidating the needs
collaboration. assessments in 2018 is
drafted.
6.2 | Commissioning Review = Review of Commissioning More efficient and more Best use is made of Lee Robinson

of OPPC and APB

focussed regional, sub
regional and local
community safety
activity

resources and expertise

11




0€ abed

NWSCB Actions Milestones Success Lead Officer
Focus
6.3 | Reporting mechanism = NW SCB hold local CSPs, = Share good practice and | = Reduction in levels of Cllir Hugh Jones
the Channel Panel and expertise to improve crime and disorder
Modern Slavery delivery performance
group to account
6.4 | External audit * |mplement the relevant = Ensure that the NWSCB | = Partners participate in Clir Hugh Jones

findings from the WAO
review of community
safety

= Participate in the Welsh
Government review of
community safety

reflects good practice

the NWSCB
appropriately

The 4 North Wales local Community Safety Partnership’s (CSPs) focus

This document outlines the plans to ensure we are working together to make North Wales a safe place.

The document should also act as a framework for the individual CSPs across North Wales to develop a local delivery plan that meets the
objectives of the PCC, supports the evidence in the North Wales Police strategic assessment and meets the needs of the CSP at a local level.

12




Agenda Iltem 5

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday, 21 September 2017

Report Subject Annual Improvement Report of the Auditor General for
Wales

Report Author Chief Executive

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Annual Improvement Report (AIR) summarises the audit and regulatory work
undertaken at the Council by the Wales Audit Office since the last report was
published in July 2016.

Overall the Auditor General for Wales has reached a positive conclusion. “The
Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to continuous
improvement’.

No formal recommendations have been made during the year.

There are four new voluntary proposals for improvement.

An executive response to the reviews is set out.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. | To be assured by the Auditor General for Wales’ Annual Improvement
Plan for 2016/17 and support the executive response to the Annual
Improvement Report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | The Annual Improvement Report

1.01 | The Auditor General under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
(Measure) undertakes and publishes an annual improvement report for all
Welsh Councils, Fire and Rescue Authorities and National Park
Authorities.

Page 31



1.02 | This is the seventh Annual Improvement Report for Flintshire. However,
the format is different from previous years in that it is a summary of the
audit, regulatory and inspection work carried out in 2016/17.

1.03 Overall the Auditor General has concluded that:

“The Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to continuous
improvement’.

1.04 | The Auditor General has not made any statutory recommendations with
which the Council must comply. There are 4 new voluntary proposals for
improvement.

1.05 | The Council’s response to the four proposals for improvement is attached
as Appendix 2.

2.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | Resource implications have been considered during preparation of the
Medium Term Financial Strategy and will continue to be monitored during
the regular budget monitoring and financial planning arrangements.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Audit
Committee will be considering this report as part of their Forward Work
programme.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Findings from the Wales Audit Office are risk managed as part of regular
monitoring.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Annual Improvement Report September 2017
Appendix 2: Flintshire’s executive response

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and

Communications Executive Officer
Telephone: 01352 702740
E-mail: karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 32



mailto:karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

Annual Improvement Report: The Annual Improvement Report is
publicised by the Wales Audit Office (WAO) on behalf of the Auditor General
for Wales. It brings together, with the input of other inspectorates such as
Estyn and the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW), a
summary of the regulatory work of the past year.

Corporate Assessment: In 2013/14 the Wales Audit Office (WAQO) began a
new four year cycle of Corporate Assessments of improvement authorities in
Wales. An in-depth Corporate Assessment reports on the Council’s track
record of performance and outcomes as well as the key arrangements
necessary to underpin improvements in services and functions. Flintshire’s
first Corporate Assessment was conducted in late 2014 and the report on its
outcomes was included in the Annual Improvement Report published in
March 2015.

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Wales Audit Office: works to support the Auditor General as the public
sector watchdog for Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of Wales
know whether public money is being managed wisely and that public bodies
in Wales understand how to improve outcomes.

Page 33




This page is intentionally left blank



=

Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru
WALES AUDIT OFFICE _
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU Auditor General for Wales

Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17
— Flintshire County Council

Audit year: 2016-17

Date issued: September 2017

Document reference: 425A2017




The Auditor General is independent of government, and is appointed by Her Majesty the Queen. The
Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales Audit
Office Board, which is a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the

Auditor General. The Wales Audit Office is held to account by the National Assembly.

The Auditor General audits local government bodies in Wales, including unitary authorities, police,
probation, fire and rescue authorities, national parks and community councils. He also conducts local
government value for money studies and assesses compliance with the requirements of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009.

Beyond local government, the Auditor General is the external auditor of the Welsh Government and
its sponsored and related public bodies, the Assembly Commission and National Health Service
bodies in Wales.

The Auditor General and staff of the Wales Audit Office aim to provide public-focused and
proportionate reporting on the stewardship of public resources and in the process provide insight and
promote improvement.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffén yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.

This Annual Improvement Report has been prepared on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales by
Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans under the direction of Huw Rees.

Page 36



Contents

Summary report
2016-17 performance audit work

The Council is meeting its statutory requirements in relation to
continuous improvement

Recommendations

Audit, regulatory and inspection work reported during 2016-17
Appendices

Appendix 1 — Status of this report

Appendix 2 — Annual Audit Letter

Appendix 3 — National report recommendations 2016-17

Page 3 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — FIirBIage)UBIVCouncil

12

13

16



Summary report

2016-17 performance audit work

1 In determining the breadth of work undertaken during the year, we considered the
extent of accumulated audit and inspection knowledge as well as other available
sources of information including Flintshire County Council’s (the Council) own
mechanisms for review and evaluation. For 2016-17, we undertook improvement
assessment work at all councils under three themes: governance, use of
resources, and improvement planning and reporting. At some councils, we
supplemented this work with local risk-based audits, identified in the Audit Plan for
2016-17.

2 The work carried out since the last Annual Improvement Report (AIR), including
that of the relevant regulators, is set out in Exhibit 1.

The Council is meeting its statutory requirements
in relation to continuous improvement

3 Based on, and limited to, the work carried out by the Wales Audit Office and
relevant regulators, the Auditor General believes that the Council is likely to comply
with the requirements of the Local Government Measure (2009) during 2017-18.

Recommendations and proposals for
Improvement

4 Given the wide range of services provided by the Council and the challenges it is
facing, it would be unusual if we did not find things that can be improved. The
Auditor General is able to:

° make proposals for improvement — if proposals are made to the Council, we
would expect it to do something about them and we will follow up what
happens;

° make formal recommendations for improvement — if a formal

recommendation is made, the Council must prepare a response to that
recommendation within 30 working days;

° conduct a special inspection, and publish a report and make
recommendations; and

o recommend to ministers of the Welsh Government that they intervene in
some way.

Page 4 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Rr&@e @&ty Council



During the course of the year, the Auditor General did not make any formal
recommendations. However, a number of proposals for improvement have been
made and these are repeated in this report. We will monitor progress against them
and relevant recommendations made in our national reports (Appendix 3) as part
of our improvement assessment work.

Page 5 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — FIirBI&ge)anCouncil



o abed

Audit, regulatory and inspection work reported during 2016-17

Exhibit 1: audit, regulatory and inspection work reported during 2016-17

Description of the work carried out since the last AIR, including that of the relevant regulators, where relevant.

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement

Governance

May 2017

Good governance when
determining service
changes

Review of the Council’s
governance arrangements
for determining service
changes.

The Council’'s governance arrangements for
determining significant service change are
generally effective with some opportunities to
further strengthen its approach.

We came to this conclusion because:

e the Council has a clear vision and strategic
approach for determining service change;

e governance and accountability arrangements
for service change decision-making processes
are clear, comprehensive and well-understood;

e options appraisals relating to service change
are robust, transparent and wide-ranging;

e the Council has effective arrangements to
engage with, and inform, stakeholders about

The Council’'s governance
arrangements could be strengthened
by:

P1 Clearly defining the role of
Scrutiny Committees in
reviewing the impact of
individual service changes, and
by encouraging committees to
reflect this role in their Forward
Work Plans

P2 Ensuring that Equality Impact
Assessments associated with
service change are of a
consistently high quality.

Page 6 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council




T obed

Issue date

service change proposals, their potential
implications and the processes involved in
reaching a decision;

corporate arrangements for monitoring the
impact of service change are generally clear,
but there is scope to clarify the role of scrutiny;
and

the Council continues to review and refine its
governance and decision-making
arrangements and responds positively to
external audit feedback.

Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement

P3 Ensuring that internal reviews of
its governance arrangements —
such as the Annual Governance
Statement — explicitly consider
governance in relation to
decisions about service change.

Use of resources

November
2016

Annual audit letter 2015-
16

Letter summarising the key
messages arising from the
Auditor General’s statutory
responsibilities under the
Public Audit (Wales) Act
2004 and his reporting
responsibilities under the
Code of Audit Practice. The
Annual Audit Letter is in
Appendix 2 of this report.

The Council complied with its responsibilities
relating to financial reporting and use of resources

the Council has appropriate arrangements in
place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources; and

work to date on certification of grant claims
and returns has not identified significant
issues that would impact on the 2015-16
accounts or key financial systems.

None

Page 7 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council




2t obed

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement

January 2017 Savings planning The Council has a sound financial planning P1 Strengthen financial planning
Review of the Council’s framework and it continues to strengthen its arrangements by ensuring that
financial savings financial planning to better support future financial all savings proposals are
arrangements, including resilience. sufficiently developed before the
how well it is delivering the | We came to this conclusion because: start of the financial year in
required savings and Savings achievement 2015-16 which they are to be

whether it has robust implemented.
approaches to plan,
manage and deliver budget
savings, at a pace that
supports financial

resilience.

e the Council has reported achievement of 83%
of its planned 2015-16 savings in year and
can demonstrate that individual savings have
been delivered.

Financial planning arrangements

e the Council has an effective corporate
framework for financial planning and plans to
lengthen the term of the MTFS to five years to
address the current lack of indicative plans for
future years.

Savings Plan 2016-17

e the Council forecasts that it is will achieve
90% of its 2016-17 revised planned savings
but some of its savings proposals are not
sufficiently well developed when the budget is
approved.

Local risk-based performance audit

Page 8 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council



¢ obed

Issue date

Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement

effectiveness of the
Council’s efficiency

savings programme

efficiency savings are effective, but arrangements
for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing
post-project learning are under-developed:

August 2017 Corporate Assessment The Council continues to make progress in There are no additional proposals for
Follow-up addressing the 2015 corporate assessment improvement resulting from the
Review of the actions taken | proposals for improvement: follow-up audit. However, we expect
by the Council in response | e the Council is promoting staff ownership of the Council to continue making
to proposals for key objectives which will be supported progress against the original
improvement in the 2015 by a new integrated approach to business proposals.
corporate assessment planning in 2017-18;
report e corporate strategies are well aligned and the

Council has implemented its revised asset
management strategy, but progress on the
new people and digital strategies has been
slower than planned;

e the Council is improving its risk management
processes but work to align project and
savings plan risks to the Council’s revised risk
matrix has been delayed; and

o workforce planning is a key element of the
Council’s new people strategy and although
work is underway to develop workforce plans,
it is too early to assess their impact.

August 2017 Review of the Arrangements for planning and monitoring There are no additional proposals for

improvement resulting from the
follow-up audit. However, we expect
the Council to continue making

Page 9 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council




vt abed

Issue date Brief description Conclusions

An analysis of the Council's | o  the Council has effective arrangements for

arrangements for planning, planning and monitoring the financial

monitoring, evaluating and impact of its efficiency savings programme;

rePO,”'”g outc.omes fromits |, Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial

efficiency savings impact of efficiency initiatives

programme. are not systematic, but are being
strengthened; and

e Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-
project learning are under-developed.

Proposals for improvement

progress against the original
proposals

Improvement planning and reporting

performance audit

Review of the Council’s
published performance
assessment.

July 2016 Wales Audit Office annual | The Council has complied with its statutory None
improvement plan audit improvement planning duties.
Review of the Council’s
published plans for
delivering on improvement
objectives.
November Wales Audit Office annual | The Council has complied with its statutory None
2016 assessment of improvement reporting duties.

Reviews by inspection and regulation bodies

Page 10 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council




G obed

Issue date Brief description Conclusions Proposals for improvement

No reviews by inspection and regulation bodies have taken place during the time period covered by this report.

Page 11 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council



Appendix 1

Status of this report

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure) requires the Auditor
General to undertake a forward-looking annual improvement assessment, and to publish
an annual improvement report, for each improvement authority in Wales. Improvement
authorities (defined as local councils, national parks, and fire and rescue authorities) have
a general duty to ‘make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the exercise
of [their] functions’.

The annual improvement assessment considers the likelihood that an authority will
comply with its duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement. The
assessment is also the main piece of work that enables the Auditor General to fulfil his
duties. Staff of the Wales Audit Office, on behalf of the Auditor General, produce the
annual improvement report. The report discharges the Auditor General’s duties under
section 24 of the Measure, by summarising his audit and assessment work in a published
annual improvement report for each authority. The report also discharges his duties
under section 19 to issue a report certifying that he has carried out an improvement
assessment under section 18 and stating whether (as a result of his improvement plan
audit under section 17) he believes that the authority has discharged its improvement
planning duties under section 15.

The Auditor General may also, in some circumstances, carry out special inspections
(under section 21), which will be reported to the authority and Ministers, and which he
may publish (under section 22). An important ancillary activity for the Auditor General is
the co-ordination of assessment and regulatory work (required by section 23), which
takes into consideration the overall programme of work of all relevant regulators at an
improvement authority. The Auditor General may also take account of information shared
by relevant regulators (under section 33) in his assessments.

Page 12 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 —Rageeﬂ;@mty Council



Appendix 2

Annual Audit Letter

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Cardiff / Caerdydd

CF119LJ

Tel / Ffon: 029 2032 0500

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600

Textphone / Ffén testun: 029 2032 0660
inffo@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru

Councillor Aaron Shotton — Leader
Colin Everett — Chief Executive
Flintshire County Council

County Hall

Mold

Flintshire

CH7 6NB

Reference: 644A2016
Date issued: 29 November 2016

Dear Aaron and Colin

Annual Audit Letter — Flintshire County Council 2015-16

This letter summarises the key messages arising from my statutory responsibilities under
the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and my reporting responsibilities under the Code of
Audit Practice.

The Council complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting
and use of resources
It is the Council’s responsibility to:

o put systems of internal control in place to ensure the regularity and lawfulness of
transactions and to ensure that its assets are secure;

o maintain proper accounting records;
o prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant requirements; and

o establish and keep under review appropriate arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to:
o provide an audit opinion on the accounting statements;

Page 13 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — FIR@@;@oan/ Council


mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/

o review the Council’'s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources; and

o issue a certificate confirming that | have completed the audit of the accounts.

Local authorities in Wales prepare their accounting statements in accordance with the
requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom. This Code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards.

I issued an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements confirming they present a
true and fair view of the Council’s financial position and transactions on 29 September
2016. My report is contained within the Statement of Accounts. The key matters arising
from the accounts audit were:

o It was pleasing to note that the Council had been proactive in addressing the issues
identified during the 2014-15 audit. The improvements were overseen by a newly
established Accounts Governance Group. We would encourage this Group to
continue to support the Finance team in future challenges such as changes in
accounting for Highway Network assets and the requirement for financial statements
to be produced earlier in future years.

o The valuation method adopted in revaluing the Council’s housing stock was flawed
and resulted in restatement.

o The Council needs to accelerate its investigations into the potential liabilities arising
from a number of former waste disposal sites to ensure that it can appropriately
recognise any financial liabilities as an accounting provision in its financial
statements and address any funding issues from a budgetary perspective.

These were reported in detail to members of the Council in my Audit of Financial
Statements report on 26 September 2016.

In the near future, we will be holding a joint Post Project Learning exercise with Council
finance officers to identify areas where we can both learn from this year, and make
improvements for the future. We will hold regular meetings to take any issues forward
and to start preparations for future challenges as referred to above.

It is also worth noting, the Council lead on the preparation of the accounts for the North
Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee. On 29 September 2016, | confirmed that the
information contained in its annual return was in accordance with proper practices.

| issued a certificate confirming that both the audits of the accounts have been completed
on 29 September 2016.

| am satisfied that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

My consideration of the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness has been based on the audit work undertaken on the accounts as well as
placing reliance on the work completed under the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009. The Auditor General will highlight areas where the effectiveness of these
arrangements has yet to be demonstrated or where improvements could be made when
he publishes his Annual Improvement Report.

Page 14 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 —Ragee48|nty Council



We will also shortly be issuing a report on the council’s financial resilience which will
consider whether the council’s financial savings planning arrangements support financial
resilience.

My work to date on certification of grant claims and returns has not
identified significant issues that would impact on the 2015-16 accounts or
key financial systems.

My ongoing work on the certification of grants claims and returns has not identified any
significant issues to date in relation to the accounts or the Council’s key financial
systems. A more detailed report on my grant certification work will follow in the spring
2017 once this year’s programme of certification work is complete.

The financial audit fee for 2015-16 is currently expected to be in line with the agreed fee
set out in the Annual Audit Plan.

Yours sincerely

John Herniman
Engagement Director
For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales

Page 15 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — FIR@@@O@@ Council



0G abed

Appendix 3

National report recommendations 2016-17

Exhibit 2: national report recommendations 2016-17

Summary text for Appendix 2 ‘Summary of proposals for improvement relevant to local government, included in national reports published by
the Wales Audit Office, since publication of the last AIR’

Date of report Title of review Recommendation

August 2016 Financial Resilience of Local In our report of 2014-15 (The Financial Resilience of Councils in
Authorities in Wales 2015-16 Wales, April 2015) we made a number of recommendations for
local authorities. Many of these recommendations remained
relevant and required further work from authorities to address them
during 2016-17. In addition, we also made the following
recommendations based on our more recent review:

R1 Local authorities should strengthen their financial-planning
arrangements by:

e developing more explicit links between the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) and its corporate priorities and
service plans;

¢ aligning other key strategies such as workforce and asset
management plans with the MTFP;

Page 16 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council


http://www.audit.wales/publication/financial-resilience-local-authorities-wales-2015-16
http://www.audit.wales/publication/financial-resilience-local-authorities-wales-2015-16

TG obed

Date of report Title of review

R2

R3

R4

R5

Recommendation

¢ developing comprehensive multi-year fully costed savings
plans which underpin and cover the period of the MTFP,
not just the forthcoming annual budget;

e categorising savings proposals so that the shift from
traditional-type savings to transformational savings can be
monitored over the period of the MTFP; and

e ensuring timescales for the delivery of specific savings
proposals are realistic and accountability for delivery is
properly assigned.

Local authorities should develop corporate income generation

and charging policies.

Local authorities should ensure that they have a
comprehensive reserves strategy, which outlines the specific
purpose of accumulated useable reserves and the impact and
use of these in the MTFP.

Local authorities should develop key performance indicators
to monitor the MTFP.

Local authorities should ensure that savings plans are
sufficiently detailed to ensure that members are clear as to
what the plans are intended to deliver and that the delivery of
those plans can be scrutinised appropriately throughout the
year.

Page 17 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council




2G abed

Date of report Title of review

Recommendation

R6 Local authorities should ensure that corporate capacity and
capability are at a level that can effectively support the
delivery of savings plans in the MTFP at the pace required.

October 2016

Community Safety in Wales

The seven recommendations within this report required individual
and collective action from a range of stakeholders — the Welsh
Government, Home Office Wales Team, police and crime
commissioners, public service board members and local
authorities:

R1 Improve strategic planning to better coordinate activity for
community safety by replacing the existing planning
framework with a national strategy supported by regional and
local plans that are focused on delivering the agreed national
community-safety priorities.

R2 Improve strategic partnership working by formally creating
effective community-safety boards that replace existing
community-safety structures that formalise and draw together
the work of the Welsh Government, police forces, local
authorities, health boards, fire and rescue authorities,
WACSO and other key stakeholders.

R3 Improve planning through the creation of comprehensive
action plans that cover the work of all partners and clearly
identify the regional and local contribution in meeting the
national priorities for community safety.

Page 18 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council


http://www.audit.wales/publication/community-safety-wales

oG abed

Date of report Title of review Recommendation

R4 Review current grant-funding arrangements and move to
pooled budgets with longer-term funding commitments to
support delivery bodies to improve project and workforce
planning that focuses on delivering the priorities of the
national community-safety strategy.

R5 Ensure effective management of performance of community
safety by:

e setting appropriate measures at each level to enable
members, officers and the public to judge progress in
delivering actions for community-safety services;

e ensuring performance information covers the work of all
relevant agencies; and

e establishing measures to judge inputs, outputs and impact
to be able to understand the effect of investment decisions
and support oversight and scrutiny.

R6 Revise the systems for managing community-safety risks and
introduce monitoring and review arrangements that focus on
assuring the public that money spent on community safety is
resulting in better outcomes for people in Wales.

R7 Improve engagement and communication with citizens
through public service boards in:

e developing plans and priorities for community safety;

Page 19 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council



G abed

Date of report Title of review

Recommendation

e agreeing priorities for action; and
e reporting performance and evaluating impact.

November 2016

Charging for Services and
Generating Income by Local

Authorities

This report made eight recommendations, of which six required
action from local authorities. Recommendations R4 and R6
required action from the Welsh Government and Welsh Local
Government Association:

R1 Develop strategic frameworks for introducing and reviewing
charges, linking them firmly with the Medium Term Financial
Plan and the Corporate Plan.

R2 Review the unit and total costs of providing discretionary
services to clearly identify any deficits and, where needed, set
targets to improve the current operating position.

R3 Use the impact assessment checklist whenever changes to
charges are considered.

R5 Identify opportunities to procure private sector companies to
collect charges to improve efficiency and economy in
collecting income.

R7 Improve management of performance, governance and
accountability by:

e regularly reporting any changes to charges to scrutiny

committee(s);

Page 20 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council


http://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities
http://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities
http://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities

GG abed

Date of report Title of review

Recommendation

improving monitoring to better understand the impact of
changes to fees and charges on demand, and the
achievement of objectives;

benchmarking and comparing performance with others
more rigorously; and

providing elected members with more comprehensive
information to facilitate robust decision making.

R8 Improve the forecasting of income from charges through the
use of scenario planning and sensitivity analysis.

January 2017

Local Authority Funding of

Third Sector Services

This report made three recommendations, of which two required
action from local authorities. Recommendation R3 required action
from the Welsh Government:

R1 To get the best from funding decisions, local authorities and
third sector bodies need to ensure they have the right
arrangements and systems in place to support their work with
the third sector. To assist local authorities and third sector
bodies in developing their working practices, we recommend
that local authority and third sector officers use the Checklist
for local authorities effectively engaging and working with the

third sector to:

self-evaluate current third sector engagement,
management, performance and practice;

Page 21 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council



http://www.audit.wales/publication/local-authority-funding-third-sector-services
http://www.audit.wales/publication/local-authority-funding-third-sector-services
http://www.audit.wales/publication/checklist-local-authorities-effectively-engaging-and-working-third-sector
http://www.audit.wales/publication/checklist-local-authorities-effectively-engaging-and-working-third-sector
http://www.audit.wales/publication/checklist-local-authorities-effectively-engaging-and-working-third-sector

9G abed

Date of report Title of review Recommendation

¢ identify where improvements in joint working is required;
and

e jointly draft and implement an action plan to address the
gaps and weaknesses identified through the self-
evaluation.

R2 Poor performance management arrangements are weakening
accountability and limiting effective scrutiny of third sector
activity and performance. To strengthen oversight of the third
sector, we recommend that elected members scrutinise the
review checklist completed by officers, and regularly
challenge performance by officers and the local authority in
addressing gaps and weaknesses.

Page 22 of 24 - Annual Improvement Report: 2016-17 — Flintshire County Council



Page 57



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone.: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/

Wales Audit Office

Annual Improvement Report

September 2017

Executive Response

Appendix 2

The Auditor General for Wales provided a summary of the inspection and regulatory
work undertaken by the Wales Audit Office during 2016/17.

The report is generally positive with four new voluntary Proposals for Improvement

There are no new statutory recommendations.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full compliance

with the spirit and detail of the report.

Listed below are the Proposals for Improvement along with our response and current

status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement

Response

Progress
Status

Good Governance report

P1. Clearly defining the arrangements
for scrutinising the impact of individual

service changes

Pre-implementation

- Integrated impact assessment ‘tool’
developed and being used by
portfolios

- Tool provides end to end process of
defining service change, impact of
service change, risks and mitigation,
and transition planning and
evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built
into Integrated Impact Assessment
for all service changes prior to
consideration by members.

Post-implementation

- Efficiency monitoring (monthly)

- Quarterly report as narrative of all
significant service changes to
Cabinet and Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

- Include selective reviews in Overview
and Scrutiny forward work
programmes

P2. Ensuring that Equality Impact
Assessments (EIS) that are produced

Integrated Impact Assessment tool and
Gateway approval processes specifically
including Equality Impact Assessments

Paée 59




Appendix 2

are of a consistently high quality

will improve consistency and quality of all
impact assessments and their
interdependencies.

P3. Reviewing, and where necessary | Further refining to improve: G
improving, the effectiveness of its . . . .
decision-making arrangements - Consistently high quality business
o . . cases
explicitly in relation to service change. | Incorporation of evaluation post
implementation  within  business
planning methodology
- Evaluation of key changes post
implementation considered by
Programme Boards, Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny
- Annual review of the quality of the
budget-led service change decision-
making process
Proposal for Improvement Response Progress
Status

Council’s Effectiveness of the Efficiency Savings Programme

Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project evaluation, suitable for:

- evaluating the non-financial impact
of efficiency / change initiatives

- Integrated impact assessment tool
developed and being used by
portfolios

- Tool provides end to end process of
defining service change, impact of
service change, risks and mitigation
plus transition plans and evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built
into Integrated Impact Assessment
for all service changes prior to
consideration by members.

- capturing, sharing and promoting
learning and good practice.

Further refining to improve:

- Consistently high quality business
cases

- Incorporation of evaluation
implementation  within
planning methodology

- Evaluation of proposals
implementation considered
Programme Boards and Cabinet

- Overall effectiveness of decision-
making reviewed by Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

post
business

post
by

Page2 60




Agenda Iltem 6

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting

Thursday 21 September 2017

Report Subject

Wales Audit Office study reports

Cabinet Member

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report Author

Chief Executive

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Wales Audit Office (WAQ) have recently completed a number of reviews:

i) Corporate Assessment Follow-up; ii) Good Governance when determining
service changes; and (iii) Effectiveness of the Council’s efficiency savings

programme.

The reviews are a fair reflection on the Council’s practices and arrangements.
None of the reviews carry any new statutory recommendations.

There are four new proposals for improvement: three in the “Good Governance
when determining service changes” and; one in the “review of Effectiveness of the

Council’s efficiency savings programme”.

The Council has made an Executive response to each of the reviews.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To be assured by the review reports of the Wales Audit Office and support
the Council’s executive response.

Page 61



REPORT DETAILS

EXPLAINING THE WALES AUDIT OFFICE REVIEWS

During 2016-17 the Wales Audit Office undertook work on three different
topics and presented their findings to the Council. The Good Governance
review was held across all 22 councils. The other two reviews were local
to Flintshire and either complemented or followed up previous reviews.

1.02

The Corporate Assessment follow-up reviewed progress against the seven
Proposals for Improvement issued in the 2015 Corporate Assessment
report. It focused on actions which were incomplete at an earlier follow-up
in 2016. These latter actions included the Council’s approach to Business
planning, progress with Corporate strategies (People, ICT and Asset
management strategies), consistency of risk management approaches and
workforce planning.

The overall conclusion was:

“The Council continues to make progress in addressing the 2015 corporate
assessment proposals for improvement.”

No further proposals for improvement were included. The final report is
attached at Appendix 1, along with the Council’s response at Appendix 4.

1.03

The Good Governance review focused on governance arrangements
where there have been significant service changes. The overall conclusion
was:

“The Council’s governance arrangements for determining significant
service change are generally effective, with some opportunities to further
strengthen its approach.”

WAQO identified three proposals for improvement:

The Council’s governance arrangements could be strengthened by:

P1. Clearly defining the arrangements for scrutinising the impact of
individual service changes.

P2. Ensuring that Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) that are produced
are of a consistently high quality.

P3. Reviewing, and where necessary improving, the effectiveness of its
decision-making arrangements explicitly in relation to service change.

The final report is attached at Appendix 2, along with the Council’s
response at Appendix 4.

1.04

The review of the Council’s effectiveness of the efficiency savings
programme complements an earlier Financial Resilience review. The
overall conclusion was:

“Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective,
but arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-
project learning are under-developed.”

WAQO identified one proposal for improvement:

“Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project

Page 62




evaluation, suitable for:
e evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency / change
initiatives;
e capturing, sharing and promoting learning and good practice.”

The final report along with the Council’s response is attached at
Appendix 3 along with the Council’s response at Appendix 4.

1.05 | Proposals for improvement, where agreed with the Wales Audit Office
reviews, are actioned and monitored.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | There are no specific resource implications regarding this report; as the
reports are a view of the Council’s general governance arrangements,
efficiency savings planning and follow-up to a previous WAOQO corporate
review.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Wales Audit Office sought views from Chief Officers and finance
colleagues to inform their reviews.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The Council consistently reviews risks in relation to financial planning and
the resilience of its plans. The Medium Term Financial Strategy and in-
year business plans are monitored monthly.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Corporate Assessment follow-up (July 2017)

Appendix 2 - Good Governance when determining significant service
changes (June 2017)

Appendix 3 — Review of the effectiveness of the Council’s efficiency
savings programme ( August 2017)

Appendix 4 — Council Executive response.

Page 63



https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/flintshire_council_good_governance_significant_service_changes_english.pdf
https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/flintshire_council_good_governance_significant_service_changes_english.pdf

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

Wales Audit Office: Annual Improvement Report incorporating the
Corporate Assessment report (March 2015)

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and
Communications Executive Officer

Telephone: 01352 702740

E-mail: karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Wales Audit Office (WAQ)

Works to support the Auditor General as the public sector watchdog for
Wales. They aim to ensure that the people of Wales know whether public
money is being managed wisely and that public bodies in Wales
understand how to improve outcomes.

Page 64



https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/Flintshire_County_Council_AIR_CA_English_2014.pdf
https://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/Flintshire_County_Council_AIR_CA_English_2014.pdf

T Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru

SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU Auditor General for Wales

Corporate Assessment Follow-up —
Flintshire County Council

Audit year: 2016/17
Date issued: July 2017

Document reference:

Purpose of this document

This document is a draft supplied in confidence solely for the purpose of verifying the accuracy and
completeness of the information contained in it and to obtain views on the conclusions reached.

Handling prior to publication

This document and the copyright comprised therein is and remains the property of the Auditor General
for Wales. It contains information which has been obtained by the Auditor General and the Wales Audit
Office under statutory functions solely to discharge statutory functions and has been prepared as the
basis for an official document that may be issued or published in due course. It may also contain
information the unauthorised disclosure of which may be an offence under section 54 of the Public Audit
(Wales) Act 2004. Except as expressly permitted by law, neither the document nor any of its content may
be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system and/or transmitted in any form or by any means, or disclosed
to any person other than the original recipient without the prior written permission of the Wales Audit
Office. It must be safeguarded at all times to prevent publication or other improper use of its content.
Unauthorised use or disclosure may result in legal proceedings. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or
re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at info.officer@audit.wales.



mailto:info.officer@audit.wales

This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor
General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at
info.officer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffén yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

This document is also available in Welsh.

The team who delivered the work comprised Charlotte Owen, Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans,
under the direction of Huw Rees

Page 66


mailto:info.officer@audit.wales

Contents

The Council continues to make progress in addressing the 2015 corporate assessment
proposals for improvement

Summary report
Summary X

Proposals for improvement X

Detailed report

The Council is promoting staff ownership of key objectives which will be supported by a
new integrated approach to business planning in 2017-18 X

Corporate strategies are well aligned and the Council has implemented its revised asset
management strategy, but progress on the new people and digital strategies has been
slower than planned X

The Council is improving its risk management processes but work to align project and
savings plan risks to the Council’s revised risk matrix has been delayed X

Workforce planning is a key element of the Council’'s new people strategy and although
work is underway to develop workforce plans, it is too early to assess their impact X

Page 3 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintshirPagﬁ ©hci



Summary report

Summary

1 In March 2015, the Auditor General published his Annual Improvement Report
(AIR)! for Flintshire County Council (the Council). The report, which included
findings from the September 2014 Corporate Assessment (CA), concluded that the
Council had made significant progress in a number of difficult areas, but needed to
strengthen some aspects of its arrangements. Although the Council was
reasonably well placed to continue to deliver its priorities in the face of further
financial challenges, the report made seven proposals for improvement (PFIs).
Action to address four of the seven PFls was still underway at the start of 2016-17.

2 In early 2016 we reviewed the Council’s progress against the PFIs and reported
our findings in the AIR published in June 20162; Overall, we found the Council:

° had made good progress in addressing the governance-related PFIs;

° was strengthening its management of financial resources, but had made
less consistent progress revising other resource management strategies;
and

° had made some progress to improve the consistency of its approach to
workforce planning, but further work was required to complete the
arrangements.

3 During early 2017, we revisited the actions which were incomplete at the time of

our earlier follow-up. This second follow-up found that the Council continues to
make progress in addressing the 2015 corporate assessment proposals for

improvement.
4 We came to this conclusion because:
o the Council is promoting staff ownership of key objectives which will be

supported by a new integrated approach to business planning in 2017-18;

° corporate strategies are well aligned and the Council has implemented its
revised asset management strategy, but progress on the new people and
digital strategies has been slower than planned;

° the Council is improving its risk management processes, but work to align
project and savings plan risks to the Council’s revised risk matrix has been
delayed; and

° workforce planning is a key element of the Council’s new people strategy

and although work is underway to develop workforce plans, it is too early to
assess their impact.

1 Flintshire County Council — Annual Improvement Report 2014-15 Published March
2015 Source: Wales Audit Office

2 Flintshire County Council - Annual Improvement Report 2015-16 Published June 2016
Source: Wales Audit Office

Page 4 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintH&Q&n@Souncil


http://www.audit.wales/publication/flintshire-county-council-annual-improvement-report-including-corporate-assessment-2014
http://www.audit.wales/publication/flintshire-county-council-%E2%80%93-annual-improvement-report-2015-16

Proposals for improvement

The Council has made significant progress against many of the proposals for
improvement arising from the 2015 corporate assessment report. However, some actions
have only recently been implemented and some are scheduled for completion during
2017. So, it is too soon to assess their overall impact. Our Audit Plan for 20017-18
includes further follow-up work during late 2017-18, to review the impact of recent and
imminent changes.

There are no additional proposals for improvement arising from this follow-up audit.
However, we expect the Council to continue making progress against the original
proposals.

Page 5 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintshirPan@/ ﬁ)gwcil



The Council continues to make progress in
addressing the 2015 corporate assessment
proposals for improvement

The Council is promoting staff ownership of key objectives
which will be supported by a new integrated approach to
business planning in 2017-18

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015
corporate assessment report’

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P1 (from the 2015 CA report)

The Council should develop and implement a consistent approach to business
planning that promotes the ownership by staff of key objectives and targets.

5 The Council continues to improve its business planning arrangements and intends
to implement a new approach during 2017-18:
. Each portfolio will produce a comprehensive five-year business plan to
support service planning and performance management; and

. The business plans will incorporate corporate initiatives and strategies and
demonstrate fit with the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

6 The Council anticipates that the new business plans will support workforce
engagement and staff ownership of key objectives by clarifying how corporate
objectives relate to individual service areas. A standard business plan format
intended to promote consistency across portfolios and plans will be formally
reviewed and updated twice a year.

7 The Council’s integrated performance management system places greater
responsibility on chief officers and service managers for data input and promotes
ownership of the objectives. The system, and the reports it generates, identifies the
officers responsible for meeting objectives and specific targets. As always, the
quality of the reports produced is dependent on the data input into the system; the
Council reports that data quality is variable, but is improving. The system’s
automated reporting function provides the Policy and Performance Team with more
opportunity to monitor the quality and consistency of data.

8 The Council has rolled out an updated staff appraisal model. The model now
includes the option of a ‘light touch’ approach, more appropriate for staff on low-
hour contracts, who do not require a full appraisal. Appraisal completion figures for
2016-17 were not available at the time of our review, but the Council expects this
dual approach to increase the number of appraisals completed. The full appraisal
model encourages staff to consider how their role contributes to the Council’'s
corporate and service-level priorities and objectives. The Council expects this to
promote greater awareness and ownership of the priorities and objectives.

Page 6 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintHag&mZ@ouncil



9 The new business plans are intended to complement this approach by including
more explicit links to corporate objectives. The Council has also taken steps to
ensure that new corporate strategies, such as the People Strategy 2016-2019, are
accessible, to encourage buy-in from staff at all levels of the organisation.

10  We will revisit the actions being taken to address this PFI during late 2017-18 to
assess whether their intended impact has been achieved.

Corporate strategies are well aligned and the Council has
implemented its revised asset management strategy, but
progress on the new people and digital strategies has been
slower than planned

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015
corporate assessment report’

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P3 (from the 2015 CA report)

The Council should ensure that, in implementing its revised strategies for People, ICT
and Asset Management:

¢ their financial implications feed into the medium-term financial plan; and

¢ the links between the strategies are fully considered so that specialist staff are
available when required.

11 Progress on revising and implementing the people and digital strategies has been
slower than planned. The Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan 2016-2020
(CS&AMP) was approved in February 2016 and implemented during 2016-17. The
Council’s Capital Programme for the period 2017-18 to 2019-20 follows the
framework set out in the capital strategy. The Council has evaluated proposals for
capital expenditure against the asset management plan to ensure they support
delivery of its priorities.

12 Our previous follow-up review acknowledged that an ICT service restructure and
reduced capacity in the Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR &
OD) team had delayed progress of the new digital and people strategies. The
Council originally expected to finalise its digital strategy during summer 2016.
However, further delays meant the Council did not approve its Digital Flintshire
2017-2022 strategy until February 2017; and the People Strategy 2016-2019 was
approved in November 2016. The Council is now developing action plans to
support implementation of both strategies. Until the action plans are completed, the
scale of actions and timescales associated with the implementation is unclear.

13  The financial implications of the Digital Flintshire strategy are not yet clear. Capital
investment in IT equipment, necessary to maintain the current infrastructure’s
functionality, was approved as part of the Council’s Capital Programme. The
capital investment required to realise the strategy will become clearer once the
Council has determined the extent of its programme of changes. The Council
intends to run each potential project through a cost-benefit assessment before

Page 7 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintshiP@@'@ dolneil



taking a decision to proceed. The Council expects to deliver its People Strategy
within current resource levels.

14  There are clear links between the Council’s key corporate strategies. Both the
people and digital strategies provide a clear vision of how the workforce and digital
information and technology will contribute towards improvement priorities and
strategic plans. Enabler strategies are also better integrated and the Council has
taken a collaborative approach to developing the revised people and digital
strategies; corporate services staff liaise closely and consult with officers at a
portfolio level. The Council also expects supporting action plans to take account of
relevant departments’ capacity when scheduling projects, with relevant actions
embedded within portfolio business plans.

15  The Council originally planned to produce a corporate resourcing strategy that
would provide an overarching strategic focus on capability, capacity and risks. We
agreed that this approach could provide an effective way to link the Council’s
enabler strategies. However, the Council subsequently decided not to proceed.
Instead, the Council’'s new business plans, which are being introduced during
2017-18, will link to the suite of corporate strategies. The Council expects this
approach to provide improved connectivity between its strategies and planning
arrangements.

16  We will follow up these arrangements during late 2017-18 to assess the extent to
which the intended linkages are working in practice.

The Council is improving its risk management processes but
work to align project and savings plan risks to the Council’s
revised risk matrix has been delayed

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015
corporate assessment report’

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P6 (from the 2015 CA report)

The Council should:

e adopt a consistent approach to managing risk, ensuring that all staff involved use a
similar approach to record impact, likelihood and mitigating actions; and apply this
approach to its future savings plans.

17  In May 2016, Internal Audit (1A) provided reasonable assurance® of the Council’s
risk management processes. The IA review focussed on the Council’s use of its
integrated performance management system to provide a more consistent
approach to risk management. During 2016-17, a number of the planned
improvements arising from the 1A review were completed. Although the Council
originally anticipated completing all actions during 2016, some were delayed and

8 The Council’s Internal Auditor defines reasonable assurance as “Key Controls in place
but some fine tuning required; key controls generally operating effectively” Source:
Internal Audit routine reports to Audit Committee

Page 8 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintHagﬁnwzouncil



now have revised completion dates between March and September 2017. The
Council’s 1A team continues to track progress against the action plan.

18  The Council reports that the integrated performance management system is
supporting a more consistent and sophisticated approach to risk. All operational
risks have been added to the system, promoting consistent use of the revised risk
matrix. However, less progress has been made in adding project risks to the
system due to capacity issues and the need for further work to build and develop
the Council's risk framework for projects. The Council now expects to complete this
work by the end of March 2017.

19 Portfolio business plans have integrated risk management into service planning
and monitoring processes. For example, Programme Board meetings routinely
discuss both existing and emerging risks. The Council also delivered risk
management training during 2016-17 to support a consistent approach to risk
escalation across portfolios, and is updating its risk management guidance.

20  Savings plans do not currently use the risk matrix. Instead, efficiencies are risk-
assessed in terms of their deliverability and acceptability. The Council also
assesses the financial robustness of planned efficiencies. This provides further
assurance on likely deliverability; better-developed costings increase the likelihood
of achieving the planned efficiency. Once planned work to support project-level
risks within the integrated performance management system is complete, the
Council intends to add new portfolio business plans and efficiencies to the system.
The Council expects these changes to align efficiency plans to the risk matrix and
integrate risk management with efficiency reporting.

21  The Council provided a mid-year update on the strategic risks contained in its
2016-17 Improvement Plan to Audit Committee in January 2017. The Council’s
report concluded that the Council’s approach to management of risk was effective;
there was a significant reduction in the proportion of major risks and an increase in
the number of risks classified as minor or insignificant.

22 We will assess the effectiveness of the updated risk management arrangements
during a follow-up review in late 2017-18.

Workforce planning is a key element of the Council’s new
people strategy and although work is underway to develop
workforce plans, it is too early to assess their impact

Summary text ‘Description of the Proposal for Improvement included in the original 2015
corporate assessment report’

Corporate Assessment Proposal for Improvement P7 (from the 2015 CA report)

The Council should ensure a consistent approach to workforce planning and use the
results to inform future reductions in staff.

23  The Council’'s approach to workforce planning is set out in its new People Strategy
2016-2019. Effective workforce planning is a Council priority and work has recently

Page 9 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIintshirPan@/ de3ncil



24

25

begun to implement this part of the strategy; the Human Resources (HR) team are
working with managers to develop service level workforce plans. The Council
considers that its approach to engaging with senior managers on implementation of
the strategy has been effective. An outline template ensures consistency of
approach across services and HR have provided service managers with the
management information they require to develop the plans. A key planned
outcome of the Council’s people strategy is a single consolidated workforce plan
and supporting action plans. The Council expects this to promote a consistent
approach to workforce planning.

Although it is too early to assess the workforce plans and their impact on future
reductions in staff, the People Strategy is clear about their intended purpose. The
Council expects its workforce plans to set out and address the gap between
current workforce arrangements and those required to deliver future service plans.
Workforce plans will inform Council decisions around future workforce numbers
and help it to develop job roles and flexible working patterns that support future
service delivery models. The plans will form an integral part of the Council’s
business planning approach and portfolio business plans will be required to
demonstrate how workforce requirements are being addressed.

We will review the effectiveness of the actions taken to improve the consistency of
workforce planning arrangements during a follow-up review in late 2017-18.

Page 10 of 12 - Corporate Assessment Follow-up — FIirBiag&uRtACouncil



Page 75



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11.9kJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 0292032 0600
Textphone.: 029 2032 0660

E-mail; info@auditiwales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/

=

>

WALES AUDIT OFFICE ArChW'Iy.dd Cyffredinol Cymru
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU Auditor General for Wales

Review of the Effectiveness of the
Council’s Efficiency Savings
Programme — Flintshire County
Council

Audit year: 2016/17
Date issued: August 2017

Document reference: 453A2017




This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor
General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at
info.officer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffén yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

This document is also available in Welsh.

The team who delivered the work comprised Charlotte Owen, Paul Goodlad and Jeremy Evans,
under the direction of Huw Rees.

Page 78


mailto:info.officer@audit.wales

Contents

Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, but
arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-project learning are
under-developed

Summary report

Summary 4
Proposals for improvement 4
Detailed report

Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, but
arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-project
learning are under-developed 6

The Council has effective arrangements for planning and monitoring the
financial impact of its efficiency savings programme 6

Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency initiatives
are not systematic, but are being strengthened 8

Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-project learning are
under-developed 9

Page 3 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 79



Summary report

Summary

1

Flintshire County Council (the Council) has reported significant efficiency savings
over the last 10 years; its Medium Term Financial Strategy notes how the need to
achieve savings has accelerated in response to increasing budget pressures.
Since 2008-09, the Council has reported efficiency savings of almost £60 million,
including nearly £25 million for 2014-15 and 2015-16 alone — over 40% of the total
savings reported since 2008-09.

In 2016-17, the Wales Audit Office reported on the extent to which the Council’'s
financial and savings planning arrangements supported financial resilience. In this
review, we look more closely at the Council’s arrangements for planning,
monitoring, evaluating and reporting outcomes from its efficiency savings
programme. We also assess whether the Council’'s post-project evaluation
effectively identifies and replicates good practice, helping it to avoid repeating
potentially costly mistakes.

Between February and May 2017, we sampled four recently-completed ‘change’

projects, including projects that benefitted from initial pump-priming, to assess the
Council's arrangements. The efficiency projects we sampled were:

° corporate operating model;

° changes to the library network;

° in-house enforcement agent service; and
° review of fleet arrangements.

We found that arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are
effective, but arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing
post-project learning are under-developed.

We came to this conclusion because:

° the Council has effective arrangements for planning and monitoring the
financial impact of its efficiency savings programme;

° arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency initiatives
are not systematic, but are being strengthened; and

° arrangements for capturing and sharing good practice are under-developed.

Page 4 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 80



Proposals for improvement

6 It would be unusual if we did not find things that can be improved and, where we
do, the Auditor General can take a variety of steps. In this case, we have made a
proposal for improvement that we expect the Council to respond to in an
appropriate way.

Exhibit 1: Proposals for improvement

Proposals for improvement

P1 Introduce a more robust and systematic approach to post-project evaluation,

suitable for:
. evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency/change initiatives; and
. capturing, sharing and promoting learning and good practice.

Page 5 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 81



Detailed report

Arrangements for planning and monitoring
efficiency savings are effective, but arrangements
for evaluating non-financial impact and for
sharing post-project learning are under-
developed

The Council has effective arrangements for planning and
monitoring the financial impact of its efficiency savings
programme

7 Our review found that the Council has effective and transparent planning
arrangements. The savings we reviewed were well considered and supported by
robust business cases and costings. Expected benefits were clearly set out and
approved by Cabinet. External consultants provided independent advice on the
corporate operating model and fleet review efficiencies; the Council investigated
the arrangements in place at other local authorities when assessing whether to
establish an in-house enforcement service.

8 We noted in our 2016-17 report on Financial Resilience at Flintshire that the
Council continues to refine its approach to stakeholder engagement. The savings
proposals reviewed as part of this review were supported by appropriate
consultation processes with a range of relevant stakeholders, including residents,
staff, trade unions and external regulatory bodies.

9 The Council adjusts its efficiency proposals in response to consultation feedback.
For example, corporate customer services was moved to a more customer-focused
portfolio following feedback on the proposed corporate operating model. Similarly,
the Council incorporated public feedback into the design of Deeside Library, and
public consultation on rural library closures led to expressions of interest from
community groups to take over operation of the libraries.

10  The Council's budget monitoring processes enable it to track the savings achieved.
Savings are monitored monthly and variances against target are reported in regular
budget monitoring updates to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. Programme Boards monitor each portfolio’s progress against
savings and budgetary targets. Boards meet regularly and provide senior officers
and councillors with the opportunity to review performance against savings targets
and to provide challenge.

11  Budget monitoring documents confirm that most planned savings were achieved
for the sample plans we reviewed. Some savings were lower than planned in the
first year due to later-than-anticipated project starts, but were achieved in full, or
expected to be, in subsequent years. Up-front investments by the Council have
either been recouped already or are expected from the cumulative effect of

Page 6 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 82



recurring savings. Further detail on the financial impact of each of the efficiencies
is set out below.

12  In 2014-15, the Council included £3.1m of workforce efficiencies in its savings plan.
We reviewed the senior management efficiencies related to the new, leaner
corporate operating model, which was expected to contribute £460,000 to the
planned savings total. Invest to save funding of £440,000 supported the upfront
costs of these changes, such as exit costs. The revised Chief Officer structure
successfully delivered savings, achieving £605,000 in 2014-15. The Council
expects the annual savings against the previous operating model to rise to
£668,000 once all Chief Officers reach the top of the new salary scale. The new
operating model also led to a review of senior management support staff as part of
a wider review of administration staff; this generated further savings of £116,000.

13  Despite these achievements, the planned changes alone did not generate savings
of £3.1 million. But the target of £3.1 million was met by supplementary savings
arising from unfilled vacancies and additional one-off efficiencies within portfolios.

14 Council plans to relocate three libraries to a new library hub in Deeside were
expected to generate savings on running costs* of £30,000 in 2016-17. The
Council received Welsh Government capital grant funding to co-locate the hub
library within the Deeside leisure centre building. Fit out costs of £40,000 were
funded from the existing library service budget in 2015-16. Efficiency savings
should exceed this investment in less than two years; a saving of £30,000 was
achieved in 2016-17, which the Council expects to rise to £50,000 in 2017-18.

15  The Council also funded the co-location of a library within Holywell leisure centre
using £120,000 from its Community Asset Transfer Capital Grant Fund to match
Welsh Government grant funding. The leisure centre was transferred to a
community group by Community Asset Transfer (CAT) and the Council now rents
library space from the community group. This arrangement provided a part-year
saving of £4,000 in 2016-17, which the Council expects to increase to £16,000 a
year from 2017-18 onwards.

16  The Council initially expected savings from these particular initiatives of around
£142,000 in 2016-17. Delays to some CATSs reduced the actual savings to
£105,000. The savings shortfall in 2016-17 was covered from reserves? and from
additional savings generated within the library service.

17  In 2015-16, the Council created an in-house enforcement agent team which was
expected to generate net income of £100,000 each year. The Council reported
savings of £70,000 from this initiative during 2015-16, attributing the shortfall to
delays in establishing the new arrangements. In 2016-17, the service was
expected to generate a further £60,000 of net income by undertaking enforcement

1 Running costs include staffing, rates, utilities, cleaning costs etc.

2 In September 2016, Cabinet approved the use of £200,000 of reserves to offset lost
savings caused by a three month delay to the timescales set for the CATs of two leisure
centres. £22,000 of this was used to offset library CAT savings.

Page 7 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 83



work for a neighbouring council. Monitoring documents show that after costs of
£210,000, the initiative generated net income of £179,000 — some £19,000 more
than originally anticipated.

18  Following an external review of its fleet services in 2013, the Council began
implementing recommendations to change the ownership model and operational
management and maintenance arrangements for its vehicle fleet. Planned savings
of £350,000 were achieved in 2014-15, with a further £175,000 of savings
anticipated during 2015-16. Delays with the procurement process meant that
changes were not introduced until October 2016, but the service identified
alternative savings to plug the gap. The fleet savings are generated through fixed
price contracts for vehicle hire and maintenance. This provides the Council with
confidence in the level of annual savings it can expect.

Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of
efficiency initiatives are not systematic, but are being
strengthened

19  The Council’s arrangements for monitoring and evaluating the impact of efficiency
initiatives on stakeholders are not consistent. However, the Council is taking action
to ensure that non-financial impact is evaluated more systematically. For example,
the chief officer team has established a culture of conversational learning, where
chief officers routinely discuss hot issues, share information and work
collaboratively. The Council intends to formally review the corporate operating
model with the new Administration, to ensure that it remains valid.

20  The Council continues to monitor and support community-run libraries. However, it
expects to better understand the impact of recent changes when the first annual
community benefit report is produced by the community groups involved, later in
2017-18. Existing evidence? suggests that the changes have had a minimal impact
on the number of library users. Anecdotal evidence also suggests that the changes
have attracted some new library users. For example, the co-located library in
Deeside appears to be attracting visits from leisure centre users who did not
previously use their local library. The Council intends to carry out a user impact
survey during 2017 to formally evaluate the impact of the changes on stakeholders.
The next annual assessment against Welsh Public Library Standards will
demonstrate the impact of the changes on library performance. The Council also
intends to formally review the CAT savings, including library-related transfers, at
the end of 2017-18 when the current business plans end.

3 Visitor numbers to enclosed areas of Deeside library are approximately 9% lower than
combined visits to the three relocated libraries in the prior year. Although visits to the
open area of the library are not recorded, the Council conservatively estimates the total
number of visits to both the open and enclosed areas of the library as 5% higher than
before. Source: Flintshire County Council

Page 8 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 84



21  The Council measures the success of its enforcement service by monitoring
collection rates for council tax and business rates. In 2015-16, following the
introduction of an in-house service, collection rates increased to 98%. This was the
highest collection rate in Wales that year and the highest rate ever achieved at the
Council. The Council believes that the in-house service also provides it with greater
control of the revenues recovery process, such as the ability to take a
proportionate response to sensitive cases.

22  Afleet project board manages the contracts and oversees progress in relation to
this efficiency. Services’ fleet requirements are regularly reviewed to ensure their
needs are met and that there is no detrimental effect on services or the public from
the changes to fleet hire and maintenance arrangements.

Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-project learning
are under-developed

23 Our discussions with officers confirm that informal reflection and evaluation takes
place during and after efficiency-related changes are made. For example, the
corporate operating model, with its portfolio approach to grouping services under a
single chief officer, supports shared learning across service areas. There are also
opportunities for managers to share learning and good practice at the Council's
regular Change Exchange and Academi* meetings. However, post-project learning
does not routinely happen and the arrangements for capturing and sharing the
learning are not always robust.

24 The evidence we gathered about the way prior learning informs future efficiency
projects has generally been anecdotal. For example, officers told us that:

. implementation of the corporate operating model has supported
development opportunities and raised corporate awareness of lean
management thinking. This, in turn, led to a corporate administrative staff
review and encouraged chief officers to adopt a lean approach when
applying workforce efficiencies within their portfolios;

. officers we spoke to acknowledged the importance of stakeholder
engagement to the success of a project and confirmed their intention to
continue refining the engagement process when planning future efficiencies;

. changes to the library network have provided the Council with valuable
experience of alternative delivery models. The success of co-locating
libraries within leisure centres has demonstrated the potential synergies

4 The Change Exchange is an informal senior officer forum for sharing local, regional and
national updates and case studies which have the potential to impact the way the Council
works.

The Academi is a senior management developmental network that provides opportunities
for senior officers to assist, analyse and challenge key projects. It enables collective
working on major strategies and internal practice sharing.

Page 9 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 85



between related services - an approach the Council intends to revisit in
future business plans; and

. delays to planned CATSs timescales have prompted the Council to create a
specific reserve to mitigate against future transfer slippages.

25 ltis encouraging to see examples of the Council using post-project learning to
influence future initiatives. Nevertheless, an over-reliance on informal
arrangements is unlikely to maximise knowledge transfer - particularly between
portfolios. A systematic process of evaluating efficiencies and of sharing good
practice is more likely to help the Council replicate its successes and avoid
repeating any mistakes.

Page 10 of 12 - Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme —

Flintshire County Council Page 86



Page 87



Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
24 Heol y Gadeirlan
Caerdydd CF11 9LJ

Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660

E-bost: post@archwilio.cymru

Gwefan: www.archwilio.cymru



mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
mailto:post@archwilio.cymru
http://www.archwilio.cymru/

Wales Audit Office

Good Governance report

July 2017

Executive Response

Appendix 4

The Auditor General for Wales undertook a review of the Council's Governance
arrangements specifically about how the Council determines significant service

change.

The report is generally positive with three Proposals for Improvement

There are no new statutory recommendations.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full compliance
with the spirit and detail of the report.

Listed below are the Proposals for Improvement along with our response and current

status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement

Response

Progress
Status

The Council’s governance arrangement

s could be strengthened by:

P1. Clearly defining the arrangements
for scrutinising the impact of individual
service changes

Pre-implementation

Integrated impact assessment
‘tool’ developed and being used by
portfolios

Tool provides end to end process
of defining service change, impact
of service change, risks and
mitigation, and transition planning
and evaluation.

Gateway approval processes built
into Integrated Impact
Assessment for all service
changes prior to consideration by
members.

Post-implementation

Efficiency monitoring (monthly)
Quarterly report as narrative of all
significant service changes to
Cabinet and Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Include selective reviews in
Overview and Scrutiny forward
work programmes

Page 89



Appendix 4

P2. Ensuring that Equality Impact Integrated Impact Assessment tool A

Assessments (EIS) that are produced | and Gateway approval processes

are of a consistently high quality specifically including _Equality_ Impact
Assessments will improve
consistency and quality of all impact
assessments and their
interdependencies.

P3. Reviewing, and where necessary | Further refining to improve: G

improving, the effectiveness of its
decision-making arrangements
explicitly in relation to service change.

- Consistently high quality business
cases

- Incorporation of evaluation post
implementation within business
planning methodology

- Evaluation of key changes post
implementation considered by
Programme Boards, Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny

- Annual review of the quality of the
budget-led service change
decision-making process

Page 90



Appendix 4

Wales Audit Office

Corporate Assessment Follow-up

July 2017

Executive Response

The Auditor General for Wales undertook a second follow-up of the Council’s

Corporate Assessment completed in 2015.

planning, Corporate strategies, risk management and workforce planning.

The report is positive with no further proposals for improvement.

There are no new statutory recommendations.

This review focused on Business

Listed below are the original Proposals for Improvement of the Corporate Assessment
along with our response and current status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement Action Update RAG
(P1-7) Status
Including overall lead.

P1

The Council should develop and | P1.1 Mapping of current service planning and G

implement a (more) consistent | strategies etc. to show strength and gaps

approach to business planning | (complete). Further analysis to show intentions to

that promotes the ownership by | strengthen arrangements (complete) with a full set

staff of key objectives and targets. | of operational plans being in place (for mid-
2017/18)

Lead: Chief Executive G
P1.2 Plans wusing the new performance
management solution (CAMMS) to be piloted
(09.15) with full roll out (04.18)

G
P1.3 Personal appraisal model is being extended
to build in service/ team service plan objectives
(from 04.16). Evaluation and implementation of the
new appraisal model (ongoing)

P2

The Council should improve the | P2.1 A review of report format, style and quality of G

quality of its reports to | presentation (complete).

committees and Cabinet to ensure | Improved format used for Cabinet and Overview

that: and Scrutiny reports (complete). The improved

e where necessary, reports | format includes use of executive summaries and

enable councillors to refer | fuller exploration of risk in assessing options for
easily to relevant policies and | decisions. Fuller use of hyperlinks are made
previous decisions and | avoiding publishing extensive appendices where
discussions this can be avoided.

o key messages and

3

Page 91




Appendix 4

recommendations are clear and | P2.2 Updated report writing guidelines have been G
succinct; and produced and issued. Refresher report writing

e reports to scrutiny committees | training is being organised (complete)

include recommendations or
options that committees might | P2.3 Quality assurance systems for report G
endorse. approval have been implemented (complete and

being monitored)

Lead: Chief Officer (Governance)

P3

The Council should ensure that, in | As P1 above noting:-

implementing its revised P3.1 A single corporate resourcing plan is being G

strategies for People, ICT, developed (by summer 2016) as part of the suite

Finance and Asset Management: of key corporate documents. This plan will prioritise

e their financial implications feed | the allocation of corporate resources for change

into the medium-term financial | projects (replaced by changes to corporate
plan; and business planning arrangements and review of
e the links between the core strategies).
strategies are fully considered G
so that specialist staff are P3.2 Set of 7 Programme Boards (for officer
available when required. portfolios where significant change needs to be
led, co-ordinated and managed) all now meeting

Lead: Chief Executive and settled with good evidence of impact.
(complete).

G
P3.3 A comprehensive and more usable Medium
Term Financial Strategy in a new graphic format
has been published for 2015 and 2016 in 2 parts.
(complete) This is being updated for 2017.

P4

Group Leaders should strongly P4.1 A review of the member development G

encourage members to take programme is ongoing with the aim of having a

advantage of the Member broader offer for members in partnership with the

Development Scheme. Welsh Local Government Association. (ongoing)

Lead: Chief Officer (Governance) P4.2 Group Leaders have been requested to A
take-up training opportunities amongst their
respective groups (ongoing)

P5

The Council should take the P5.1 A Task and Finish Group set up by the G

opportunity of its review of scrutiny | Constitution Committee has reviewed the number

structures to ensure that Overview | and terms of reference of Overview and Scrutiny

and Scrutiny committees can Committees. The Group reported to the Annual

add real value to Council decision- | General Meeting of the Council and the new

making by aligning agendas more | Overview and Scrutiny Committees are in place

explicitly to Council priorities and (complete).

risks.

P5.2 Forward work programmes are being G

Lead: Chief Officer (Governance)

developed to include major and higher risk annual
budget proposals which require monitoring and
assessment of impact, major service reviews
included in the budget, and periodic review of the
achievement of improvement priorities. Report
formats are being reviewed as P2 above to make

Page 92




Appendix 4

reports more purposeful (ongoing)

P5.3 More purposeful Forward Work
Programmes; reports with 4  typologies G
(information, assurance, policy development or
options consultation) and improved report format;
clearer protocol on pre-decision scrutiny for policy
development and options consultation type items);
purposeful recommendations and more managed
chairing and debate of meetings, including precise
summing up, geared toward the report purpose;
training and information support programme for
scrutiny; periodic committee self-assessments with
feedback to chair and reporting officers on areas
for improvement. A special meeting of the six new
chairs was convened to plan immediately post-
AGM (05.15). A Member workshop was held to
develop Forward Work Programmes (07.15).
Ongoing liaison with Overview and Scrutiny Chairs

(ongoing)

P6
The Council should: P6.1  Following an earlier internal review of risk G
e adopt a consistent approach to | management led by Internal Audit a number of
managing risk, ensuring that actions are in train to implement the
all staff involved use a similar recommendations for the organisation to be more

approach to record impact, consistent and effective in the identification and
likelihood and mitigating reporting of risk at strategic, operational, project
actions; and and partnership levels. P1 and P3 above will
e apply this approach to its future | contribute. The most recent Internal Audit review
savings plans provides a ‘“reasonable” level of assurance
(ongoing).
Lead: Chief Executive
P7
The Council should ensure a P7.1 The new appraisal model (as P1.3) has G
consistent approach to workforce | been run for all senior managers and has worked
planning and use the results to through the rest of the organisation. Intelligence
inform future reductions in staff from this renewed appraisal programme will inform
the training and development programme, talent
Lead: Chief Executive recognition, retention and progression. Evaluation

of the appraisal model and further development
has taken place (ongoing).

P7.2 Workforce planning risks have been
assessed in each Chief Officer portfolio area as G
part of the revised People Strategy (ongoing)

Page 93




Wales Audit Office

Council’s effectiveness of the efficiency savings programme

August 2017

Executive Response

Appendix 4

The Auditor General for Wales undertook a review of the Council's Governance
arrangements specifically about how the Council determines significant service

change.

The report is generally positive one new Proposals for Improvement.

There are no new statutory recommendations.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full compliance

with the spirit and detail of the report.

Listed below is the Proposal for Improvement along with our response and current

status of progress.

Proposal for Improvement

Response

Progress
Status

Introduce a more robust and systematic

approach to post-project evaluation, suitable for:

- evaluating the non-financial impact
of efficiency / change initiatives

- Integrated impact assessment tool
developed and being used by
portfolios

- Tool provides end to end process of
defining service change, impact of
service change, risks and mitigation
plus transition plans and evaluation.

- Gateway approval processes built
into Integrated Impact Assessment
for all service changes prior to
consideration by members.

G

capturing, sharing and promoting
learning and good practice.

Further refining to improve:

- Consistently high quality business
cases

- Incorporation of evaluation
implementation  within
planning methodology

- Evaluation of proposals
implementation considered
Programme Boards and Cabinet

- Overall effectiveness of decision-
making reviewed by Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

post
business

post
by

Page 94




Agenda Item 7

Sir y Fflint
'.E!EQE,%!EE“*

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 21st September, 2017
Report Subject Council Plan 2017 - 23
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets

Report Author Chief Executive
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council Plan for 2017-23 (formerly the Improvement Plan) for 2017-23 has
been reviewed and updated to reflect the key priorities of the Council for the 5 year
term under the newly elected administration.

The super-structure of the Plan remains the same as previous plans. The Plan
now has six priorities with sub-priorities. The six priorities take a long term view of
our aims for the next five years.

The Council Plan is published in a similar format to previous years: highlighting
objectives and actions and referencing national issues which could impact upon
achievement of the priorities. The Plan fits alongside the Medium Term Financial
Strategy for 2017-2020.

The Council Plan is in two parts. Part 1 is the statement of our aims and
intentions. Part 2 describes the targets and milestones by which the achievements
will be measured (This will follow when complete)

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the Committee consider the structure, format and content of the
“public” version of the Council (Improvement) Plan 2017-23 and feed back
to Cabinet prior to adoption by the County Council for final publication.

2 That the Committee consider the targets and milestones in the Measures
and Milestones document (appendix 2) the Council (Improvement) Plan
2017-23 and provide feedback to Cabinet prior to adoption by the County
Council for final publication.

Page 95



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | Council Plan 2017-23

1.01 | It is a statutory requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 (the Measure) to set objectives and to publish a form of Council Plan,
and for the full County Council to adopt the Plan.

1.02 | The title of ‘Improvement’ Plan has been changed to ‘Council’ Plan as a
more fitting term.

1.03 | Improvement Objectives and an accompanying Improvement Plan were

first set and adopted by the Council in 2011. For the 2013-14 Plan the
Council thoroughly reviewed the priorities. The Council re-set its aims with
clearer outcome-based measures. This approach continued through to
2016-17. The objectives have again been reviewed given that it is a newly
elected Council and the Well-being for Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 is in being.

This review has resulted in a revised set of six priorities supported by a
structure of sub-priorities as endorsed by Cabinet:-

Priority: Supportive Council

Sub-Priorities:
Appropriate and Affordable Homes
Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes
Protecting people from Poverty
Independent Living
Integrated Community Social & Health Services
Safeguarding

Priority: Ambitious Council

Sub-Priority:
Business Sector Growth and Regeneration

Priority: Learning Council

Sub-Priority:
High Performing Education

Priority: Green Council

Sub-Priorities:
Sustainable Development & Environmental Management
Safe and Sustainable Travel Services

Priority: Connected Council

Sub-Priority:
Resilient Communities

Page 96




Priority: Serving Council

Sub-Priority:
Effective Resource Management

1.04

The Plan format remains largely unchanged, as it has been well received
and commented upon favourably. The main change has been the
amalgamation of priorities from eight to six. National policy issues have
been updated and listed within each sub-priority. These are issues over
which we have little control and which may restrict enable or successful
and or timely delivery of our priorities. The Plan is linked to the Medium
Term Financial Strategy for 2017-2020.

1.05

For 2017-18 a review of the current priorities and sub-priorities has been
undertaken with the aim of setting: -

. priorities that continue for sustained attention e.g. “New social and
affordable homes”;

. priorities which could be broadened e.g. “Regional Economic
Growth Deal”;

. priorities which could be merged e.g. “Housing” and Living Well”

. emerging priorities e.g. Food poverty, Early Help Hub and Youth
Council establishment.

Sub-priorities have also been set to take into account Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny priorities, priorities of partners, public views, service
demands, and national legislation and policy.

1.06

For each sub-priority for 2017-18 there has been a review based on:-

. the reasoning for the priority status;
. what we will do and how we will measure achievement; and
. the risks that will need to be managed.

1.07

The Council Plan in totality is presented as two documents; firstly the
public version of our statements of intent and, secondly, the targets and
milestones on which achievement will be measured (Appendix 2).

These targets and milestones in the “How we Measure” document are
being considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees prior to final
agreement by Cabinet. This will be the document that is used by Cabinet
and Overview and Scrutiny Committees to monitor progress during the
year.

1.08

The final Council Plan will be available as a web-based document
published on the website before the end of September following adoption
by the County Council.

Page 97




2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | Resource implications have been considered during preparation of the
Medium Term Financial Strategy and will continue to be monitored during
the regular budget monitoring and financial planning arrangements.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | All Overview and Scrutiny Committees will have had the opportunity to
consider and review the content of the draft Plan priorities including the
opportunity to scrutinise measures and targets set for 2017-18. A
summary of the considerations will be appended in the September Cabinet
and County Council reports.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | Delivery of the Plan objectives is risk managed within each of the sub
priorities of the Council Plan and monitored and reported against quarterly
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.
The risks to the statutory requirements of the Plan include: not publishing
the plan within statutory timescales and, not adhering to the prerequisite
content.
Both these risks are managed through adherence to well established
procedures for publishing the Plan and ensuring that the content of the
Plan reflects the requirements of the Measure.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Council Plan 2017-18.
Appendix 2: How achievements will be measured

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong, Corporate Business and
Communications Executive Officer

Telephone: 01352 702740

E-mail: Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 98



mailto:Karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Objectives and publish a Plan.

7.02 | Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a
forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a
given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to
meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

Page 99




This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire County Council

Council Plan 2017 to 2023

Page 101



Contents

Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s Plan for 2017 t0 2023 ......cccuiiiie et eteee e e ree e e aree e e e 3
Setting Our Priorities and Judging our PErforManCe ........ccuiiiiiiiiiie it e e e s rre e e aaaeee s 4
Priorities for the 2017/18 COUNCIH PlaN.....ccuuiiiiirieeeieeieee ettt e et e e e s sttt e s s s sbteessssaaeeesssssaeeesssraeessssnraes 5
Following the Plan — AN EQSY GUILE .....ccii ittt ettt e e s et e e e s ae e e e s sabae e e e snbeeeeesnnreeas 6
What's Changed fOr 2007/18% ......ue oottt et e e et e e e tee e e tteeeeaaeeeeteeeeteeeenteeeeteeeentesensreeans 6
Regulation, AUt and INSPECLION .....uuiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e et te e e e e s bt e e e e e abaeeaeesbaeeesesbeeeeeannsnnas 7
Other AUdit / REBUIATONY ACTIVITY ..ocviiiiiieiciie ettt ettt ettt e e tte e e ta e e s tee e ebeeesabeeesareeesaseeensseesnsseeanns 7
How Consultation INfOrmMS U PIan........coeiii ittt ettt st e st sabe e s areesnees 7
Council Plan and ‘How we measure aChieVemMENT ..........cooiieiiiiiiiiiee ettt e s e e 8

Priority: SUPPOIrtIVE COUNCIL..........ooiii e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s s nabareeeeeeeeeesensannrennnees 9
Sub-Priority: Appropriate and Affordable HOMES ................ooooiiiiii i 9
Sub-Priority: Modern, Efficient and Adapted HOMES .............cccuiiiiiiiiii i 11
Sub-Priority: Protecting people from POVErtY............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13
Sub-Priority: INdependent LiVING.............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e s e e ssbae e e e ssbaee e s snnreee s 16
Sub-Priority: Integrated Community Social & Health Services.............ccccceiiiiiiiii e, 18
SUb-Priority: SAfEGUAIAING .........ceiiiiiie e e e e e et e e e e ta e e e e e naaae e e e entaeeeeaaareaes 20

Priority: AMDBItIOUS COUNCGIL..........oooiiiiiiiiieeeee et e e e e e e e e e e e ertabbareeeeeeeeessssassssaseeeaaeeeesnsnnsens 22
Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth and Regeneration .............ccccccuviiiiiiiiiii e 22

Priority: Learning COUNCIL..............oooiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s e aae bt e eeeeeeaeeesannssbaaseeeeeaesssnnnnsnns 25
Sub-Priority: High Performing EQUCAtION ........ccoouiiiiiiiiiiiecier ettt st siae e sbe e e st s enateesnree s 25

Priority: Green COUNCIL..............ooiiiic e e e et e e e et e e e e e ta e e e e sssbaeeessssaaeeeeanssaeesennnsneeean 29
Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management ..............ccccccceeeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e, 29
Sub-Priority: Safe and sustainable travel SErvices ..............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiic 31

Priority: ConNECcted COUNCIl..........oooiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e s e s re e e e e e aeeesenasnbaaneeeeeaeeesannnnens 33
Sub-Priority: Resilient COMMUNILIES ............ccuiiiiiiiiii e e e e e et ee e s e eabre e e e esareeeas 33

Priority: SErving COUNCIL.............ooi i e e e e et e e e st e e e e s s sbreeeesssaaeeesassraeeseanneneaaan 36
Sub-Priority: Effective Resource Management ...............cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee st essree e sraee e s sbee e e s abae e e e snneeas 36

Statement Of RESPONSIDIILY ...cccii it e e e e e e e e e s ee e e e e e e e s essnnnbreaeeeeaaaeean 39

Page 102



Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s Plan for 2017 to 2023

The new version of our Council Plan sets out our priorities for the forthcoming five years of the Council and
what we aim to achieve. It does however focus on the objectives we intend to deliver during 2017/18. Flintshire
prides itself on being a council which performs highly for its local communities and one which is motivated by
a set of strong social values.

Flintshire is a well-governed and progressive council. We continue to perform well as a direct provider and
commissioner of public services, and as a partner to others. Our recent track record in key services such as
education, social care, housing, anti-poverty and environment show that we do deliver on what we say we will
do.

Everything we do is important to someone, so selecting a set of priorities for the year is never an easy task. We
have set six new priorities for the Council itself. The Council’s new themed framework of six priorities has been
developed to reflect the impact of the medium term financial strategy and protection of core services. Through
our priorities we aim to make a real and noticeable impact.

We are under huge financial pressure during this period of unprecedented austerity. Despite this we still aim
high on our priorities. If we fall short against our priorities it will be because of under-funding and not because
we are not committed or are not capable. For this reason we have changed the name of the plan from the
Improvement Plan to Council Plan.

The plan sets out the Council’s six priorities and detailed sub-priorities for action, where we aim to achieve
impact this year, page by page. An explanation for the choice of each one is given. In addition we have also
taken into consideration the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act by linking the impact statements to
the Council’s well-being objectives.

For 2017/18 a review of previous priorities and sub-priorities has been undertaken to set: -

e priorities that continue into 2017/18 for sustained attention;

e activities that can now be removed as completion of a time-limited piece of work which are now
embedded;

e priorities which could be broadened to include more strategic issues e.g. ‘growing the local economy’,
and sustainability of the social care market;

e emerging priority activities for 2017/18 e.g. managing local impact of the full service Universal Credit
(UC) roll out .

Over the five year life of the Council, 2017/18 being the first year, the full set of priorities will be underpinned
by the development of strategies. As these are developed new measures and actions will emerge in future
years.

We hope that you find the Plan both informative and uplifting. Your feedback on the Plan itself, and on what
we aim to achieve, would be very welcome.

/' .

Colin Evertt Aaronﬁ Shotton
Chief Executive Leader of the Council

Page 103



Setting Our Priorities and Judging our Performance

The priorities for Flintshire as a County are set by the Council and its local public sector partners. We work
together as a Public Services Board (PSB) combining our resources for the benefit of Flintshire.

The sub-priorities shown with a (shaking hands symbol) symbol denote those we share with our partners. These
have been selected for special attention where we believe that concentrated effort by the partners working
together will make a big difference to the communities of Flintshire. These sub-priorities currently?® are:

e Independent Living

e Integrated Community Social and Health Services

e Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities

e Safeguarding

Our Public Services Board partners include: Coleg Cambria, Natural Resources Wales, Public Health Wales,
North Wales Police, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Wales Probation, Flintshire Local Voluntary
Council, North Wales Fire & Rescue Service, Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr University and Welsh Government.

The Council has also set a number of priorities for itself as an individual partner organisation. Setting priorities
helps us focus our attention and resources on the things that matter most; these priorities are echoed in the
Council’s business plans. We are legally required to set priorities known as Improvement Objectives (under the
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009). We call these our Council Priorities.

In setting our Council Priorities we have to take a number of factors into account from Welsh Government
policy, to the expectations of our key partners, to our legal responsibilities, and to the views of local people.

We then set our targets, and judge our performance against them by using a wide range of information both
guantitative (performance judged by numbers) and qualitative (performance judged by feedback, the results of
consultation etc).

To ensure that we know how well we are doing in meeting the expectations for our priorities we have a series
of ‘measures’ which we keep under regular review. These performance measures are set out for each of our
priorities page by page. They are detailed more fully in the supporting document ‘How we measure
achievement’. Both these e-documents are linked together by hyperlinks.

Each of our sub-priorities is described individually on the following pages. We provide information about:
e The impact - what difference will be made
e Why the priority is important in 2017/18
e The national policy issues which impact on delivery of the sub-priority
e What we will do
e How we will measure achievement
e What risks we need to manage
e What some of our language means

We will let you know how well we have performed against our outcomes in two ways:
1) regular reports to the Council’s Cabinet and Scrutiny committees, and
2) next year’s published Annual Performance Report for 2017/18.

1 The priorities of the Public Services Board are currently under review as part of the development of the County’s Well-
being Plan, to be published April 2018

Page 104



Priorities for the 2017/18 Council Plan

GOT obed

Appropriate and affordable \

homes

Modern, efficient and adapted
homes

Protecting people from poverty
Independent living

Integrated community social and
health services

Safeguarding

e Effective resource
management

Business sector growth

and regeneration

Supportive

Council

Serving
Council

Ambitious

Council

Connected
Council

Learning
Council

Resilient communities

e High performing education

e Sustainable development &
environmental management

e Safe and sustainable travel
services




Following the Plan — An Easy Guide

The previous page sets out the Council’s six priorities and the sub-priorities which support them, where we aim to make a
positive impact in 2017/18.

Each standing priority is illustrated with a different colour. For example, SESEERINENSEITRET is m and Ambitious
Council is dark pink. This colour coding should make the priorities easier to follow as the reader works through the
document and also the supporting document ‘How we measure achievement’.

On the graphic illustration we have set out against each priority the impacts we aim to make. Under each impact we list
the sub-priorities where action and achievement will help achieve the impact. A sub-priority is simply a specific programme
of work on a given theme. Taken together, success in achieving the aims of a set of sub-priorities will deliver the ambition
for the bigger, standing priority of the same theme.

Every organisation has to prioritise its attention and its resources to make an impact. The Council has selected a number
of the sub-priorities for special attention in the 2017/18 Council year. Each of these selected sub-priorities then has a
dedicated page to itself later in the document.

For example on page 24 you will see the priority for Learning Council.
This has 3 impacts: -
e Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for learners of all ages.
e Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential.
e Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment and
achievement.

This impact has one sub-priority selected for attention in 2017/18. The reason for selection is explained on the dedicated
page (pages 24): -

e High Performing Education
What’s changed for 2017/18?

The Council Plan is now based on 6 new themes which are detailed as priorities. The impact statements are our Well-
being objectives which outline our commitment to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

6138

Page 106



Regulation, Audit and Inspection

As a public organisation the Council is regularly inspected to examine and challenge its performance and effectiveness. This
work is mainly undertaken by a number of appointed bodies including Wales Audit Office (WAQ), Estyn and the Care and
Social Services Inspectorate (CSSIW).

The Council received a favourable Corporate Assessment from the Wales Audit Office in 2015 and has sustained a good
level of progress and achievement in subsequent reviews and Annual Improvement Reports.

CSSIW’s performance review of Social Services (June 2017) notes sustained progress in meeting the requirements of the
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, with positive comments regarding the development of the Information,
Advice & Assistance Service and the Early Help Hub.

CSSIW’s focus themes for last year were carers and adult safeguarding; implementation of the new safeguarding thresholds
and guidance will continue as a priority into next year.

Other Audit / Regulatory Activity

The Council prepares an annual summary of all external audit and regulatory activity. The last one was produced in May
2017 and considered by the Council’s Audit Committee.

How Consultation Informs our Plan

The priorities set for this Council Plan (and the former Improvement Plans) were, from the outset, based on a wide range
of previous consultations in service areas with both partners and representative groups (e.g. community safety, anti-
poverty, education, economic development) and, in some cases, service users directly (e.g. housing).

There has been no single intensive consultation exercise on the Plan itself, by local choice, given this background. Elected
members, on behalf of the communities they represent, have contributed to setting the priorities of the Council and used
their representative role to test the relevance of the Plan against local public opinion. This has been facilitated through the
sharing of the draft plan with all elected members and through its presentation at Scrutiny Committees covering all service
areas. Feedback has been used to develop this final version of the Plan. In addition, elected members have been consulted
on the targets and milestones to be used to measure achievement of the Plan and ensure there is sufficient pace and
ambition.

Consultation on all parts of the Plan is continuous with stakeholders and Welsh Government. The Council remains open to
feedback on the plan and amending it at any time following receipt of feedback as well as through new service based
consultations or local and national policy issues.

7138

Page 107



Council Plan and ‘How we measure achievement’

These 2 documents are linked, with the ‘measuring achievement’ supporting document providing greater detail about
the target performance and milestones we have set ourselves. The documents are hyperlinked at the relevant pages, or
this table can be used as a guide.

Council Plan Priority Sub-Priority Impact Corresponding page
Page numbers in 'How
Numbers we measure
achievement'
9-10 Supportive |Appropriate and Affordable Homes Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality council housing of all tenures. 2-3
Council
11-12 Modern, Efficient and Adapted Homes [Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures 4-6
13-14 Protecting people from poverty Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability 7-11
15-16 Independent Living Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living
Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for 12-13
those who are highly dependent on care support
17-18 Integrated Community Social & Health |Enabling more people to live independently and well at home
Services
Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives 14-16
Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which
support quality of life in communities and for individuals and families
19-20 Safeguarding Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse
Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, 17-20
repeat crime and anti-social behaviour
21-23 VX0l TGITE Business Sector Growth and Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development,
(o], 4| M Regeneration employment and training sites
Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport 21-23
services, widening access to employment and training sites
Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities
24 -27 (ICETGILEA High Performing Education Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for
Council learners of all ages
Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential 24 -28
Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of
educational attainment and achievement
28-29 Sustainable Development & Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green
Environmental Management space
Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable 29-32
energy production
Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste
30-31 Safe and sustainable travel services Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport 33-35
services, widening access to employment and training sites
32-34 Resilient Communities Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting
Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services 36-40
Widening digital access to public services
35-37 Effective Resource Management Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation
with social values 41-45
Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services
Page 8] 38

Page 108




Impact: Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures.

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Prevent homelessness
e Meet the diverse housing and accommodation needs of the local population
e Develop more opportunities for people to access affordable rent and low cost home ownership
e Build the maximum number of Council houses possible as part of the housing supply solution

e Meet the Welsh Government target for all social housing to be brought up to the Welsh Housing Quality

Standard (WHQS).

National Policy Issues:
e Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016

e Local Authorities to be able to access grant funding to support new build affordable and social housing

e Sufficiency of resourcing to fulfil the duties of the Wales Housing Act
e Capital limits on borrowing for councils to build new houses.

e Maintaining the funding of Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) so that the council can meet the WHQS by

2020
e Maintaining current rent policy so that the council can achieve WHQS by 2020.

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Provide new social and affordable homes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Delivery of HRA and NEW Homes Business Plans by: -

» Building 79 new Council and 62 new affordable homes through the SHARP programme
» Increasing the number of properties managed by NEW Homes to 144 in 2017/18
» Delivering options for new, innovative low rent housing schemes for under 35’s.

2. Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) investment plan targets achieved.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Completing WHQS work schemes in line with the housing asset management strategy.

3. Develop solutions to the increasing frequency of unauthorised gypsy and traveller encampments
Achievement will be measured through:
e Agreed options appraisal identifying a range of measures to address this.

9138

Page 109



Risks to manage:

Homelessness will remain a growing area of demand due to the current economic climate

The supply of affordable housing will continue to be the insufficient to meet community needs
Department for Works and Pension’s Welfare Reform Programme, including Universal Credit full
service implementation which would place increasing demand on the Council for affordable and social
housing

Land supply for council housing construction

Capital borrowing limits for council housing.

What we mean by:

WHQS: Welsh Government’s physical quality standard for modern social housing.

NEW Homes: North East Wales Homes and Property Management provide a service to increase housing
options available to local residents.

HRA: Housing Revenue Account

Welfare Reform Programme: A strategy to manage the impact and implementation of welfare reforms in
terms of employment, financial inclusion, and integrated support for the most disadvantaged.

10 | 38

Page 110



Impact: Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures.

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Meet the needs of vulnerable groups including the need for adapted housing, Extra Care, Learning
Disability and transitional social care beds/units
e Improve housing quality in owner occupied and private rented sectors
e Reduce the number of empty properties in the County
e Provide good quality housing for residents and maximise funding to improve homes.

National Policy Issues:
e Practical implementation of Welsh Government’s Rent Smart guidelines across the private rented
sector in Flintshire
e Influencing the direction of national funding priorities for housing regeneration
e Funding levels needed to address poor housing quality in private rented and owner occupied sectors.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Improve standards within the private rented sector.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Working proactively with landlords and tenants to improve the quality of private rented
sector properties
e Ensuring landlords and letting agents comply with the Rent Smart code of practice.

2. Deliver the council’s housing growth needs.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of new affordable homes agreed through the planning system by 50
during 2017/18
e Delivering social and affordable homes through Welsh Government funding programmes
e Increasing the number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties back
into use.

3. Meeting the housing needs of vulnerable groups.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Reducing the average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant

e Increasing the number of Extra Care homes:
o Constructing Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) providing 70 new units
o Confirming and agreeing plans for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units

e Working strategically to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other

vulnerable individuals.

Risks to manage:
e Customer expectations for the timeliness of adaptations undertaken through disabled facilities grants
may not be met due to competing demands on resources
e Availability of sufficient funding to resource key priorities.

Page 111

11| 38



What we mean by:

SHARP: Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme — programme to build 500 new council and affordable
homes over the next four years.

Rent Smart: Service to process registrations and grant licenses to landlords and agents who are required to
comply with the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.

Transitional Social Care: Transition from inpatient hospital and community or care homes.

Extra Care homes: Development of high quality apartments for rent to meet varying needs of support, some of
which are specifically adapted for older people with memory loss or living with dementia.

Social Housing Grant (SHG): funds housing schemes that meet local needs and priorities as identified by local
authorities including providing housing for rent or low cost home ownership through new build or the use of
existing buildings.

12 | 38

Page 112



(shaking hands symbol)
Impact: Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Support people to manage the ongoing impact of Welfare Reform
o Help people claim the benefits they are entitled to
e Help people manage their financial commitments
e Reduce the risk of poverty amongst Flintshire households
e Reduce the impact of rises in fuel cost
e Help people access affordable credit
e Help people to manage their income, and provide support to access employment training.

National Policy Issues:
e Sustainability of funding for fuel poverty measures
e European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes affecting delivery of local targets
e Welfare Reform Act 2016
e Welsh Government approach to regeneration programmes.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Support Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the
Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

e Providing advice and support services to help people manage their income, including
supporting people to access affordable credit and local Credit Unions

e Timely processing of Housing Benefit claims

e Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional Social Security and Tax Credits to which they
are entitled.

2. Manage local impact of the full service Universal Credit (UC) roll out.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Achieving the Homeless prevention target
e Delivering the UC Operational board action plan
e Delivering Personal Budgeting and Digital Support Services.

3. Develop and deliver programmes that improve employability and help people to gain employment.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek
long term investment via a simple and cost effective programme of support

o Developing an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young
people to the labour market

e Increasing the number of local people who, following attendance on a programme report
they are closer to work or becoming ready to enter work.

13 | 38

Page 113



4. Develop and deliver programmes to improve domestic energy efficiency to reduce Co2 emissions and fuel
poverty.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents

e Providing advice and support to residents to enable them to switch to a lower cost energy
tariff

e Increasing the number of private sector and Council homes receiving energy efficiency
measures

e Securing Welsh Government ARBED3 Programme Funding by March 2018.

5. Develop a strategy to address food poverty.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards
addressing food poverty
e Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise by
December 2017.

6. Assist residents of Flintshire to access affordable credit
Achievement will be measured through:
o Develop effective partnerships with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking
services and affordable credit.

Risks to manage:
e Universal Credit Full Service roll out - negative impact upon FCC services
e Demand for advice and support services will not be met
o Debt levels will rise if tenants are unable to afford to pay their rent or council tax
e The local economy will suffer if residents have less income to spend
e Residents do not take up the energy efficiency measures available
e Available funding for energy efficiency measures falls short of public demand.

What we mean by:

Welfare Reform: A range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the Welfare Benefits
system.

Discretionary Housing Policy: Aims to provide a fair and consistent approach to help customers who require
further financial assistance with their housing costs.

Universal Credit Full Service roll out: a new way of paying benefits on a monthly basis; now being expanded to
cover all claimants.

Regional Economic Growth Bid: The proposals for economic growth in North Wales produced by local
government, business leaders and the further and higher education sectors.

Credit Unions: Regulated financial cooperative which and subject to broadly the same scrutiny by the Financial
Conduct Authority as any other bank or building society. Credit Unions are also part of the Government backed
Financial Service to provide loans and saving schemes.

ARBED 3 Programme: A programme to support our commitment to reducing climate change, help eradicate
fuel poverty, and boost economic development and regeneration.

14 | 38

Page 114



Impacts: 1) Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living.
2) Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for those who are
highly dependent on care support.

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Help people to live independently as they get older
e Support people with dementia
e Develop a model of support for persons with a disability which enables independent living
e Support families to support each other to live independently
e Ensure the sustainability of social care models.

National Policy Issues:
e Implementation of the Social Services & Well-being Act (Wales) 2014
e Registration and Inspection Act
e Living wage issues for care providers
e Care market fragility
e [nsufficient national funding to meet escalating social care costs
e Aging population locally and nationally
o Welfare Reform Act 2016.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Ensure care provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a good quality of life.
Achievement will be measured through:

o Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain
domiciliary care roles to support the wider market

e Supporting care home providers to ensure service sustainability and delivering progress for
providers

e Delivering dementia awareness training to the care homes workforce

e Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan to
support the quality and breadth of nursing provision

e Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service
sustainability.

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability, including those at risk of
isolation.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Adults who are satisfied with their care and support

¢ Implementation of a joint Community Resource Team (CRT) with BCUHB which is able to
offer advice and support through the Single Point of Access (SPOA)

e Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line with the
requirements of the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014.

Page 115

15 | 38



3. Improve outcomes for looked after children.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Supporting children in stable, local placements
e Strengthening partnership working with BCUHB to ensure timely access to health
assessments including CAMHS.

Risks to manage:
e Delivery of social care is insufficient to meet increasing demand
e Demand outstrips supply for residential and nursing care home bed availability.

What we mean by:

Registration and Inspection Act: Registration process to ensure all social workers and social care workers are
suitable for work in social care.

Welfare Reform Act 2016: A range of measures introduced by Central Government to reform the Welfare
Benefits system.

CAMHS: Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services — NHS — Provision of mental health services for children,
generally until school leaving age in the UK.

16 | 38

Page 116



(shaking hands symbol)
Impacts: 1) Enabling more people to live independently and well at home.
2) Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives.
3) Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which support quality of life
in communities and for individuals and families.

This is a priority this year because we need to:

e Work with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop Health and Social Care models
for the future

e Avoid unnecessary admissions to hospital and support early and successful discharges

e Co-ordinate the provision of support for service users more effectively with BCUHB and other providers

e Work together with BCUHB to support people with dementia within the local community

e Work with the Public Services Board to identify and engage families early, who are at greater risk of
escalating needs.

National Policy Issues:
e National trend for increasing demand on Children’s Services
e National focus on supporting integrated approaches between health and social care
e NHS Service pressures and capacity
e Parity of funding between local authorities and NHS funded provision.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of collaborative social and health
services.

Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of carers identified through the Single Point of Access (SPOA)
e Increasing the number of Carers that feel supported
e Evidencing improved outcomes for carers
e Developing the Carers’ Action Plan.

2. Further develop the use of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) to support effective discharge from hospital and
ensure a smoother transition between Health and Social Care services.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice when
leaving hospital
e Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons.

3. Establish an Early Help Hub, involving all statutory partners and the third sector.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Establishing the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families
e Reducing referrals that result in “no further action”.

17 | 38

Page 117



4. Further develop dementia awareness across the county.
Achievement will be measured through:
e The number of dementia friendly cafes in Flintshire
e Increasing number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire.

Risks to manage:
e Annual allocation of ICF - Short term funding may undermine medium term service delivery.
e Early Help Hub cannot deliver effective outcomes.

What we mean by:

Integrated Care Fund (ICF): Funding from Welsh Government being used to support older people to maintain
their independence and remain in their own home for as long as possible.

Looked After Children: Children who are being looked after by their local authority, including with foster
parents, at home with their parents under the supervision of social services, in residential children's homes or
in other residential settings like schools or secure units.

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS): NHS-provided mental health services for children,
generally until school-leaving age, in the UK.

Early Help Hub: The newly developed multi-agency Hub in Flintshire. The Hub provides a collective response to
support families with greater needs to build their resilience and wellbeing.

Step Up/Step Down beds: Step-down beds are used for people who are not well enough to move from hospital
straight to their home, but don’t need to be in an acute hospital bed. Step-down beds are usually provided by
care homes, and provide care for the interim period until the person is well enough to return home. Similarly,
these beds can be used as a “step up” for people who become ill enough to need care, but don’t need to be in
an acute hospital environment.

18 | 38

Page 118



(shaking hands symbol)
Impacts: 1) Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse.
2) Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, repeat crime and
anti-social behaviour.

This is a priority this year because we need to:

e Have a Council wide approach to safeguard and protect vulnerable people

o Develop further awareness and support for the Council’s approach to safeguarding including the
prevention of human trafficking, modern slavery and child sexual exploitation (CSE)

e Comply with the new codes of practice for Safeguarding within the Social Services and Well-being Act
(Wales) 2014

e Ensure the wider council workforce are aware of the Council’s approach to Safeguarding

e Develop a consistent approach to regional collaboration for Community Safety

e Support achievement of the regional priorities set by the Police and Crime Commissioner.

National Policy Issues:
e |Implementation of the Social Services and Well-being Act 2014
e Development of the National Safeguarding Board and structures
e Management of response to Child Sexual Exploitation
e Sustainability of short-term grant funded schemes.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address
safeguarding.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing referral rates from within Council services other than Social Services
e Completion of the online child and adult safeguarding module
e Council officers completing safeguarding awareness training
e Embedding processes and best practice across the council
e Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of
safeguarding coverage
o Implement the safeguarding policy across all Council Services.

2. Ensure that our response rates to referrals remain within statutory targets.
Achievement will be measured through:
o Meeting statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection.

3. Preventative approach towards Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).
Achievement will be measured through:
e Developing a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE
e Cascading of North Wales Police (NWP) CSE videos to all portfolios.

19 | 38

Page 119



4. Identify and address the signs and symptoms of domestic abuse and sexual violence.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Delivering the level 1 training programme for all Council employees
e Implementing training for Council employees to meet the requirements of the Domestic
Abuse and Sexual Violence (DASV) National Training Framework
e The number of incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence reported.

5. Strengthen regional community safety through collaboration and partnership arrangements.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Adopting and achieving the priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities Board Plan
through formulation of a local delivery plan, which also includes locally identified priorities,
and overseen by the Public Services Board.

Priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities Board include:
Domestic Abuse

Modern Slavery

Organised Crime

Sexual Abuse (Including Child Sexual Exploitation)
Delivering Safer Neighbourhoods

VVVYVYVY

6. Ensure we meet the requirements of the North Wales Contest Board.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the
Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015.

Risks to manage:

e Rate of increase of adult safeguarding referrals will outstrip current resources

e DolS assessment waiting list increases
Knowledge and awareness of safeguarding not sufficiently developed in all portfolios
Failure to implement training may impact on cases not being recognised at an early stage.

What we mean by:

Child sexual exploitation (CSE): a type of sexual abuse in which children are sexually exploited for money,
power or status. Children or young people may be tricked into believing they're in a loving, consensual
relationship. They might be invited to parties and given drugs and alcohol, and may also be groomed online.
Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014 (SSWB): An Act to reform social services law to make
provision about improving well-being outcomes.

Prevent Duty: Forms 1 of the 4 stands of the Government’s Counter Terrorism Strategy, known as ‘Contest’.
The object of this strand is to prevent individuals from within communities becoming radicalised. The Counter
Terrorism and Security Act 2015 place statutory requirement on local authorities to meet what is known as
‘The Prevent Duties’ necessitating the need for effective processes and mechanisms to prevent radicalisation.
Police and Crime Commissioner: The North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner is the local governing body
for policing in our area, and the role replaced North Wales Police Authority. The Commissioner has an
overarching duty to secure an efficient and effective police force, which demonstrates value for money and,
above all, cuts crime.

20 | 38

Page 120



Priority: Ambitious Council
Sub-Priority: Business Sector Growth and Regeneration

Impacts: 1) Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development,

employment and training sites.

2) Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport services, widening
access to employment and training sites

3) Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities.

This is a priority this year because we need to:

Continue to grow the local and regional economy

Secure infrastructure investment needed to facilitate growth both regionally and locally

Continue to build upon the success of the advanced manufacturing sector in Flintshire

Protect the economic viability of our town centres and rural areas providing focus on the wider
economic growth approach and, housing and employment impact

Work collaboratively to achieve key priorities for major infrastructure projects which will support
economic growth projects

Develop transport access solutions for our key employment sites

Continue to support and grow our tourism sector as part of the North Wales tourism and cultural offer.

National Policy Issues:

Confirmed support for growth deals following the general election

Devolution of powers to support economic growth in North Wales: opportunity and possible threat if
powers are insufficient and do not match those across the UK

Infrastructure investment to create the platform for advancing economic growth

Uncertainty over Welsh Government approach to regeneration

Recognition of the potential impacts on the local and sub-regional economy of global trading patterns
and workforce migration of the Brexit negotiations.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. The Regional Economic Growth Deal will be submitted to UK and Welsh Governments this year and will

set out the main priorities for economic development across North Wales.

Achievement will be measured through:

e Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales Economic
Ambition Board

e The success of the region in achieving a Regional Growth Deal Bid for Government Investment in
the regional economy

e Developing a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will directly
benefit Flintshire

e Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy

e Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh
Government with a successful planning application.

21| 38

Page 121



2. Guide the development of the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) and Northern Gateway mixed use
development site. Ensure that the developments maximise economic and social value for the County and
that they deliver the commitments made in the Regional Economic Growth Deal.

Achievement will be measured through:
e Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and Northern
Gateway
e Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers
e Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government
e Securing Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works.

3. Develop long term strategic approach to Council’s economic estate and land.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Completing a review of the Council’s economic estate and land.

4. Expand the scale and quality of apprenticeships both regionally and locally and make best use of the
Apprenticeship Training Levy (ATL)
Achievement will be measured through:
e Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal.

5. Develop a new approach to supporting town centre vitality and regeneration that maximises their role as
shop windows for the County and enables them to derive benefit from wider economic growth.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan
e Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use.

6. Ensure that the development of regional and local transport strategy and initiatives maximises their
potential for economic benefits, especially access to employment and tourism.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal

e Implementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development
programmes

e The performance of the local and sub-regional economy with public sector interventions in
investment.

22| 38
Page 122



Risks to manage:
e Infrastructure investment does not keep pace with needs and business is lost to the economy
e Support for businesses in Flintshire doesn’t meet their needs and fails to encourage investment
e The stability of the local and sub-regional economies
e The region having a sufficient voice at Welsh Government and UK Government levels to protect its
interests.

What we mean by:

Northern Powerhouse: A collaboration concerned with redressing the North-South economic imbalance,
aiming to attract investment into northern cities and towns.

LDP Strategy: Delivering sustainable development in the County from 2017 —2030.

Regional Economic Growth Deal: The North Wales Economic Ambition Board proposal to UK and Welsh
Governments to create new employment and housing.

Apprenticeship Tax Levy: The Apprenticeship Levy is a UK-wide employment tax introduced by the UK
Government that came into force on 6 April 2017. The Levy applies to all UK employers, and employers with an
annual ‘pay bill’ of £3 million or more will have to pay the Levy.

23 | 38

Page 123



Priority: Learning Council

Sub-Priority: High Performing Education
Impacts: 1) Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for

learners of all ages.

2) Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential.

3) Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment
and achievement.

This is a priority this year because we need to:

Utilise resources effectively to achieve the best possible educational outcomes

Support the national Welsh Government priorities to improve literacy and numeracy outcomes and
reduce the impact of poverty on educational attainment

Improve digital literacy and skills to deliver digital curriculum and enable access to modern employment
and economic development opportunities

Work collaboratively to develop national reforms to curriculum, assessment and professional
development models

Work effectively with partners across the region to secure efficiency and improved outcomes from
educational improvement programmes

Reduce barriers to engagement, ensure equality of access and participation opportunities

Make more efficient use of education resources through programmes of School Modernisation
Engage young people more fully.

National Policy Issues:

Sustainability of Welsh Government short term grant funding

Rationalisation of the provision, planning and accountability processes for education related specific
grants

Affordability of the 21st Century Schools programme

Simplification of the process for school place planning and provision

Additional learning needs reforms

Increase in national child care offer

European funding schemes

Capital provision for schools’ repair and maintenance

Inadequate revenue funding for schools.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Develop Education and Integrated Youth Services by:

e Continuing to work with the Regional School Improvement Service (GwE) to: -
» Provide support and challenge to all schools to achieve the best possible educational outcomes for
all learners;
» Identify and target support for those schools most in need;
» Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum reforms;
» Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy.

24 | 38

Page 124



Maintaining relative performance in Mathematics, English/Welsh first Language and Core Subject
Indicators at Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3

Improving outcomes in Foundation Phase

Improving outcomes in Key Stage 4

Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals

Developing strategies to support broader well-being needs of children and young people

Improving attendance

Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms

Implementing proposed reforms for the portfolio Pupil Referral Unit including relocation onto a single
site to improve quality provision

Developing a sustainable strategy for the Flintshire Music Service

Embedding Welsh in the Education Strategic Plan

Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above benchmark position
Further developing the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners in danger of
disengaging

Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our
democratic process.

Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 215t
Century School programme

Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings.

Achievement will be measured through:

» Delivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth
Services Strategy “Delivering Together”
Targeting vocational and employability skills
Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition
Realising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes

Measuring reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system

V V VVYV

Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people in the
youth justice system can access

v

Improving outcomes for targeted groups of vulnerable learners, e.g. Looked After Children and
young people exiting the Youth Justice System.

Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our
democratic process.
Achievement will be measured through:

» Creating a delivery plan for the launch of the young peoples’ council by October 2017.

Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 215t
Century School programme
Achievement will be measured through:
» Completing key milestones in the Schools Modernisation programme.

25 | 38

Page 125



e Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings
Achievement will be measured through:
» By maintaining an annual repairs and maintenance programme of school buildings through the
Council’s Capital programme.

Enhance skills to improve employment opportunities by:
Achievement will be measured through:
e Working with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximise the number of apprenticeships,
traineeships and work experience opportunities
e Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire
Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes
e Strengthening and cultivating attractive routes into education for the workforce
e Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM)
e Securing schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young
people’s work-related skills.

Implementing the Welsh Government pilot of the 30 hour childcare offer by:
Achievement will be measured through:

e Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan from October 2017

e The number of registered settings and the numbers of children accessing the offer.

Families First Collaborative Programme

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Implementation of a Collaborative Families First strategy from 2017 — 2020
e The number of people accessing the offer.

Risks to manage:

Those schools who do not recognise their need for improvement and external support

Leadership capacity does not match school needs

Impact of Additional Learning Needs reforms

Local employers and learning providers do not work closely enough to identify and meet the skills based
needs of the future

Sustainability of funding streams.

Numbers of school places not matching the changing demographics

Limited funding to address the backlog of known repair and maintenance works in Education & Youth
assets.

26 | 38

Page 126



What we mean by:

Regional School Improvement Service (GWE): School Effectiveness and Improvement Service for North Wales,
works alongside and on behalf of the Local Authorities to develop excellent schools across the region.
European Social Fund (ESF) Programmes: To increase the employability of local people (aged 25 and over) who
have complex barriers to employment.

Core Subject Indicator: Learners achieve the expected level in Mathematics, English or Welsh 1st language and
Science.

21st Century Schools: A national programme of funding to improve school buildings and environments.

School Modernisation: The process by which the Local Authority ensures there are a sufficient number of high
quality school places, of the right type in the right locations

Youth Justice Service: Aims to prevent children and young people under 18 from offending or re-offending.
Childcare Offer: Welsh Government initiative to offer working parents of 3-4 year olds 30 hours of funded
early education and childcare per week (up to 48 weeks of the year).

27 | 38

Page 127



Priority: Green Council

Sub-Priority: Sustainable Development & Environmental Management (shaking hands symbol)
Impacts: 1) Enhancing the natural environment and promoting access to open and green space.

2) Reducing energy consumption and using and developing alternative/renewable energy
production.
3) Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste.

This is a priority this year because we need to:

Address the requirements of the sustainable development principles of the Well-being of Future
Generations Act and Environment Bill

Balance the need for sustainable development with the protection of the natural environment

Continue to reduce our carbon emissions to meet Welsh Government targets and play our part in helping
to address the consequences of climate change.

National Issues:

Reduction of the Single Environment Grant whilst delivering the priority area of natural resource
management

Reliance on external funding for large scale developments

Government cap on financial support for solar farms

Capacity and funding to address flood risks.

What we will do in 2017/18:

1.

Improve, protect and enhance the built environment.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy.

2. Manage our natural environment and accessible green-space networks to deliver health, well-being and

resilience goals.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Reviewing the rights of way improvement plan
e Delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application.

Maximise the potential of the Council’s estate and assets for energy efficiency and renewable energy
production, reducing the reliance on fossil fuels.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Delivery of the renewable energy plan for the Council’s estates and assets which was adopted in
2015
e Increasing usage of environmentally efficient vehicles
e Reducing our carbon footprint across our Council buildings (non housing).

28 | 38

Page 128



4. Maximise the recovery and recycling of waste with a view to reducing the reliance on landfill.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Improving recycling performance
e Recycling rates per Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
e Modernisation of the HRC site network.

5. Strengthen regional air quality collaboration to help promote better health and well-being outcomes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Developing a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data.

6. ldentification of the Local Development Plan preferred strategy.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Adoption of the Local Development Plan to support Sustainable Development & Environmental
Management.

Risks to manage:

e Reduction of the Single Environment Grant

e Limitations on suitable Council sites with sufficient area for larger scale renewables schemes and
suitable connections to the electric grid

e Funding will not be secured for priority flood alleviation schemes

e Customer expectations around the delivery of flood alleviation schemes are not effectively managed

e Lack of holistic air quality data across the region leading to on cost for the Council to manage its own
review.

What we mean by:

Well-being of Future Generations Act and Environment Bill: Welsh Government (WG) approaches to
managing the country’s natural resources.

Single Environment Grant: A WG grant to support integrated delivery of natural resource management, waste
and resource efficiency and local environmental quality.

LDP Strategy: Delivering sustainable development in the County from 2017 —2030.

Local Heritage Strategy: To ensure that the distinct heritage of Flintshire County is fully appreciated and
recognised, and enhanced for the overall benefit of the community.

ESD Grant (Environment and Sustainable Development): A Welsh Government grant to support integrated
delivery of natural resource management, waste & resource efficiency and local environmental quality.
Civic Amenity Site Network: A network of collection spaces at fixed locations to increase recycling and raise
awareness of the positive impact of selective collection.

Single Air Quality Review and Assessment: A strategy which aims to protect people’s health and the
environment under the provisions of the Environment Act 1995

29| 38
Page 129



Priority: Green Council
Sub-Priority: Safe and sustainable travel services

Impact: Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and transport services, widening
access to employment and training sites.

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Enable people to access key services and link communities across Flintshire
e Minimise congestion and delays on our highway network
e Maximise the benefits of available funding

Include local transport solutions in the regional Economic Growth Deal bid.

National Policy Issues:
e Uncertainty of future grant funding
e Rail franchise renewal
e Impact of major road and rail infrastructure decisions
e Reductions in bus subsidies
e Outcomes of regional Economic Growth Bid deal.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Access and use available grant funding to support Council priorities for accessing employment, health,
leisure and education.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Successfully delivering projects and services through national grant funded schemes
o Local transport fund
o Rural Communities and Development Fund
o Road Safety
o Safe Routes
o Bus Service Support Grant
o Active Travel integrated network map
e Development of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects.

2. Prioritise the Council’s road infrastructure for repairs and maintenance and implement programmes of
work within available funding in order to improve the resilience, efficiency and reliability of the
transport network.

Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring the condition of the highway’s infrastructure
e Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards and raise the
standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s network
e Delivery of the Highways Asset Management Plan.

30 | 38

Page 130



3. Work closely with the communities to develop innovative and sustainable community based transport
schemes.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Development of community based transport schemes within available funding
e Developing and supporting community based transport schemes to complement the core network
of bus services.

4. Deliver a compliant, safe and integrated transport service.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of financially compliant contracts
e Increasing the number of safety compliant checks
e Ensure safety compliant checks for transport services are maintained.

Risks to manage:
e Sufficient funding to ensure our highways infrastructure remains safe and capable of supporting
economic growth
e Sufficient funding will not be found to continue to provide subsidised bus services.
e Supply chain resilience
e Adverse weather conditions on the highway network
e Lack of community support for transport options.

What we mean by:

Infrastructure: Facilities, systems, sites and networks that are necessary for the County to function.

“Active Travel”: Walking or cycling as an alternative means to motorised transport for the purpose of making
every day journeys.

Community Transport: Passenger transport schemes which are owned and operated by local community
groups.

Commercial bus services: Following changes made in the 1980s, the majority of local bus services in Wales are
commercially operated by bus companies.

Regional Economic Growth Deal bid: the North Wales Economic Ambition Board proposal to UK and Welsh
Governments to create new employment and housing.

31|38

Page 131



Priority: Connected Council

Sub-Priority: Resilient Communities (shaking hands symbol)
Impact: 1) Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting.
2) Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public services.

3) Widening digital access to public services.

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Build on what has been completed in 2016/17 with support for local communities. In year two this will
concentrate on:

» Developing the community and social sectors to support local communities to be more self-
sufficient

» Creating alternative delivery models within the community and social sector to sustain valued
public services

» Developing social enterprises, who are able to act for the benefit of local communities and create
both employment and economic opportunities

» Realising social benefits in the community e.g. increasing volunteering and training opportunities
for young people; keeping local money in the community.

e Ensuring our Armed Forces Community and their families are recognised for their commitment.

National Policy Issues:
e Lack of support programmes for the development of alternative delivery models
e Role of Town and Community Councils in cooperative working and local governance as detailed in the
Local Government Bill 2015
e Strengthening of the social sector to be more commercial and less reliant on grant funding.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Build stronger social enterprises with the sector itself leading development of the sector.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Develop a strategy to grow existing social enterprises.

2. Grow the capacity of the social enterprise sector and Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) to become
more self-sustaining.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported
e Establishing two new social enterprises operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community
Asset Transfer Programme
e Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers.

32| 38

Page 132



3. Implement the Digital Strategy and resources to meet future customer needs.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill
levels
e Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise
the value of WG support to businesses in the County.

4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan
e Work with the third sector to increase its capacity to successfully bid for and undertake contracts
on behalf of the Council
e Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement contracts.

5. Enabling the third sector to maximise their contribution.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of volunteering placements.

6. Getting Flintshire active through partnership objectives via the Public Services Board.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing participation in activities that contribute to physical and mental well-being including
libraries, theatre and countryside
e Increasing community assets
e |dentity and equality of participation.

7. Ensure our Armed Forces Community and their families are not disadvantaged when accessing Council
Services.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant
e Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme
e Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support a 2 year programme.

Risks to manage:
e The capacity and appetite of the community and social sectors
e The willingness of the workforce and Trade Unions to embrace change
e Market conditions which the new alternative delivery models face
e Limitations on public funding to subsidise alternative models
e Procurement regulations stifling our ability to develop local community and third sector markets

o Newly established Social Enterprises and Community Asset Transfers failing in their early stages of
development.

33| 38

Page 133



What we mean by:

Social Enterprise: Businesses with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are mainly reinvested for that
purpose in the business or community.

Community Benefit Clauses: Benefits to local communities from major procurements e.g. training and
employment opportunities, community facilities.

Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs): New approaches to service delivery designed to sustain important
services and meet future need.

Community Asset Transfers (CAT): The leasehold transfer of a Flintshire County Council asset to an
organisation with a social purpose who plans to use it for the benefit of the local community.

34 | 38

Page 134



Priority: Serving Council

Sub-Priority: Effective Resource Management
Impacts: 1) Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector organisation with social values.
2) Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective public services.

This is a priority this year because we need to:
e Manage with reducing resources
e Continue to aim high despite reduced financial and people resources
e Make the best use of our capability and capacity in challenging times
e Have the right buildings in the right places for the right uses
e Make our money go further through smarter purchasing
e Achieve the highest possible standards of customer services.

National Policy Issues:
e Reduction in capital investment and resources
e Ongoing austerity policies
e Non-funding of new legislative and policy commitments.

What we will do in 2017/18:
1. Develop and implement a renewed five year financial plan that reflects anticipated funding, costs
and efficiencies to support strategic decision making over the life of the new council.
Achievement will be measured through:

Increasing achievement rate of the budgeted efficiency targets to 95%
Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022
Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment

Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios

Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators.

2. Through the People Strategy we aim to operate effectively as a smaller organisation.
Achievement will be measured through:

Improving attendance

Increasing the number of managers and employees attending and accessing stress related /
management programmes

Percentage of employees who have secured employment following completion of apprenticeship
training

A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plan

Attainment of attendance and appraisal targets.

35 | 38

Page 135



3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing efficiencies by exploiting
technology and making efficient use of local, regional and national procurement arrangements.
Achievement will be measured through:
e % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the
National Procurement Service (NPS)
e % of Council spend with Welsh businesses
e % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses
e % of Council spend with businesses within the Mersey Dee Alliance (MDA).

4. Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity
and competency to respond to Council contracts.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Development of a programme to support local businesses
o Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in
Council contracts
e Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally.

5. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Digital Strategy and Customer Strategies.
Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of services available online and via the Flintshire App
e Increasing the number of completed transactions using online services
e Responding to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of contact
online
e Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy
e Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

6. Delivery of key annual objectives from the Capital and Asset Management Strategy.
Achievement will be measured through:

e Critically challenging our current estate, continue with the programme of asset
rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient and sustainable to
deliver services

e |dentify and consider options available to fund capital expenditure that minimises the
ongoing revenue implications of historic capital expenditure of new and existing
investments

e Establishing effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of
outcomes and achievement of value for money.

Risks to manage:
e The scale of the financial challenge
e The capacity and capability of the organisation to implement necessary changes.

36 | 38

Page 136



What we mean by:

Procurement Collaborations: Ways of purchasing goods and services within agreed terms and conditions.
NPS — National Procurement Service: Welsh Government sponsored organisation established to procure
common and repetitive spend across public sector organisations in Wales.

Flintshire App: ios and android application to enable contact with FCC and find out about available services
Community Benefits: Benefits to the local community through delivery of Alternative Delivery Models and
procurement of services and works.

37| 38

Page 137



Statement of Responsibility

On-going review about the Council’s priorities and this plan is available through our website where feedback
forms are available for the public, our partners, our workforce and businesses. We would like to know what you
think about our priorities and those for the future. We would value your feedback and hope that you can spend
a few minutes to tell us what you think.

In the meantime our contacts for any initial observations are:

Corporate Business and Communications Team:
Tel: 01352 701457
Email: corporatebusiness@flintshire.gov.uk

38 | 38

Page 138



6ST abed

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Council Plan 2017/2023

How achievement will be measured -
Supporting milestones and measures



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Priority Sub-Priority S—
Supportive Appropriate &
SRl Affordable | Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures
Homes

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Provide new social and affordable homes.

Achievement will be measured through:
e Delivery of HRA and NEW Homes Business Plans.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Delivering options for new, innovative low rent housing schemes for under 35’s by March 2018.

. 2018/19
Y . Lead Baseline 2017/18 . .
8 Achievement Measures Officer Data (2016/17) Target As;_:_lratlonal
Q arget
' \Ihe numbers of new Council homes delivered through the SHARP
ramme 12 79 206
pg Chief Officer —
2The numbers of new affordable homes delivered through the SHARP Community and 0 62 6
programme Enterprise
The number of properties managed by NEW Homes 61 144 179

1 Aspirational targets are based on current business plans which may be subject to change for 2018/19
2 The aspirational target of 6 for 2018/19 reflects delivery of properties where definitive proposals are in place

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) investment plan targets achieved.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Completing WHQS work schemes in line with the housing asset management strategy by March 2018.

3. Develop solutions to the increasing frequency of unauthorised gypsy and traveller encampments.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Agreed options appraisal identifying a range of measures to address this by March 2018.

T T abed

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Modern,
Supportive | Efficient and . . . .
Council Adapted Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality Council housing of all tenures
Homes

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Improve standards within the private rented sector.

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Working proactively with landlords and tenants to improve the quality of private rented sector properties
e Ensuring landlords and letting agents comply with the Rent Smart code of practice.

Achievement Measures Lead Baseline 2017/18 Target Aszcz::tlils:lal

o Officer Data (2016/17) 9 P

Q) Target
ﬁ'ﬁa percentage of landlords and letting agents compliant with the Rent o o
Spaart code of practice Chief Officer — N/A 65% 70%

FAY . . . Planning and o o
The number of landlords that have complied with improvement notices Environment N/A 80% 85%
The number of tenants protected from unsuitable living conditions N/A 100% 100%

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available




Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Deliver the Council’s housing growth needs.

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Increasing the number of new affordable homes agreed through the planning system by 50 during 2017/18

¢ Delivering social and affordable homes through Welsh Government funding programmes

¢ Increasing the number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties back into use.

Achievement Measures Lead Baseline 2017/18 Target ASZ(:::t/iLial
Officer Data (2016/17) g P
Target
The number of new affordable homes provided through the planning 45 50 50
system
3 The number of additional affordable units provided through the SHG Cg'g:n?nfzﬁﬁ;_ o4 193 BC
programme and Enterprise
PAM/014 The number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty 38 38 28
properties back into use

cpT obe

3 The Social Housing Grant funding for 2018/19 is not known therefore the aspirational target will remain to be confirmed

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available




Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

3. Meeting the housing needs of vulnerable groups.

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Reducing the average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)
¢ Increasing the numbers of Extra Care homes and individual units:
o Constructing Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) providing 70 new units
o Confirming and agreeing plans for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units
¢ Working strategically to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other vulnerable individuals.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Confirming and agreeing plans by March 2018 for Holywell Extra Care providing 55 new units
e Develop a plan to address housing needs of adults with learning disabilities and other vulnerable individuals by March 2018.

Achievement Measures e RECINE 2017/18 Target Asztz:aat/il?‘nal
9 Officer Data (2016/17) 9 P
8 Target
PKM/MS Average number of calendar days taken to deliver a DFG Chief Officer — 248 240 230
. : . Community and
4
@e number of Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) units Enterprise 0 70 70
created
The number of Extra Care units provided across Flintshire Chief Officer — Social 111 180 240
Services

4 Aspirational target for the number of Flint Extra Care (Llys Raddington) units created is based on current business plans which may be subject to change for 2018/19

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Supportive | Protecting People . s _ -
Council from Poverty Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and employability

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Support Flintshire residents to better manage their financial commitments.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Assisting people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment Policy
¢ Providing advice and support services to help people manage their income, including supporting people to access affordable credit and local
Credit Unions
¢ Timely processing of Housing Benefit claims
o Assisting Flintshire residents to claim additional income to which they are entitled.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Develop a plan to assist people with Welfare Reform changes through the effective application of the Council’s Discretionary Housing Payment

LY Policy
g ¢ Providing support and guidance, though personal budgeting to help people manage their income, including support to access affordable credit
@D and local Credit Unions.
=
o Achievement Measures 2L EEallin: A AsZ(::aBtlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target g
arget
Number of days to process new housing benefit claims 20 20 20
Chief Officer —
Number of days to process change of circumstances for housing benefit Community and 8 8 8
Enterprise
The amount of additional income paid to Flintshire residents as a result
of the anti-poverty work undertaken by the Council £1.5m £1.5m £1.5m

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Manage local impact of the full Universal Credit (UC) roll out.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Achieving the Homeless prevention target
e Delivering the UC Operational board action plan
¢ Delivering Personal Budgeting and Digital Support Services.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Delivering the UC Operational board action plan.

Achievement Measures X EEalhe AU ASZ(:::éLS:\aI
Officer Data (2016/17) Target '.?.
arget

PAM/012 Percentage of households successfully prevented from 87% 89% 89%
begoming homeless Chief Officer —

5@1e number of people on UC that have received personal budgeting Community and N/A 590 590
sapport Enterprise

TE number of people on UC that have received digital support N/A 640 640

(@)

5 Aspiration targets dependent on continuation of funding and the number of people receiving Universal Credit

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

3. Develop and deliver programmes that improve employability and help people to gain employment.

Achievements will be measured through:
¢ Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek long term investment via a simple and cost
effective programme of support
¢ Developing an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young people to the labour market

¢ Increasing the number of local people who, following attendance on a programme report they are closer to work or becoming ready to enter
work.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

¢ Developing an employability proposal as part of the Regional Economic Growth Bid to seek long term investment via a simple and cost
effective programme of support by March 2018

¢ Develop a plan for an enhanced careers and guidance service for North Wales to match young people to the labour market by March 2018.

Achievement Measures R el AV Aszp(::aatlil?*lal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
—_— Target
) . :
I@nber of people completing programmes commissioned by the Chief Officer ~
; . L -2 Community and 323 400 500

Cauncil which deliver job and training outcomes E ;

N nterprise

»

~

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

4. Develop and deliver programmes to improve domestic efficiency to reduce Co2 emissions and fuel poverty.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Reducing the overall annual fuel bill for residents

¢ Providing advice and support to residents to enable them to switch to a lower cost energy tariff
¢ Increasing the number of private sector and Council homes receiving energy efficiency measures
[ ]

Securing Welsh Government ARBED3 Programme Funding.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

o Secure Welsh Government ARBED 3 Programme Funding by March 2018.

Achievement Measures LR SamClll AU Aszg::tlilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target P
Target

Aqqual reduction of domestic fuel bills for residents of Flintshire £288,000 £140,000 £250,000
T@ number of residents supported to lower their energy tariff N/A 150 200

TR number of people receiving the warm home discount Chief Officer — N/A 50 100

Th® number of people who receive a full healthy homes healthy people/ Community and N/A 500 1000
affBrdable warmth/HHSRS home visit and tailored advice Enterprise

The number of private sector homes receiving efficiency measures 227 140 200
The number of Council homes receiving efficiency measures 650 300 600

5. Develop a strategy to address food poverty.

Achievements will be measured through:

e Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards addressing food poverty

e Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise.

Achievement Milestones will be measured through:

e Developing programmes in partnership with the social and third sector to work towards addressing food poverty by March 2018

¢ Undertaking feasibility work for the development of a food-based social enterprise by December 2017.

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

10



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

6. Assist residents of Flintshire to access affordable credit.

Achievements will be measured through:
[}

Develop effective partnerships with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking services and affordable credit.

Achievements Milestones will be measured through:

Develop service level agreements with local Credit Unions to enable residents to access banking services and affordable credit by March 2018.

61T abed

11
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Priority Sub-Priority Impact

¢ Making early interventions to support healthy and independent living

e Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service provision for those who are highly
dependent on care support

Supportive Independent
Council Living

1. Ensure care home provision within Flintshire enables people to live well and have a good quality of life.

Achievements will be measured through:

e Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain domiciliary care roles to support the wider market
Supporting care home providers to ensure service sustainability and delivering Progress for Providers
Delivering dementia awareness training to the care homes workforce
Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan to support the quality and breadth of nursing provision
Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service sustainability.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

Py Agreeing the business model to increase direct provision of residential care and sustain domiciliary care roles to support the wider market by
© March 2019

@ Develop a plan to help support care home providers to ensure service sustainability by October 2017

5 Working with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) to develop an action plan to support the quality and breadth of nursing provision
O by, September 2018

e Delivering a strategy for independent sector domiciliary care agencies to support service sustainability by October 2017.

Achievement Measures R rEelii AV Aszp(:::tlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
The number of care homes who have implemented the new Progress for
) N/A 20 25
Providers Programme
The percentage of care homes registered on the programme that have N/A 50% 759%
achieved the bronze standard for Progress for Providers . ) . 0 0
Chief Officer — Social
The percentage of care homes that have achieved bronze standard who Services o o
4 ) . N/A 25% 35%
have also achieved silver standard for Progress for Providers
Sustaining existing care homes within Flintshire N/A 100% 100%
The percentage occupancy within Flintshire care homes N/A 95% 95%

12
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Support greater independence for individuals with a frailty and / or disability, including those at risk of isolation.
Achievements will be measured through:
e Adults who are satisfied with their care and support
¢ Implementation of a joint Community Resource Team (CRT) with BCUHB which is able to offer advice and support through the Single Point of
Access (SPOA)
e Ensuring that the workforce are equipped to provide person centred care in line with the requirements of the Social Services and Well-being
Act (Wales) 2014.
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Implementation of a joint CRT with BCUHB which is able to offer advice and support through the SPOA by December 2017.
Achievement Measures Sl 2kl AV Asi?::tlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
PW/024 Percentage of adults satisfied with their care and support 82% 85% 87%
g%% numper of extra hours provided for advice and support through the Chief Officer — Social 40 47 57
gle Point of Access Services
The Percentage of employees trained in Person Centred Care in line o o o
v\ﬁ the Social Services and Well-being Act (Wales) 2014 80% 100% 100%
3. Improve outcomes for looked after children.
Achievements will be measured through:
e Supporting children in stable, local placements
e Strengthening partnership working with BCUHB to ensure timely access to health assessments including CAMHS.
Achievement Measures el el AT Aszp(:::tlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
PAM/028 Percentage of child assessments completed in time 84% 84% 87%
F_’AM/029 Percentage of children in care who had to move 2 or more Chief Offlc_er - Social 13% 10% 79%
times Services
Percentage of children assessed by CAMHS within 28 days by BCUHB N/A 95% 97%

13
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
Integrated e Enabling more people to live independently and well at home
Supportive | community social Giving equal opportunity to all to fulfil their lives
Council and health ¢ Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners which support quality of life in
services communities and for individuals and families

1. Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of collaborative social and health services.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of carers identified through the Single Point of Access (SPOA)
e Increasing the number of carers that feel supported
e Evidencing improved outcomes for carers
e Developing the Carers’ Action Plan.

ievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
@ Evidencing improved outcomes for carers by enabling them to continue with their caring role by March 2018
@ Development of the regional Carer’s Action Plan by March 2018.

=
\W A |
> Achievement Measures e Eeaihe AR Aszcz::tlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target garget
Number of adult carers identified. Chief Officer — Social 867 900 1000
PAM/026 Percentage of carers that feel supported Services 67% 75% 80%

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

14



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Further develop the use of Integrated Care Fund (ICF) to support effective discharge from hospital and ensure a smoother transition
between Health and Social Care services.
Achievements will be measured through:
e Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice when leaving hospital
¢ Maintaining the rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons.
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Creating essential additional services such as Step Up/Step Down beds providing choice when leaving hospital by March 2020.
Achievement Measures L EEallin AU Asﬂ:::tlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target g
arget
PAM/025 Percentage Qf people kept in hospital while waiting for social Chief Offlcgr — Social 1.78% 1.78% 1.78%
care per 1,000 population aged 75+ Services
U
Q
3“('6 Establish an Early Help Hub, involving all statutory partners and the third sector.
Aehievements will be measured through:
Establishing the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families
¢ Reducing referrals that result in “no further action”.
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Establishment of the Early Help Hub to provide effective and timely support to families by October 2017.
Achievement Measures SodC Sa=al0c AR Aszcz:astlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target P
Target
Percentage of child protection referrals that result in “no further action”. Chief Cs)félrc\:l?ée—SSomal 37.6% 35% 30%

15
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

4. Further develop dementia awareness across the county.

Achievements will be measured through:
e The number of dementia cafes in Flintshire
e Increasing number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire.

Achievement Measures Sk LI A Aszcz:astlilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target ?
arget
The number of dementia cafes in Flintshire Chief Officer — Social 3 6 6
The number of dementia friendly communities in Flintshire Services 2 3 4

¥GT abed

16
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Priority Sub-Priority Impact
: o Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse
Supportive Safeguarding ¢ Making communities safe places by working with partners to prevent crime, repeat crime and anti-
'| . .
Counci social behaviour

1. Strengthen arrangements within all council portfolios to have clear responsibilities to address safeguarding.

Achievements will be measured through:

¢ Increasing referral rates from within Council services other than Social Services.

Compiletion of the online child and adult safeguarding module
Council officers completing safeguarding awareness training
Embedding processes and best practice across the council

Implement the safeguarding policy across all Council Services.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
*g Embedding processes and best practice across the Council by March 2018

® Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of safeguarding coverage by September 2017

Implement safeguarding policy across all Council Services by September 2017

Reviewing corporate service policies and procedures to identify breadth and depth of safeguarding coverage

g~ Ensure all contracts include appropriate obligations to promote safeguarding best practice by March 2018.
o1
Ol
. 2018/19
Achievement Measures Le_ad el AV Aspirational
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
Increased referral rates from services other than Social Services. . . . 3 30 30
: — Chief Officer — Social
The number of officers who have completed the specialist ‘AFTA Services 0 350 700

Thought’ safeguarding awareness training.

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

17



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Ensure that our response rates to referrals remain within statutory targets.

Achievements will be measured through
e Meeting statutory procedural targets for child and adult protection.

Achievement Measures G il AU Aszp(::astlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target T
arget
Percentage of adult protection enquiries completed within 7 days 74% 78% 80%
Percentage of initial child protection conferences due in the year and Chief Officer — Social 74% 95% 95%
held within timescales Services ° ° °
Percentage of reviews of children on the child protection register due in 08% 08% 08%
the year and held within timescales ° ° °
39_‘)’ Preventative approach towards Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).
Aghievements will be measured through:
g~ Developing a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE
g Cascading of North Wales Police CSE videos to all portfolios.
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Develop a corporate plan linked to regional work to combat CSE by October 2017
e Raising awareness of CSE for senior managers through Change Exchange.
Achievement Measures odC Sa=sne AT Aszcz:astlilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target P
Target
The percentage of portfolio senior management teams that have viewed . o .
the North Wales Police CSE information videos Chief Officer — Social N/A 100% 100%

Services

Further measures will be adopted for 2018/19 with partner agencies following development of a plan to combat CSE by October 2017.

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

18



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

4. Identify and address the signs and symptoms of domestic abuse and sexual violence.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Delivery of the level 1 training programme for all Council employees

¢ Implementing training for Council employees to meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (DASV) National Training
Framework.

¢ The number of incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence reported.

. Lead Baseline 2017/18 Ak
Achievement Measures Officer Data (2016/17) Taraet Aspirational
9 Target
The Percentage of employees who have completed the level 1 e-learning
training package to meet the requirements of the Domestic Abuse and N/A 25% 50%
Sexual Violence National Training Framework Chief Officer —
& Number of reported incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence IEIan'ning anc: 1502 N/A N/A
nvironmen

NUP@)er of Domestic Abuse incidents reported to North Wales Police 1101 N/A N/A
ngber of incidents of Sexual Assault reported to North Wales Police 401 N/A N/A

To%)upport the forthcoming Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence Strategy which is expected to be in place by March 2018
Welsh Government are intending to publish a set of national indicators across all public services.

N

5. Strengthen regional community safety through collaboration and partnership arrangements.

Achievements will be measured through:

e Adopting and achieving of the priorities of the North Wales Safer Communities’ Board Plan through; formulation of a local delivery plan, which also
includes locally identified priorities, and overseen by the Public Services Board by March 2018.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Development of a local delivery plan, which also includes locally identified priorities, and overseen by the Public Services Board by March 2018.

6 Trend analysis will be monitored throughout the year against reported incidents of Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence

19
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

6. Ensure we meet the requirements of the North Wales Contest Board.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Develop a plan to identify and monitor progress of the prevent duties as outlined within the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 by December
2017.

8GT abed

20
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business development, employment and
Busi S training sites
usiness Sector Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites and transport services, widening access

Ambitious

. Growth and
Council

Regeneration to employment and training sites

Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment opportunities

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. The Regional Economic Growth Deal will be submitted to UK and Welsh Governments this year and will set out the main priorities for

economic development across North Wales.

Achievements will be measured through:
e Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales Economic Ambition Board

e The success of the region in achieving a Regional Growth Deal Bid for Government Investment in the regional economy

« UDeveloping a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will directly benefit Flintshire

«c Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy

¢ (D Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh Government with a successful planning application.

H
Ac@vement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Contributing to the development of a new governance framework for the North Wales Economic Ambition Board by October 2017
e Securing a Regional Growth Deal Bid for Government Investment in the regional economy by March 2018
e Developing a strategy for delivery of the parts of the Regional Growth Deal which will directly benefit Flintshire by October 2017
e Developing the Local Development Plan (LDP) economic strategy by October 2017
e Supporting the development of the Wales Advanced Manufacturing Institute by Welsh Government with a successful planning application by March

2018.

21

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Guide the development of the Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) and Northern Gateway mixed use development site. Ensure that
developments maximise economic and social value for the County and that they deliver the commitments made in the Regional Economic

Growth Deal.

Achievements will be measured through:
¢ Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and Northern Gateway
e Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers
e Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government
e Securing Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Providing clear and responsive guidance to potential developers within the DEZ and Northern Gateway
e Seeking a revised strategic framework from the Northern Gateway developers by March 2018
o Completing phase 1 enabling works by Welsh Government by April 2018
e -ySecuring Welsh Government agreement for phase 2 and / or phase 3 enabling works by December 2018.

3. “evelop long term strategic approach to Council’s economic estate and land.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Completing a review of the Council’'s economic estate and land.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Review of the Council’'s economic estate and land by March 2018.

4. Expand the scale and quality of apprenticeships both regionally and locally, and make the best use of the Apprenticeship Training Levy

(ATL).
Achievement will be measured through:
e Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Ensuring apprenticeships feature in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal by July 2017.

22
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

5. Develop a new approach to supporting town centre vitality and regeneration that maximises their role as shop windows for the County

and enables them to derive benefit from wider economic growth.
Achievements will be measured through:
o Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan
¢ Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Developing and agreeing a multi-agency plan by March 2018
¢ Identifying options to develop new land uses in town centres, especially for residential use by December 2018.

6. Ensure that the development of regional and local transport strategy initiatives maximise the potential for economic benefits, especially

access to employment and tourism.
Achievements will be measured through:
¢ Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal
¢ Uimplementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development programmes
o% The performance of the local and sub-regional economy with public sector interventions in investment.

)
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e O)Ensuring that transport infrastructure features in the Regional Economic Growth Deal proposal by July 2018
¢ Implementing the Deeside Plan to co-ordinate transport and economic development programmes by December 2017.

Measures are to be adopted by all partner councils as part of the Regional Economic Growth Deal Bid between November and March 2018

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

23



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Providing high quality learning opportunities, and learning environments for learners of all ages
Learning High Performing ¢ Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential

Council Education e Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels of educational attainment and
achievement

What we will do in 2017/18:

1. Develop Education and Integrated Youth Services.

e Continuing to work with the Regional School Improvement Service (GWE) to: -

» Provide support and challenge to all schools to achieve the best possible educational outcomes for all learners;
» ldentify and target support for those schools most in need;
> Develop the capacity of schools to respond to national initiatives and curriculum reforms;

@ » Improve skills in digital literacy, literacy and numeracy

«Q

o S\Maintaining relative performance in Mathematics, English/Welsh first Language and Core Subject Indicators at Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3
e odmproving outcomes in Foundation Phase

o I\:t'mproving outcomes in Key Stage 4

e Raising standards achieved by learners who are entitled to free school meals

¢ Developing strategies to support broader well-being needs of children and young people

e Improving attendance

o Developing an effective local approach to national inclusion reforms

¢ Implementing proposed reforms for the portfolio Pupil Referral Unit including relocation onto a single site to improve quality provision
¢ Developing a sustainable strategy for the Flintshire Music Service

e Embedding Welsh in the Education Strategic Plan

e Maintaining levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training above benchmark position

e Further developing the Youth Engagement and Progression work programme for learners in danger of disengaging

e Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our democratic process.

¢ Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School programme

¢ Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

24



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:

e The number of learners achieving or exceeding the expected outcome levels at key assessment points eg age 7,11,14 and 16

e Delivering the portfolio’s Education Improvement & Modernisation Strategy, GwE Business Plan and Welsh in Education Strategic Plan to achieve
key milestones

Delivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth Services Strategy “Delivering Together”

Targeting vocational and employability skills

Enhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition

Realising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes

Measuring reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system

Improving outcomes for targeted groups of vulnerable learners, e.g. Looked After Children and young people exiting the Youth Justice System
Create a vibrant Youth Council to provide meaningful input from Flintshire young people to our democratic process.

Developing and implementing a plan for the next phase of Schools Modernisation, through the 21st Century School programme

Improving the number of hours in education, training or employment that young people in the youth justice system can access; and
Maintaining a schedule of repairs and maintenance of school buildings.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

e Delivering the portfolio’s Education Improvement & Modernisation Strategy

e Welivering and embedding the Families First Programme and Flintshire’s Integrated Youth Services Strategy “Delivering Together” by March 2018
¢ (Qlargeting vocational and employability skills by March 2018

o CDEnhancing personal support, including coaching, mentoring and help with transition by March 2018

o El}{ealising the benefits of regional European Social Fund programmes by March 2018

o UWZreate a delivery plan for the launch of the young peoples’ council by October 2017

e Completing key milestones in the Schools Modernisation programme by March 2018

e Maintain an annual repairs and maintenance programme of school buildings through the Council’s Capital programme.

Achievement Measures R SEEeI AL Aszp(::aBtlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target

Target
PAM/003 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the o o o
end of the Foundation Phase (FPOI) 86.9% 89.9% 90.8%
Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals, achieving the o o o
expected outcome at the end of the Foundation Phase (FPOI) 71.5% 78.7% 67.8%
PAM/004 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the o o o
end of key stage 2. (CSI) 90.1% 91.3% 93.1%
Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals, achieving the o o o
expected outcome at the end of key stage 2. (CSI) 82.3% 74.7% 75.2%

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

25



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

PAM/005 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the 88.4% 90.9%

o)
end of key stage 3. (CSlI) 93.3%
Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals achieving the 76.2% 80.2% 82 1%
expected outcome at the end of key stage 3.
PAM/006 Percentage of pupils achieving the expected outcome at the
end of key stage 4. Level 2 inclusive threshold 5 GCSE A* - C incl E/W 82.6% 85.1% 86.0%
and Maths Chief Officer —
Percentage of pupils who receive free school meals achieving the Education and Youth
expected outcome at the end of key stage 4. Level 2 inclusive threshold 33.1% 38.6% 42.5%
5 GCSE A* - C incl E/W and Maths
PAM/007 Percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools 94.7% 95.3% 95.4%
PAM/008 Percentage of pupil attendance in secondary schools 94.3% 94.9% 95%
PAM/009 Percentage of year 11 leavers not in education, training, or 11% 11% 11%
enfgloyment.
P%:entage reduction in first time entrance to the youth justice system 12% 15% 20%
Thexpercentage of young peqp!e under 16 years old in the youth justice 71% 80% 90%
sy®em offered education, training or employment.
The percentage of young people a_ged 16_—. 18 in the youth justice 58% 60% 80%
system offered 16 hours of education, training or employment
The percentage of year 13 learners who complete level three courses in o o o
Maths within Flintshire Schools 27% 29% 30%
The percentage of year 13 learners who complete level three courses in o o o
Science within Flintshire Schools 16% 18% 20%
The percentage of attendance across the portfolio PRU 64% 70% 75%

Further measures will be included for 2018/19 following a review of attendance across the portfolio of the Pupil Referral Unit by March 2018

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

26



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

2. Enhance skills to improve employment opportunities.

Achievement will be measured through:

Working with the public, private and voluntary sectors to maximise the number of apprenticeships, traineeships and work experience opportunities
Increasing training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital programmes
Strengthening and cultivating attractive routes into education for the workforce

Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM).

Securing schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young people’s work-related skills.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

Develop a plan to Increase training and apprenticeship opportunities through the Futureworks Flintshire Apprenticeship Academy and major capital
programmes by March 2018

Develop a plan to strengthening and cultivate attractive routes into education for the workforce by March 2018

Embedding regional skills strategy for Science, Technology, English and Maths (STEM) by March 2018

Develop a plan to secure schools’ active participation in events and activities to promote the development of young people’s work-related skills by
March 2018.

T . 2018/19
2 Achievement Measures e REEne AU Aspirational
Q Officer Data (2016/17) Target
D Target
Ttgnumber of training opportunities created through major capital _ _
préGrammes Chief Officer — 32 9 9
: : : - Community and
The number of apprenticeships started during 2017/18 through major Enterprise 15 10 8
capital programmes

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

27



3. Implementing the Welsh Government pilot of the 30 hour childcare offer.

Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan

e The number of registered settings and the numbers of children accessing the offer.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Implementation of the Childcare Pilot project plan from October 2017.

. 2018/19
. Lead Baseline 2017/18 .
Achievement Measures Officer Data (2016/17) Target As[:;_lratlonal
arget
The number of registered settings to deliver the Childcare offer Chief Officer — N/A 122 128
Theynumber of children accessing the Childcare offer Education and Youth N/A 748 785

Atievement will be measured through:
¢ Implementation of a Collaborative Families First strategy from 2017 - 2020
¢ Number of people accessing the ‘offer’.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

e Develop a fully commissioned collaborative Families First Programme for 2017 — 2020 by March 2018
¢ Implementation of commissioned plan for delivery of the Families First Programme by March 2018.

. 2018/19
. Lead Baseline 2017/18 e
Achievement Measures Officer Data (2016/17) Target As|_c|>_|rat|onal
arget
The number of people accessing the offer Chief Officer — 7700 6200 6500

Education and Youth

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available




Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
e Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Adoption of a Local Heritage Strategy by March 2018.

Measures will be included for 2018/19 following adoption of the Local Heritage Strategy by March 2018

A!ievement will be measured through:

¢ -Reviewing rights of way improvement plan
o @elivering projects set out within the ESD grant application.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Reviewing rights of way improvement plan — draft plan available for consultation by February 2018

¢ Delivering projects set out within the ESD grant application including flood defence, biodiversity duty and green-space enhancement by March
2018.

Measures will be adopted and included for 2018/19 following a review of the rights of way improvement plan and, delivery of projects set out within the
ESD grant application by March 2018.

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

29



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:

o Delivery of the renewable energy plan for the Council’s estates and assets which was adopted in 2015
e Increasing usage of environmentally efficient vehicles

e Reducing our carbon footprint across our Council buildings (non housing).

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Delivery of Phase 2 of the renewable energy action plan (10 year plan adopted in 2015).

. 2018/19
. Lead Baseline 2017/18 .
Achievement Measures Officer Data (2016/17) Target Aspirational
Target
Percentage of environmentally efficient front line operational vehicles to N/A 80% 100%
E%? 6 standard. Chief Officer Street
Néber of street furniture and street light units replaced with LED Scene and N/A 6000 6000
lighting. Transportation
R;@JCG our carbon footprint across our Council buildings (non housing) 3.69% 4% 4%

30
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Aiiendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Improving recycling performance

¢ Recycling rates per Household Recycling Centre (HRC)
¢ Modernisation of the HRC site network.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Delivery of the Modernisation Programme of the HRC network by March 2018.

Achievement Measures RN EEOIE At Aszp(::astlils:ral
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
PAM/030 Percentage of waste reused, recycled or composted Chief Officer Street 68.13% 68% 68%
Scene and
Average recycling rate across all HRC sites Transportation 77% 80% 90%

AéRievement will be measured through:
o EDeveloping a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data.

(o)
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
o Developing a regional strategic approach to the collation of air quality data by March 2018.

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 by all partner councils as part of the development plan for a regional approach to the collation of air quality data
March 2018

31
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
e Adoption of the Local Development Plan to support Sustainable Development & Environmental Management.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Adoption of the Local Development Strategy to support Sustainable Development and Environmental Management by March 2018.

Measures will be developed for 2018/19 following adoption of the Local Development Strategy by March 2018

0.7 abed

32
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
e Successfully delivering projects and services through national grant funded schemes
o Local transport fund
o Rural Communities and Development Fund
o Road Safety
o Safe Routes
o Bus Service Support Grant
o Active Travel integrated network map
e Development of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
» ©Submission of funding bids to Welsh Government by January 2018
o elivering of projects and services that have received successful funding by March 2018

o ~evelopment of sub-regional and Metro inter-modal transport projects by March 2018.
H

Achievement Measures R HEEel AU Aszp(::aBt/ilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target Target
” The number of projects and services delivered through national grant Chle;c%f:ge;n%treet N/A 6 TBC
funded schemes Transportation

7 The aspirational target is dependent on the level of national grant funding which is not yet known

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

33



Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Monitoring the condition of the highways infrastructure

e Delivery of the Highways Asset Management Plan.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Delivery of the highways asset management plan by March 2018.

Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

¢ Undertaking inspections to ensure reinstatements meet the required standards and raise the standard of works undertaken on Flintshire’s network

Achievement Measures — el AV Asi(::zastlilgrlal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target Target
PAM/020 Percentage of A roads in overall poor condition 1.5% 5% 5%
PQEI/I/021 Percentage of B roads in overall poor condition Chief Officer Street 1.3% 5% 5%
PADA/022 Percentage of C roads in overall poor condition Scene and 5.0% 7% 7%
= : : - Transportation
Pergentage of inspections undertaken to ensure reinstatements meet 14.959 149% 149,
th®Jequired standards e ° °
Achievement will be measured through:
e Development of community transport schemes within available funding
¢ Developing and supporting community based transport scheme strategies to compliment the core network of bus services.
Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Developing and supporting community based transport scheme strategies to complement the core network of bus services.
Achievement Measures e Eeaihe AL Aszcz::tlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target $arget
Percentage of community based transport schemes developed against Chle;(%frf:gearnsdtreet ’ 5 5
plan Transportation

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

34



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Increasing the number of financially compliant contracts

e Increasing the number of safety compliant checks

o Ensure safety compliant checks for transport services are maintained.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Development of a robust procedure for safety compliant checks for transport services by December 2017.

Achievement Measures e Eealine AU Asi)(::aatlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
Percentage of contracts awarded that are financially compliant Chief Officer Street N/A 100% 100%
Scene and
The percentage of safety compliant checks delivered Transportation N/A 100% 100%

¢/ T abe,

35
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Develop a strategy to grow existing social enterprises.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Develop a range of tools such as community shares that enable existing social enterprises to grow and develop by March 2018.

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following development of a strategy to support existing social enterprises by March 2018

v/ T abed

36
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Monitoring the level of efficiencies ADMs have supported

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

December 2017

e Reporting of community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers by March 2018
e Establishing programmes for adults with learning disabilities into secure paid employment by March 2018.

Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

e Establishing two new social enterprises operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme
¢ Monitoring community benefits delivered by Community Asset Transfers.

e Establishing two new social enterprises of a significant scale operating in Flintshire through the ADM and Community Asset Transfer Programme by

Mynydd Isa Community Centre and Library

Achievement Measures Ll 2kl AV Aszptz:a\stlilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target T
arget
T@monetary value of efficiency supported by ADMs N/A £0.5M £1M
ng number of primary school meals provided each financial year
thigygh the ADM Newydd Catering and Cleaning 5350 5403 5511
Thesnumber of secondary school meals provided each financial year . o
through the ADM Newydd Catering and Cleaning grglngn(i)sfaﬁt?gr:al 5029 5129 5232
Number of leisure centres and libraries sustained through the community Change 11 11 11
benefits society
The number of key community asset transfers sustained by new social
enterprises, Connah’s Quay Swimming Pool, Holywell Leisure Centre, 3 3 3

Community Benefits delivered by ADMs and CATs to be reported on each year.

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

37



Council Plan 2017/23: Aiiendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill levels

¢ Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the
County.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

e Development of an action plan to improve community access to digital services and to raise skill levels by March 2018

e Review the Charter between Welsh Government and the Council for digital business to maximise the value of WG support to businesses in the
County by March 2018.

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following development of the action plan to improve community access to digital services and a review of the
Charter between WG and the Council by March 2018

ievement will be measured through:

e (DEstablishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan

o FWork with the third sector to increase its capacity to successfully bid for and undertake contracts on behalf of the Council.
o a*/lonitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new procurement contracts.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

e Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan by December 2017

e Creation of guidance/handbook on appropriate Community Benefits to include in contracts based on the nature of the contract and the value by
March 2018.

Achievement Measures e Eealine AU Aszp(::astlilgnal
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement contracts 100% 100% 100%
above £1M
Percentage of community benefit clauses in new procurement contracts Chief Officer —
Organisational N/A 100% 100%
under £1M
Change
Let two contracts that are targeted for third sector/social enterprises; 0 > >
Housing Voids and Household Recycling Centres

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

38



Achievement will be measured through:
e Increasing the number of volunteering placements.

Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

. 2018/19
. Lead Baseline 2017/18 .
Achievement Measures Officer Data (2016/17) Target Aspirational
Target
Chief Officer —
Number of volunteering placements created Organisational 548 548 548
Change

Achievement will be measured through:

& Increasing community assets
D |dentity and equality of participation.

H
Aihfevement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

U Increasing participation in activities that contribute to physical and mental well-being including libraries, theatre and countryside

e Report on the sports and arts development work that has taken place to increase participation by individuals and communities that have lower
levels of engagement within sports and arts activity by March 2018.

their local communities

Achievement Measures R el U Aszp(:::t/ilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
PAM/016 Number of visits to libraries per 1000 population 3935 4014 4094
PAM/017 Number of visits to leisure centres per 1000 population 8740 7296 7296
— Chief Officer —
Number of visits to the theatre Organisational 167,000 175,000 180,000
The number of leisure and cultural assets that are cooperatively Change
supported by a range of partners ensuring they remain accessible to 2 11 11

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

39



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant
¢ Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme
¢ Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support a 2 year programme.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
¢ Revising portfolio policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant by March 2018
e Achieving Silver status for our Employee Recognition Scheme by March 2018
e Optimising the value of the regional grant monies to support the Armed Forces Community by March 2018.

Measures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following revised and updated policies to reflect the ambitions of the Armed Forces Covenant by March 2018

8/ T abed

40
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Increasing achievement rate of the budgeted efficiency targets to 95%
Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022
Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment
Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios
Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators.

Acpjevement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
€ Revising our plan to meet the relevant funding gap for 2017-2022 by March 2018
Matching our priorities with revenue and capital investment by March 2018
s Ensure sustainable business plans for service portfolios by March 2018
‘q\l) Develop a range of operational financial performance indicators by March 2018.

budget set

Achievement Measures R SIS AU Aszp(::ast/ilial
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target
8 The amount of efficiency targets achieved £9,557,000 £8,433,000 TBC
The percentage of planned efficiencies achieved Chief Executive 91% 95% 100%
The percentage variance between the revenue budget out-turn and the -0.81% 0.49% 0%

8 The aspirational target will be a minimum of 95% of the agreed figure for 2018/19

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

41



Council Plan 2017/23: Aiiendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

Achievement will be measured through:
¢ Improving attendance

A single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plan
Attainment of appraisal targets.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

e Development of a single consolidated workforce plan and supporting action plans by March 2018.

Increasing the number of managers and employees attending and accessing stress related / management programmes
Percentage of employees who have secured employment following completion of apprenticeship training

PAW/001 The number of working days per full time equivalent (FTE)
Io@l authority employees lost due to sickness absence

P(ISR‘:entage of Managers completing stress related programmes

P@'_Qentage of employees completing stress related programmes

Pe;(’:entage of apprentices securing employment with Flintshire Council

Percentage of eligible employees receiving an annual appraisal

Chief Executive

9.82 9 8.5
N/A 25% 50%
N/A 25% 50%
60% 65% 70%
65% 100% 100%

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

42



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing efficiencies by exploiting technology and making efficient use of
local, regional and national procurement arrangements.

Achievement will be measured through:
o % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the National Procurement Service (NPS)
e % of Council spend with Welsh businesses
e % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses
e % of Council spend with businesses within the Merseyside Dee Alliance (MDA).

Achievement Measures R HEECIE AV Asz|3(::a8tlilsz1al
Officer Data (2016/17) Target
Target

The percentage of goods, services and works procured through

purchasing arrangements established by the National Procurement N/A 8% 10%
Service (NPS) . ,

: : : Chief Officer -
Tigpercentage of Council spend with Welsh businesses Governance 48% 50% 52%
Tt}iﬁ percentage of Council spend with Flintshire businesses 26% 28% 30%
Pe}ﬁentage of Council spend with businesses within the regional MDA 32% 32% 34%
(0]

4." Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity and competency to respond to Council
contracts.

Achievement will be measured through:
o Development of a programme to support local businesses
¢ Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in Council contracts
e Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Develop a programme to support local businesses by November 2017
e Develop and deliver training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in Council contracts by January 2018
e Develop a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally by January 2018.

Measures are to be adopted by the Council for 2018/19 following development of the Community Benefits and other support programmes.

43
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

5. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Digital Strategy and Customer Strategies.

Achievement will be measured through:
Increasing the number of services available online and via the Flintshire App
Increasing the number of completed transactions using online services

Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy
Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:
e Develop a plan to improve the take-up of online service by March 2018
¢ Development of action plans to deliver the Digital Strategy by March 2018
o Deliver agreed actions from the Digital Strategy for 2017/18.

Responding to customer feedback ensuring information is accessed at first point of contact online

Achievement Measures e Eeallne AT Aszg:ast/ilgnal
U Officer Data (2016/17) Target ﬁ
o arget
TH® number of services available online and via the Flintshire App Chief Officer — 124 149 179
= _ . . _ Community and
TI%number of completed transactions using online services Enterprise 26,350 31,620 37,950

N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available

44



Council Plan 2017/23: Appendix 2 — ‘How we Measure’

6. Delivery of key annualised objectives from the Capital and Asset Management Strategy.

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Continuation with the programme of asset rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient and sustainable to deliver services
o |dentify and consider options available to fund capital expenditure that minimises ongoing revenue implications of new and existing investments
o Establish effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of outcomes and achievement of value for money.

Achievement Milestones for strategy and action plans:

o Critically challenge our current estate, continue with the programme of asset rationalisation, ensuring that assets retained are effective, efficient
and sustainable to deliver services by March 2018

Identify and consider options available to fund capital expenditure that minimises the ongoing revenue implications of historic capital expenditure of
new and existing investments by March 2018

o Establish effective arrangements for managing capital projects including assessment of outcomes and achievement of value for money by March

2018.
. 2018/19
Achievement Measures Le.ad kil AU Aspirational
Officer Data (2016/17) Target

:g Target
Tf:é percentage of major capital projects which are completed on time Chief Officer — 100% 100% 100%

o i i i i ithi Organisational
l’lh%pee:rcentage of major capital projects which are completed within gChange 100% 100% 100%

[

Megsures are to be adopted for 2018/19 following a review of our current estate and options available to fund capital expenditure by March 2018

45
N/A is denoted by new measures where baseline data is not available



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

(" Sir y Fflint
-y . .
Flintshire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday, 21st September 2017
Report Subject Procurement Strategy Action Plan
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets
Report Author Chief Officer (Governance)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In November 2016 Cabinet approved a joint procurement strategy with Denbighshire
County Council. It contained the following high level outcomes

1. Flintshire County Council achieves value for money from the goods, services and

works it procures
2. Flintshire County Council improves the contribution its procurement activity has
on the local economy especially social enterprise

An action plan has been prepared to show how those outcomes will be delivered.
The action plan also includes the measures that will be used to track progress.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To recommend the action plan and the measures that will be publicly
reported to Cabinet for adoption.

Page 185



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE ACTION PLAN

1.01

The Council spends £150m per year on buying goods and services. The
Procurement Strategy, which was approved in November 2016, sets out
how the Council intends to use that purchasing power to support its wider
policy aims. The strategy includes the following 2 high level outcomes

1. Flintshire County Council achieves value for money from the goods,
services and works it procures

2. Flintshire County Council improves the contribution its procurement
activity has on the local economy especially social enterprise

These outcomes underpin and support the following key aims in the Council
Plan:

Priority: Connected Council

Sub-Priority: Developing and Inspiring Resilient Communities

Impact: 1) Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-

supporting.

4. Ensuring and delivering community benefits.

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Establishing a Community Benefits Board with an action plan

e Commissioning of two Council contracts with specific community
benefits that provides the third sector with a competitive edge

¢ Monitoring the percentage of community benefit clauses included in new
procurement contracts; and

Priority: Serving Council

Sub-Priority: Improving Resource Management

Impacts: 1) Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public

sector organisation with social values.

2) Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective

public services.

What we will do in 2017/18:

3. Maximise benefits from spending power through optimised purchasing

efficiencies by exploiting technology and making efficient use of local,

regional and national procurement arrangements.

Achievement will be measured through:

e % of goods, services and works procured through purchasing
arrangements established by the National Procurement Service (NPS)

¢ % of Council spend with Welsh businesses

¢ % of Council spend with Flintshire businesses.

4. Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses,

increasing their capacity and competency to respond to Council contracts.

Achievement will be measured through:

¢ Development of a programme to support local businesses

e Developing and delivering training and support to improve the inclusion
of community benefits in Council contracts

e Developing a system to record and monitor Community Benefits

Page 186




centrally.

1.02

The Strategy does not expand on how these outcomes are to be achieved,
and that further level of detail is provided by the action plan. The Business
Plan (attached at Appendix A) lists not only the steps that will be taken to
deliver the outcomes but also sets out the measures that will be used to
track progress.

The planned actions fall into a number of broad categories

1) work to promote the use community benefits in contracts such as work to
make it easier to decide what benefits to seek.

2) actions to improve the ability of local businesses and social enterprise to
bid for council contracts; and

3) process improvements to ensure that the end to end electronic
procurement system functions in the optimal way thereby making it easier
for both officers and suppliers to use.

Members will be pleased to note that a policy and procedure on the use of
community benefit clauses will be brought forward for approval well in
advance of the target date of December 2017.

1.03

The action plan is very detailed and includes activities and measures that
will be used for performance management. Consequently not all measures
are appropriate for public reporting. It is proposed that the following
measures are publicly reported:

Measures

Total potential savings through procurement

% of orders completed wholly electronically

% of spend with businesses in Mersey Dee Alliance area

% of contracts below £1m value with community benefit clauses

e

Actions

5) Programme of activity increasing capacity of local businesses and the
third sector/social enterprise to bid for council contracts

6) Structuring contracts to provide opportunities for local businesses and
the third sector/social enterprise

7) Improve inclusion of community benefit clauses in contracts

8) Increase the number of contracts are jointly procured with DCC

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The Procurement Service has the necessary level of resource to carry out
the actions in the Action Plan.

Page 187




3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

The views of this committee will be verbally reported to Cabinet.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

The purpose of the Action Plan is to help define how the Council will achieve
its wider policy aims through directing its purchasing power. By carefully
structuring contract specifications and invitations to quote/tender it will be
possible for the Council to spend its money in a way that supports its
community and social enterprise. The use of community benefits in
particular will help to reduce social inequality and improve community
resilience.

Every individual procurement exercise will still need to be compliant with the
relevant contract procedure rules and legislation, and all of the aims of the
strategy nor proposed actions are compatible with both.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix A — Procurement Business Plan

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

http://committeemeetings.flintshire.qgov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?ClI
d=391&MId=3854&Ver=4&LLL=0

Contact Officer: Gareth Owens, Chief Officer Governance
Telephone: 01352 702344
E-mail: Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Community Benefit Clauses - Benefits to local communities from major
procurements e.g. training and employment opportunities, community
facilities. This incorporates social value by taking wider impacts and benefits
into account other than price.

Mersey Dee Alliance - The partnership between the public sector in North
East Wales and North West England to “work together on common strategic
interests to ensure a sustainable future for the area and facilitate a coherent
approach to social, economic and environmental issues.” (MDA)

Page 188



http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=3854&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://committeemeetings.flintshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=3854&Ver=4&LLL=0
mailto:Gareth.legal@flintshire.gov.uk

Outcome 1A Denbighshire: The council achieves value for money from the goods, works and services it procures

Target Target
% of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the NPS
% of goods, services and works procured through non-NPS framework agreements
Total potential savings at tender award stage (Contract Estimated budget -v- Contract Award value)*
Total potential savings at contract end stage (Contract Award value -v- Actual Contract Spend)*
% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Commissioning for has been completed*
“U% of contracts over £250k for works where a Commissioning for has been completed*

jab)

«Q
(D % of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed*

|_\
O, of contracts over £250k for works where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed*

(e}
% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*
% of contracts over £250k for works where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*
% of contracts over £25k where the contract award amount is no more that the estimated budget*
% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*
% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*
% of Contracts over £25k with a signed or sealed contract within 6 weeks of the contract award*

% of officer assessing the service provided by the CPS as "ok’ or better

% of officers attending procurement training assessing the training as 'ok' or better




% of Middle Management Team assessing their procurement knowledge as 'ok' or better

% of invoices that have had an upfront purchase order (PO)

DEVELOP SET OF MEASURES FOR CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal. This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new
CPR’s coming into force on 1 April 2016 may not be in the system.

GLOSSARY

NPS - National Procurement Service — a Welsh Government sponsored organisation established to procure common and repetitive spend across public sector
organisations in Wales.
Commissioning Form — document required to be completed by officers undertaking procurement activity which outlines the rationale and approach to the proposed
activity.
\Atsllbeing Impact Assessment Tool — web-based tool developed by Denbighshire County Council to provide documented evidence of how the Council has considered its
&ligations under the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015

— Collaborative Procurement Service — the central team of procurement officer that support and advise services in relation to procurement activity across both
enbighshire and Flintshire County Councils.
F@actis — the council’s adopted electronic procurement system, though which all contracts over £10,000 should be recorded and managed.



Outcome 1B Flintshire: The council achieves value for money from the goods, works and services it procures

Target

Measures

% of goods, services and works procured through purchasing arrangements established by the NPS 10%

% of goods, services and works procured through non-NPS framework agreements

Total potential savings at tender award stage (Contract Estimated budget -v- Contract Award value)*
Total potential savings at contract end stage (Contract Award value -v- Actual Contract Spend)*

% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Commissioning for has been completed*

U,

Q % of contracts over £250k for works where a Commissioning for has been completed*

«Q
@ % of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed*

|_\
|“—\D% of contracts over £250k for works where a Wellbeing Impact Assessment has been completed*
% of contracts over £25k for goods and services where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*
% of contracts over £250k for works where a tenders exercise is undertaken but no award is made*
% of contracts over £25k where the contract award amount is no more that the estimated budget*
% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*
% of contracts over £25k where the final contract cost is no more than the contract award amount*

% of Contracts over £25k with a signed or sealed contract within 6 weeks of the contract award*

% of officer assessing the service provided by the CPS as "ok’ or better 85%



% of officers attending procurement training assessing the training as as 'ok' or better
% of Middle Management Team assessing their procurement knowledge as 'ok' or better
% of invoices that have had an upfront purchase order (PO)

DEVELOP SET OF MEASURES FOR CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal. This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new
CPR’s coming into force on 1 November 2016 may not be in the system.

26T abed



Outcome 1 : The council achieves value for money from the goods, works and services it procures

Provide E-Procurement System 'Sourcing' (Proactis) Information Sessions for all Departments not yet using the system Systems Officer March 2018
Provide updated training on Proactis Portal V6 to Officers currently using V5 (V6 due for release end of Q1) Systems Officer July 2017
Provide E-Procurement System 'Contract Management' (Proactis) Training to all Officers managing contracts Bus(lgﬁ:el;ir)tner Ongoing
Create a E-procurement System 'Quick Guides' to enable officers to become self-sufficient in the using the system Systems Officer July 2017
Review .Proactls Portal user activity and user permission settings to ensure those officers set up on the system are using it and have access to Systems Officer June 2017
appropriate modules of the system

§Identify Proactis 'Super Users' for each service and provide appropriate level of training and for the super users Systems Officer March 2018

«Q

@ Set up Proactis User E-mail Group to communicate system and procedural updates to users Systems Officer June 2017

|_\

©Explore possibility of monthly 'Drop In' Sessions for additional Portal training for officers. Each session focusing on an area which has been '

whighlighted as a problem area for users. e Ciieer Sepember A

. . . . Business Partner
Review and update all Project and Contract Templates in the Proactis Portal and ensure that both DCC & FCC templates are the same (Strategic) September 2017
Review, update and maintain details of all Frameworks used to ensure correct information is held on the Proatis Portal Systems Officer December 2017
(E);:/t?;c::? a customer feedback system for suppliers who have provided goods, services or works to assess quality of the management of the Systems Officer March 2018
Map out addltllon.al report requwement_s and deyelop procurement r(_aport tempIa!tes that could be proylded to HoS/Chief Officers, detailing key Systems Officer March 2018
procurement indicators and some basic analysis that could be provided to services on a regular basis
Explore 'Single Registration' for suppliers so they do not have to register on multiple systems e.g. Proactis, Sell2Wales etc. Systems Officer December 2018
Business
Work with service areas to identify training needs, and work with the Strategic Business Partner to develop and implement appropriate training. Partners Ongoing
(Categories)

Develop, publish and implement an annual procurement training programme and associated guidance documents (including continuation of Business Partner Ongoin
CPR/beginners guide to procurement, and community benefits)' (Strategic) going



Develop CPS Intranet page and communication with other departments within the Authority.

Work with services to develop a programme of future procurement projects and identify opportunities for collaborative procurement locally,
regionally and nationally

Work with services to identify where approved lists are still being used, and subsequently develop and deliver appropriate alternative
arrangements

v6T abed

Systems Officer

Business
Partners
(Categories)
Business
Partners
(Categories)

September 2017

Ongoing

March 2018



Outcome 2A Denbighshire: The council improves the contribution its procurement activity has on the local economy

Excellence Intervention
Measures
Target Target

% of council spend with Denbighshire businesses 35% 25%

% of council spend with North Wales businesses

% of council spend with Welsh business

% of council spend with businesses in the Mersey/Dee Alliance area

% of suppliers assessing the council as ‘ok’ or better at contract end in supplier satisfaction surveys*

QJ-U% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business invited to tender at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*
«Q

M 9 of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business invited to tender at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — OJEU)*
©
1% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business invited to tender at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business bidding at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business bidding at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — OJEU)*

% of offers to the market with at least one Denbighshire based business bidding at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of bids received from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*

% of bids received from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — OJEU)

% of bids received from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the High value threshold (OJEU)

% of successful bids from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the Low value threshold (£10,001 -
£25,000)*



OOA)J(I)Ef Us)liccessful bids from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — --
% of successful bids from Denbighshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the High value threshold (OJEU)* --
% of contracts awarded in the financial year over £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document*
% of contracts awarded in the financial year under £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document*®

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal. This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new
CPR’s coming into force on 1 April 2016 may not be in the system.

96T abed



Outcome 2B Flintshire: The council improves the contribution its procurement activity has on the local economy

% of council spend with Flintshire businesses 30%
% of council spend with North Wales businesses
% of council spend with Welsh business 50%
% of council spend with businesses in the Mersey/Dee Alliance area

% of suppliers assessing the council as ‘ok’ or better at contract end in supplier satisfaction surveys*

QJ-U% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business invited to tender at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*
«Q

@ % of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business invited to tender at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — OJEU)*
©
~J% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business invited to tender at the High value threshold (OJEU)*
% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business bidding at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*
% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business bidding at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — OJEU)*
% of offers to the market with at least one Flintshire based business bidding at the High value threshold (OJEU)*
% of bids received from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*
% of bids received from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 — OJEU)

% of bids received from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total bids received at the High value threshold (OJEU)

% of successful bids from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the Low value threshold (£10,001 - £25,000)*




% of successful bids from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the intermediate value threshold (£25,001 —
OJEU)*

% of successful bids from Flintshire based business as a proportion of the total number of successful bids at the High value threshold (OJEU)*

% of contracts awarded in the financial year over £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document* 100%

% of contracts awarded in the financial year under £1,000,000 with Community Benefits included in contract document*® 100%

* as measured through procurement projects entered into the Proactis Portal. This may not include all procurement activity, as some projects initiated prior to the new
CPR’s coming into force on 1 November 2016 may not be in the system.

86T obed



Outcome 2 : The council achieves value for money from the goods, services and works it procures

Service : Procurement

Develop and deliver a programme of activity to support local businesses, increasing their capacity and competency to respond to Council
contracts

Work with service areas to ensure consideration is given to how procurement exercises/contracts can be structured to provide opportunities for
local suppliers

Work with service areas and Economic Development teams to identify existing or potential local suppliers who may benefit from additional support
to increase their capacity and competency to respond to Council contracts

Develop and deliver training and support to improve the inclusion of community benefits in Council contracts
Develop a system to record and monitor Community Benefits centrally

o
) Develop and deliver a new Print and Design Framework for Denbighshire & Flintshire, working closely with Economic Development teams to
(Q ensure local suppliers engage in meet the buyer events and the bidding process

@I \Work with services to ensure current and potential suppliers are registered on Proactis and Sell2Wales
(o]

Work with current e-procurement system provider to develop a robust system for both Buyer and Supplier which fulfils legal and audit
requirements.

Ensure all our suppliers are of good financial standing by carrying out annual checks on all suppliers with whom DCC are engaged in Contracts
with.

Maintain the corporate contracts and frameworks register and ensure that published information is current and correct.

Business Partner
(Strategic)
Business
Partners
(Categories)

Business Partner
(Strategic)

Business Partner
(Strategic)

Systems Officer

Business
Partners
(Categories)
Business
Partners
(Categories)

Business Partner
(Strategic)

Business
Partners
(Categories)

Systems Officer

March 2018

Ongoing

Ongoing

December 2017

December 2017

September 2017

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

(" Sir y Fflint
-y . .
Flintshire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Date of Meeting Thursday, 21 September 2017
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4 ) and
Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 4)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) Report and the Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month
4) Report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) report. Any specific matters for attention will
be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers the report.

2 That the committee considers and comments on the Capital Programme
2017/18 (Month 4) report. Any specific matters for attention will be noted
and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers the report.

Page 201



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION
2017/18 (MONTH 4) AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 (MONTH 4)

1.01 | The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) report will be presented
to Cabinet on Tuesday 26 September 2017. A copy of the report is attached
as Appendix A to this report.

1.02 | The Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4) report will be presented to
Cabinet on Tuesday 26 September 2017. A copy of the report is attached
as Appendix B to this report.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4)
and in Appendix B; Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4).

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4)
and in Appendix B; Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4).

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4).

Appendix B; Capital Programme 2017/18 (Month 4).

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required.

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson, Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 202




7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

(1) Revenue: a term used to describe the day to day costs of running
Council services and income deriving from those services. It also includes
charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

7.02

(2) Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels
in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

7.03

(3) Capital Programme: The Council’s financial plan covering capital
schemes and expenditure proposals for the current year and a number of
future years. It also includes estimates of the capital resources available to
finance the programme.

Page 203




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

= Sir'y Filint
Q Flintshire

CABINET MEETING
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 26 September 2017
Report Subject REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2017/18 (MONTH 4)
Cabinet Member Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Mﬁmé“port Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This monthly report provides the current revenue budget monitoring position for
2017/18 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. This is the first full
monitoring report for the year and presents the position, based on actual income
and expenditure, as at Month 4 of the financial year. The report projects how the
budget would stand at the close of the financial year if all things remained equal.

The projected year end position, without mitigation to reduce cost pressures and
improve the yield on efficiency planning is:-

Council Fund

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £1.256m more than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance as at 31 March 2018 of £3.878m

Housing Revenue Account

e Net in-year expenditure forecast to be £0.026m higher than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2018 of £1.090m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 31t March 2018.

2 To note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA). Page 205




APPENDIX A

3 To agree a budget virement within Social Services to realign the budget to
meet service needs (paragraph 1.10).

4 To approve an allocation of £0.052m from the contingency reserve to
provide financial support to meet in-year budget pressures anticipated for
2017-18 in respect of regional economic development structures and
support for events (paragraph 1.29).

REPORT DETAILS
1.00 | EXPLAINING THE MONTH 4 POSITION
1.01 | Council Fund Overall Position
The projected year end position, without mitigation to reduce cost pressures
and improve the yield on efficiency planning, is as follows;
e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £1.256m
e Projected contingency reserve balance of £3.878m
1.02 | Council Fund Latest In-Year Forecast

The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.

TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised | Projected | In-Year
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn Over/
(Under)
spend
£fm £m £m £m
Social Services 61.471 62.945 63.259 0.314
Community & Enterprise 12.518 12.540 11.970 (0.570)
Streetscene & 27.467 27.480 29.391 1.910
Transportation
Planning & Environment 5.043 4.932 5.436 0.503
Education & Youth 10.966 10.934 10.858 (0.076)
Schools 88.862 88.862 88.862 0.000
People & Resources 4.283 4.147 4.604 0.457
Governance 7.675 7.651 7.896 0.246
Organisational Change 1 5.801 5.821 5.900 0.079
Organisational Change 2 2.422 2.288 2.100 (0.189)
Chief Executive 3.008 2.940 2.824 (0.116)
Central & Corporate 25.642 24.616 23.312 (1.303)
Finance
Total P#36. 1306 255.156 256.412 1.256




APPENDIX A

1.03

The reasons for the projected variances are summarised within Appendix 1
with key significant portfolio variances explained in paragraphs 1.04 to 1.08
below. As has been the practice in recent years where a variance has been
due to a conscious change to policy or practice, the resulting variance is
managed corporately with the relevant portfolio not expected to meet any
shortfall.

1.04

Streetscene & Transportation

There is a projected overspend of £1.910m within this portfolio.

The overspend partly comprises of the materialisation of some of the known
significant risks identified when the 2017/18 budget was set by Council and
include additional costs of £0.675m following re-procurement for covering
various public transport routes and the confirmed reduction of the Single
Environment Grant of £0.111m.

Further variations relate to various conscious decisions including a delay in
the decision to review subsidised bus routes (£0.205m), additional transport
costs arising from a school closure (£0.200m), a reduction in car parking
income in Flint (£0.050m), and the none achievement of efficiencies for
Shared specialist Plant with Neighbouring Authorities (£0.050m) and
transferring some service maintenance responsibilities to other
organisations (£0.050m).

The net position on the projected overspend excluding the above decisions
is a net operating deficit of £0.569m.

Major variations affecting the above operating deficit include a further
decrease of £0.200m in the level of income from Renewable Energy
Production over and above the pressure included in the 2017/18 budget
(£0.150m for Gas Engines), anticipated increases in Motor insurance
premiums (£0.100m) and street lighting (£0.131m) reflecting a 16%
increase.

Work is ongoing to assess any potential impact on these in year variances
on the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) forecast for 2018/19.

1.05

Social Services

The projected outturn for Out of County placements in Children’s Services
is currently £0.625m due to the number of Child and Parent placements.
This overspend is being partly mitigated by underspends within the Social
Services portfolio. The volatility and risk of this service to the in-year and
ongoing financial position will need to be closely monitored and any potential
impact on 2018/19 considered.

1.06

Planning & Environment

There is a projected in-year Planning Fee Income shortfall of £0.325m. The
impact of the Welsh Government requirements for major developers to enter
into pre consultation for a period of 28 days prior to submitting an application
has delayed the submission of some high value applications which in turn

Page 207




APPENDIX A

will affect the fee income received. This is resulting in lower numbers of
applications submitted than previously predicted. This will need to be kept
under review in year though it has been highlighted as a potential pressure
for 2018/19.

1.07 | Community & Enterprise
There is currently a projected underspend on the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (CTRS) of £0.407m based on existing demand which will need to
be kept under review throughout the year together with a favourable
variance on the Council Tax Collection fund of £0.153m.

1.08 | Central & Corporate Finance

There is a positive variance of £1.303m projected within this area which is
mainly due to one off additional funding from the Intermediate Care Fund
from Health (£0.500m), the impact of estimated additional funding
announced by Welsh Government for Social Services Pressures (£0.595m)
and a positive variance on other Social Care pressures as referenced in the
budget report for 2017/18 (£0.512m).

Other major variances within this area include a positive variance on the
pension fund contributions due to a lower than anticipated pressure to fund
the in-year increase due to the actuarial review of £0.288m. However, this
is offset by a current shortfall in the income target of £0.412m and lower
than anticipated levels of car parking income from car parking permits at
County Hall of £0.080m.

1.09

Significant Movements between Original and Revised Budget

There has been an accounting adjustment to transfer £1.696m from Central
& Corporate Finance to Social Services. This is the amount required to meet
the 2017/18 independent care fee increase.

1.10

Proposals for budget realignment — Social Services

Following a review of services within Social Services for Adults, it is
considered appropriate to seek Cabinet approval for realignment of budget
between some areas of Older People, which are currently reflecting
underspends, and Learning Disabilities which is experiencing some
significant demand influenced pressures as shown in the table below.

Service area : Increase in | Decrease
budget : in budget :
£(m) £(m)

Older People - Locality teams (Residential Care) (0.200)
Older People - Locality teams (Domiciliary Care) (0.100)
Disability Services — Resources & Regulated

: 0.242
Services
Older People - Resources & Regulated Services

: 0.058
(Supporting People)
Total : 0.300 (0.300)
Page 208




APPENDIX A

A1

Within Older People, purchased Residential & Nursing Care is currently
projected to underspend by £0.349m due to a decrease in service users and
additional income from service user properties and free nursing
contributions from BCUHB. It is considered that £0.200m from within this
underspend can be realigned to address pressures in other areas of Adults
Social Services.

12

Also within Older People, purchased Domiciliary Care is projected to
underspend by £0.206m due to demand influences. It is considered that
£0.100m from this underspend can be realigned to address pressures in
other areas of Adults Social Services.

A3

It is recommended that £0.242m of the total be allocated to Domiciliary Day
Care and Direct payments Supported Living group of services within
Learning Disabilities - Resources & Regulated Service which is currently
projecting an overspend of £0.319m.

14

The remaining £0.058m is recommended to be allocated to meet a shortfall
of Supporting People grant income within Older People — Resources &
Regulated Services. There is currently a projected shortfall arising from the
Councils overall allocation due to meeting the eligibility criteria.

15

Tracking of In Year Risks and Emerging Issues

At the time of setting the Budget for 2017/18 a number of significant risks
were identified and an update is provided below:

16

Single Environment Grant

As part of the 2017/18 budget, Council undertook a decision to manage the
in year risk of any potential reduction in this grant. The actual reduction for
2017/18 has been confirmed as £0.111m (3.83%) which has been
incorporated as a projected overspend in the outturn.

In Year Risk status: Green Longer Term Risk Status: Red

A7

Transportation Costs

Another identified risk were the costs of procuring the local public and school
bus services. It is projected that additional costs of £0.675m will be incurred
in 2017/18 as there are unlikely to be any mitigating factors to resolve this
in the current financial year.

In Year Risk status: Green Longer Term Risk Status: Red

18

Social Care Fees

Within the 2017/18 budget it was agreed that the level of fee increases to
the Independent Sector would be contained within the budget provided and
that any remaining amount be set aside as a risk contingency to assist with
managing the ongoing budget risks identified above. Negotiations have
been concluded and the increase has been able to be met within the
available resources.

Page 209




APPENDIX A

In Year Risk Status: Green Longer Term Risk Status: Red

1.19

Out of County Placements

The volatility in demand and the impacts on service costs cannot be
predicted with any certainty. The main influence on this increase is the
Social Services and Wellbeing Act which has led to a higher number of court
outcomes and placements which has increased the financial pressure on
this service area which at M4 is projecting an overspend of £0.625m. Legal
and Social Service Managers will be making a compelling case for
alternative care arrangements to placements at forthcoming court cases, to
reduce the financial impact.

In Year Risk Status: Green Longer Term Risk Status: Red

1.20

Other Tracked Risks

In addition, there are a number of risks being tracked that may be subject to
change and these are summarised below:

Achievement of Planned In-Year Efficiencies

The Council set a challenging target for the level of efficiencies to be
achieved in year as part of its approach to annual budget planning. These
efficiencies are generated from the three year service portfolio business
plans and from corporate financial planning. The 2017/18 budget contains
£8.433m of specific efficiencies which are tracked and monitored. In recent
years the level of efficiency achievement has averaged at around 85%
though the council aspires to raise this to 95% in 2017/18 as reflected in the
recent MTFS KPI's.

The current assessment of the efficiencies to be achieved in 2017/18 shows
that £7.171m (85%) of the efficiencies would be achieved which is lower
than the target. There is a further risk that any ongoing under-achievement
of efficiencies will have a recurring and negative impact on the 2018/19
budget. Further details on the current status on efficiencies can be seen in
Appendix 2 with the overall impact in relation to any impact for 2018/19
being reviewed as part of the ongoing work on the MTFS.

In Year Risk status: Amber Longer Term Risk Status: Red

1.21

Inflation

The 2017/18 budget includes Non Standard Inflation for Energy, Food and
Fuel at 2% however this will need to be kept under review due to the volatility
of markets which may be affected by global events and the impact of
negotiations relating to Brexit. MTFS projection for Inflation for 2018/19
reflects an increasing pressure.

In Year Risk status: Amber Longer Term Risk Status: Amber

1.22

Income

Page 210




APPENDIX A

The Council is continuing to increase its Income from Fees and Charges
and a new Income Strategy is due to go to Cabinet in the Autumn. A target
of £0.500m was included in the 2016/17 budget of which so far £0.088m has
been met leaving a balance of £0.412m to be found. Work is ongoing to
revise existing charges where possible and to identify new opportunities for
generating income, which will be kept under review throughout the year.

In Year Risk Status: Red Longer Term Risk Status: Red
1.23 | New Emerging Risks in 2017/18
In addition to the known risks referred to above there are also a number of
new risks emerging in-year which have been incorporated into the projected
outturn and will also need carefully assessing for the potential impact on the
2018/19 budget.
These new issues are being monitored as part of the ongoing review of the
Councils financial position and are shown in the table below with the current
M4 variances included as part of the overall position:
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) — Reduction in (0.407)
demand
Council Tax Collection in year efficiency (0.153)
Social Care Additional Funding in 17/18 — Estimated (0.595)
amount
Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) — Continuation of funding (0.500)
Pension Deficit Recovery — Due to opt out and surplus (0.288)
allocation from budget pressure for actuarial review
Markets Income — Decline in levels of income 0.050
Gas Engine Income — Further decrease to level of income 0.200
over and above pressure included in 2017/18 budget
(£0.150m)
Planning Fee Income — In year shortfall due to pre 0.325
consultation
Shared Specialist Plant — Previous year efficiency not 0.050
achieved
Motor Insurance Premium Increase - In year increase not 0.100
anticipated
Street Lighting increase in 2017/18 of 16% 0.131
County Hall Parking — Lower than anticipated efficiency on 0.080
parking permits
Procurement Supplier Charging — Previous year efficiency 0.116
not achievable
Environmental Health Officer temporary posts 0.120
Central and Corporate Support Service pressure offset by 0.107
efficiency on Audit Fees
Total New Emerging Risks (0.664)
1.24 | Inflation




APPENDIX A

Included within the 2017/18 budget are provision for pay (£0.915m),
targeted price inflation (£0.313m), food (£0.051m), fuel (£0.033m) and
Energy (£0.061m).

1.25

Portfolios have received their allocations for pay and price and there is a
remaining balance of £0.014m which is included within the overall outturn
figure.

1.26

No allocations have been made so far for non-standard inflation (NSI) in
2017/18. Areas that may be subject to NSI increases will be monitored
throughout the year and any emerging pressures will be considered in future
reports though at present it is anticipated that the allocation will be spent in
full.

1.27

Reserves and Balances

Un-earmarked Reserves

The 2016/17 outturn reported to Cabinet on 18 July 2017 showed un-
earmarked reserves at 31 March 2016 (above the base level of £5.769m) of
£5.133m.

1.28

Taking into account the current projected overspend at Month 4 and
previously agreed allocations the balance on the Contingency Reserve at
31 March 2018 is projected to be £3.878m as detailed in appendix 3.

1.29

There is a request for approval of an allocation of £0.052m from the
contingency reserve to provide financial support to meet in-year budget
pressures anticipated for 2017-18 in respect of regional economic
development structures and support for events as described in paragraphs
1.30 and 1.31.

1.30

The Council is a partner in two regional economic development structures;
the North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) and the Mersey Dee
Alliance (MDA). Through both structures, the Council has been able to play
a maijor role in creating a shared economic policy for the region and there
are positive signs that significant Government investment in the area will be
forthcoming as a result. The Council pays an annual contribution towards
the costs of each of these bodies from the economic development budget
but the scale of contribution is expected to increase for 2017/18 to a level
beyond the ability of the service to absorb. It is proposed that the economic
development service continues to pay £0.030m of the annual costs of
supporting the NWEAB and MDA and that the remaining £0.022m is funded
from the contingency reserve.

1.31

Historically the Council has supported county wide and town focussed
events. Streetscene provides signage and waste management services to
events at a cost to the Authority that, with tightening budgets, has become
unsustainable. It is recommended that a corporate contribution is made to
the service of £0.030m to enable them to support major events in 2017/18.

1.32

Earmarked Reserves

Page 212




APPENDIX A

A summary of earmarked reserves as at 1 April 2017 and an estimate of
projected balances as at the end of the financial year will be included in the
month 5 report.

1.33 | Housing Revenue Account
The 2016/17 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 18 July 2017 showed an un-
earmarked closing balance at the end of 2016/17 of £1.116m and a closing
balance of earmarked reserves of £0.526m.

1.34 | The 2017/18 budget for the HRA is £33.633m which includes a movement
of £0.035m from reserves.

1.35 | The Month 4 monitoring for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure to be
£0.026m lower than budget and a closing un earmarked balance as at 31
March 2018 of £1.090m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the
prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | The Revenue Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the
financial resources of the Council for the current financial year and details
the variations in the first four months and the risks as known.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None required.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | There are three categories of risks which are covered in the main section of
the report from paragraph 1.15 to 1.23.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Council Fund — Budget Variances
Appendix 2: Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies
Appendix 3: Council Fund — Movement on Un-earmarked Reserves
Appendix 4: Housing Revenue Account Variances

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required.

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson pPimgecoNanager)




APPENDIX A

Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Budget: a statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels in
financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it
includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and any
authorised amendments to them.

7.02

Council Fund: the fund to which all the Council’s revenue expenditure is
charged.

7.03

Financial Year: the period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

7.04

Housing Revenue Account: the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on housing
services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate from the
Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from rents and
government subsidy.

7.05

Projected Outturn: projection of the expenditure to the end of the financial
year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

7.06

Reserves: these are balances in hand that have accumulated over previous
years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general (general
reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the level and
purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the Chief
Finance Officer.

7.07

Revenue: a term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct
financing of capital expenditure.

7.08 | Underspend: when referring to expenditure the actual expenditure incurred
is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income the actual
income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

7.09 | Variance: difference between latest budget and actual income or

expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

7.10

Virement: the transfer of budget provision from one budget head to another.
Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure heads,
and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers from
contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved between
capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 214




APPENDIX A

7.1

Medium Term Financial Strategy: a written strategy which gives a forecast
of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for a given
period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources to meet
its priorities, duties and obligations.

Page 215



Page 216



daHNOg woui bulpuny (DHD)

MBIABI pUB JOHUOW O} 8nuijuo)d aie) yyeaH Buinunuod [euolippy |(£60°0) 9.0 6970 S82AIBS JUBUB|qEDY
WOLO'03 SOOUBLIBA JOUIN
‘sbuiaes
ADUBDEA WIS} HOYS 0} 8NP WSO L 0F 10
puadsiapun ue }09)jal slea | AjljesoT]
‘Wwies) $sa00y
10 04 8jbuig sy} wol) sbuines
Aoueoen seeh ued o1 anp s Wy9p 03
U3iym JO 10BlU0D) 1siid/aMelu] uo
WeE0 03 4o pusdsiapun ue st a4ay | _H_
"siosn 9ojA8s bunsixa (A
uo paseq Wwgoz 03 4o pusdsiepun ')
‘Hodail paioslfoid e syoapal aren) Aeljoiwog w
8y} uiylm pajielap se 18bpng saoinieg "awooul Auadoud 0
SHNPY 8y} JO seale Jslo ulylim leuoippe pue (gHNO4g) pieog
saunssaid e9/AI8S 198w 0} paubijesl yjesH AUsisalun Jjpeempen) 1s1eg
SI WQ0E 0F 184} papuswLLosal| wol swooui Buisinu a8} Ul osealoul
SI )l pUE PaMBIABL AjjROniID ‘518SN @0IAIBS Ul BSB2I09D B 0] anp
u9s(q SABY 92IAISS SIU} JO SBalR BUIoS ‘WEHE 03 Jo puadsiapun payosioid
uo spuadsiapun pajoefoid Jo |aAs] 8y |e smoys ale) Buisiny pue jenuapisay|(£28°0) £06°Sl 121791 SO0
sjdosd 4opI0

palinbay uonoy|

T xipuaddy

aouenep tolejy Jo asnen| asoueliep

(wz)

uinung
pajoslfoag

(wz)
1obpng
poasinay

Sa0IAISS [BID0g

92IAIRS

AHVINIANS - ¥ HLNOW

S80UBHEA pund [Iouno?
jioday Buiiojiuop jebpnyg




‘pajeoo)e
Bueq sebuo| ou awooul Juelb sidosd
Buipoddng sy woly Buisie ainssaid
8y} jo awos ayebiiw Ajpted oy 19bpng
10 WgGQ 03 o wawubiesal pasodoid

"WZ00°03 §0 |dueteq

ay} dn Bupjew saouBLIBA JOUIL UM
‘sBuiaes Aoueoea wia) Loys o3 Ajuiew
anp aled [BRuBpISSY U0 WHE0'0F

Jo puadsiapun psjosloid Jsypng e

st alay] “eus)o Ajiqibie ey bunsew
0} 8NP UOIIBD0||E |{BJBAD S|10UN0D

By} WwoJyj WgsO 03 Jo uoneoojie juelh
ajdoad bujpoddng jo uonessad ay)
woyy Buisue ainssalid e Aq 1esyjo Ajued
s| puadsispun sy 'J0108S aied ay)

Ul SSIYNOIYIP UONUBIaL PUB JUSUIINIDS]
0} anp (W8l 03F) seweyos

2ied enxe pue (WL 0F) seoInI8s
aie0 awoy Japiaoid uiyum sBuines
Aoueden wial uoys ale pusdsiepun
pajosfoid ay} uo seousnpul ulew ey

(982°0)

yeg9'S

026G

S90IMBG pojenboy @ $80IN0SaY)

o

"SOIII0R) BIBD BIIXS MBU BUj} JO S1S09
anuanal 8y} Jo aWos s 0} 186png
4O SS90X® BYj] JO UONESI|IIN aINN4

padinbay uonaoy

T XIpusddy

SIITE]

84ED BIIXS MBU BY] JO SIS0D BNUDASI
8y} J0 awos Jo Buipuny 1o} payiewues
uasq sey Buines siUl 61/8102

Wod- "D 4 WoIf UOINGUIUOD JO [9AS)
psonpal e Ul paynsas sey sisuped

4O sjaA8] uonNqLILod 8y} (SIDMIN)
a101g wewdinbg Ajunwiwon

sajep 1seT YHON 8yl Joy uswaaibe
diysiauped ¢¢ uonoag pejepdn

ue jo uoneswsaidw Buimo;jo4

doueuep Jolep jo asnen

(0L10)

(w3)

goueliep

£6E0

(w3)

wnpno
paideloid

€050

(w3z)
1ebpng
pasinoy

uofnguiues) wswdinbg Aunwiwon

20IAIBG

AUVININNS - ¥ HLNOW

~ S§@duBlieA pung [Iouno)
Jodeay Buliojiuoyy Jebpng

Page 218




MBIAB] pUB 10JIUOW 0] BNUILOYD

WEO0 0F SOoUBLIEA JOUIN
‘a4e0 AeiioILop pue [eljuapisal 1oy}
uoneooje jaued a2inosal sy} Jsuiebe
W/ 0 0F Jo puadsiapun pajosfoid

e Aq 1980 si yoiym pooyynpe o}
uoyIsuUE.} Ul SI9ABS] [00Y9s 10} 19Bpng
BY} U0 WEZL'0F Jo ainssaud e s| alay |

£90°0

€840

9120

saolneg Aljigesi|g

syusiuied

10811p pue aled Aegj/Aeloiiog
Buipiaoud Buial pepoddng

uiyim seoinies jo dnoub poddns sy
uym saunssaud ssaippe o} 196png
40 WZHZ 0F jo wewubijeal pssodoid

(1Sad) wewiedw

Aiosuag pue sapljigesi(] [eoisAud uo
aleo paseyoind Ajjeulexe U0 wWgeQ 03
10 puadsiapun pajosfoid B s1 a8y |
"S80IAI8S 8s8U] 10} (NAV) [epow
AIBNIjOp BAljeUIB)E UB JBpUn J0BIUO0D
mau e Bums ui Aejep sy} o} Ajued

anp si UoIYM ‘WegL 07 4o ainssaud

B S108}j8J Uolym sadineg Ae( pue
saiiunpoddo SUOAA 01 selejal 1oedu
wesyiubis xau ay | ‘puadsiano
pajoslold jelenc 8yl Jo WZgy 03

O |B10} & 0] Bununowe sediAles BUIAlT
pauoddng papiacid Ajjeuisixa sy}
uiypm sainssald paousnjjul puewsp
Buiobuo pue Buipuels Buo| ale alsy|

£96°0

¢l0'0c

0Sv'6l

Page 219

0

sa0IMeSg poeInbey ¥ S80IN0say

saonieg Ajjigesiq

‘ paiinbay uonoy

T Xiptaddy

aoueue Jolepy jo asneg| soueliep

(£00°0)

(w3)

¢ec0

(wg)
wningo
pajosloid

|vez0

(wgz)
jobpng
pasinay

SBOUBLIEA JOUIN

3JINISS

AHVININNS - ¥ HLNOW

Saduellep pung [Iounoy
yiodsy buiiojiuoly jobpng




(820°0) 605°¢ LES'C SBIUBLIEA JOUIN
gHNOog
wod} suonnquiuod Bulpuny juiol ainoss
0} ssfjlunioddo Jo uonesiwixew O
aydsap ‘sjuswaoe|d |enuspisal wia) N
Buoj Jo siequinu sy} 0} anp ainssaud N
MoIABS pue Joluow o) snunuon| Buiobuo pue Buipueys Buol e s1 a8y |00s0 Lyl XAR! SUBWBTE|d [BIUBPISOY Q
S80IAIBS Y)jedl Jejudy ©
0000 ¢L0'0 ¢L0°0 seduBLIBA JOUIN
'sBuines Aoueoen wisl JHoys 0] Ajuiew
MBIAB] PUB JOJUOW 0} 8NUIU0D anp si puadsiapun pajoefoid syl |(zso 0) 9950 0290 S90IAI8G AJljIgeSI(] ¥ UoIlISUR |
"sbuiaes Aoueoen wisl Hoys o} Ajuiew
MBIADI pUB JOHUOW O} 8NuUnuon anp si puadsiapun pajosfoid syl i{gzL0) 00 0 8910 poddng aAljesisiuiwpy
(w3) (w3) (w3)
/ wnuno 19bpng
poaainboy uonoy aoueuen Jofep jo esney| ooueuep | pejosfoad pPasiASY adIAI0g

T Xpusddy

AHVININNS - ¥ HLNOW

SaJUBLIBA pundg [Iounos)
1oday buriojiuoj 1ebpng




(9£0°0)

p6c’1

0ee’}

SBoUBLEA JOUI

MBIABI pUB I0}IUOW 0} BNUIUO0

y1loc

1V (sajepn) Bulag-flapn pue saoinieg
|BID0S 8U} Jopun saijijigisuodsal
jeuoliippe jo suonelaidisiul

Aq pasusnjjul Ajed sem yoiym
spuswened 1509 ybiy Jo Jaquunu

By} Ul eseaJoul Jueoyiubis e sem
aI8U} 8laym '/ 1/91.0Z Ul aousuadxs
B} JO uonenulUOoD B S| ainssaid siy|

G290

[ANN4

£09°€

sjuUBWBIe|4 AlUNoD 10 INO

MBIABJ PUE JOLUOW 0} snuiuo)

sanssi uonosiold pliyo uo

siom [euociBal sepim Loddns 01 pasu
ay} AQ pasuenyul si pue ‘voddng
pue uonusasid uiyum Apemolued
sainssaud soinues bBulobuo o Ajurew
anp si puadsiano paosfoid syl

981°0

¥80°S

868

OO

yoddng jeuoissajold

MBIAB] pue JoJUOW O] snuljuon

"§IN0OY [EUONIPPE JUBDHIUDIS
Buppom geis syl Jo Jaquinu e pue
SI9MIOM [BUOISSSS 10) pajuswsjdul
uaaq Buiney syuswebuele
[ENIOBILUOD MBU JO UOJIELIqUIOD

e 0} anp sainssald Aed aie aiay |

£80°0

Ovy 0

95€'0

Page 221

uoddng Anwe

MBIADI PUB JOHUOW O] 8NnuiUo?)

"1ebpng pajeoojie

By} JO |oAd] By} puoAag saousnjul
puewap pauieisns o} enp aunssaid
BujoBbuo pue Buipuels Buoj e s) aley |

rl0

¥08°¢

Pov'e

uswaeld Ajwe

;vm;._‘_scwm uonoy

T Xipusddy

aoueliep Jofep Jo asnen

(w3z)

aoueLiep

- (wgm)
uinuno
pojosloid

(w3z)
1obpng
pasiney

SBOIAIDS S,UdIP[IYD

AUYINIANS - ¥ HINOW

SadUBLIB/ pund [Iounocn
1iodsy Bbulolitioly yobpng




age 222

v1e0 6G2°€9 Sv6°29 S8JIAIBS [BI00G [Bjo)
S00°0 989°¢ 1897 S8JUBLEA JOUIN
sBuiaes Aouesea Wis] Loys Jo Jaguunu
MBIABI pUE JOHUOW 0] 8nupuos| e o} enp st puadsiepun pajoafold sy l(gso o) /€8°0 9680 Uijea poon)
"sjuswissasse (§10q)
Buipienbejeg Aueqit jo uoneaudsq
ay1 jo 1pedwy Butobuo sy pue
Slelialal Jo SIsquInu By} Ul asealoul
eoyubis e o1 enp Buipienbajes
SHNpy ulyum Alenoued esines
S1y} uo saunsseid pasusnyjul puewsp
MBIABS PUE JOJUCW O} BNUNUOYD ueoyiubis penuRuod ale 819yl |6.0°0 688°0 0180 nun Buipsenbajeg
91 0¢ 1snbny WO} 15018 OjU]
SUWED UYDIYM SIUBLUSSASSE jBIouRUl
uo sajni piebausip 0 sabueyo
40 10edwl Jesk {jny ay) Ag pasned
Ajurew si yosiym swooui snjdins
MB3IABI pUB JoJiUoW 0} 8nuiluo)| 01 anp si puadssspun pajoafoid syl (511°0) (og27) (1vo'z) auwiooul Aoljod Buibieyn
s8aunossy B uswdojraqg
(wg) (w3) (w3z)
‘ winno 19bpng
palinbay uonoy 9oueuep Jolep Jo asneg| soueuep | pejoeloid posiAay aoIAIng

T xjpusddy

AHVININNS - ¥ HLNOW

SAoUBLIEA pund [IoUnos)
yioday BuLIoUGH 1ebpng




_uw.__‘:umm :o‘_uo<;

T Xjpusddy

uwnuno
aoueuen Jolejy jo esnen| soueuep | pejosioid

1ebpng
pasinoy

(045°0) 0.6°LL 0vsZL asudiaug @ fjunwwo) jejo |
"MBIAB] pUB JOHUOW 0} BNUIU0YD ‘SOUBLIBA JOUIN|LO0'0 Lv1L0 ovL 0 sawiwelboid Buisnoy
TWET003) Seouelen
Jouiw 1oY10 (WEG L 03) 4o pund
sl ay) Inoybnoiyl| uonosijon xe (1punon) syl uo sniding
abueyo o} A}yl ale suonosfoid (W0 03) Jo aweyog uononpay m
pue ajejon Alybly ale sesle Xe] [1ouncs ayy 1o} uoisiaoud MN__
asay] se Aj9S0[D JOUOW 0] SNUIIUo.) pejebpng syl uo puadsiepuni(sss Q) L0201 08201 sljouag g senuanray,
o))
(WE0 0F) SeoUBLEA JOUILL O
JBYJ0 "9iel swes au} 1e peseslou) Jou e
aAey sabieys aisym pue UoIBLUL YIM
aul} Ul paseassul aaey yoiym syebiey
SWIOdUI [EOLOISIY 0} 8NP Siddlew
"M3IASI PUE JOJUOW 0} BNURLOY) up WOSo 03 40 liegdoys Buinunuon| /400 6SY°0 ZLv'0 uonessusbay
"MSIASI pUB oJUOW 0} 8nuURuU0n) ‘seoueLeA JOUINI(EZ00) (cee0) (z.0) Buisnop pun4 Iounon
"MBIABS PUE J0}UOW 0} SNUNUOT) ‘seoueMEA JOUINI{(LZ0'0) 9G6G°| 08S°1 sa91A19g Buisnon puy Jawoisny
aspdsoiug p Ajunwion
(wgz) (wz) (w3)

ERlIVETS

AUVINIANS - ¥ HINOW

S3O0UBLIEA pun4 [IDUN0H
yioday buiiojiuoyy jobpng




0000 96.°0 G6.°0 SBOUBLEA JOUIN 18410

‘UMl oy} ssouoe sebueyo jo

nojjos oy} uo Bupoedwi pue BuioBuo
Buleq uswidolanap-al 81USD UMO}
Jojoel ] Aosusioig 8y} 03 enp 1eble; wiggl 03 jsuiebe

pieog swweiboid ul payoday| ainssaid Jesh ued "wosQ 03 Bunued
S4.LIN Jo ped se mainal sopun desy) JED Julj4 WG4} BWOdUL JO [BJIOYS|050°0 (880°0) (880°0) juswaolojuy g buned

woso 03 eielado o Buinuuoo
soys Bunsixe omy Jo §1s00 Buiuuny
leuonippe u Bunnsas a)is OHH
BHID300Y MBU 8y} jo wswidojansp

We61L 03 - %6'94061/81 auyy ul AejeQ "%/ ’°¢ J0 g1/ 1 Ul ued AM

Joj uesb gs3 ul uononpal SAlEdIpUl| By} JO UORONPal 8Y} 0] 8NP W | L 03 N

S41IN Jo ved se malned Jepun deayj|  aunssaid juelb (gg3) weawdopasq L

Jaoel| 9jgBUIBISNS PUE JUBWIUONAUT w

Aousioig pieog swiwieiBold ul ‘uoloenxs seb Jo sjens) Bujonpal (0
papodey  pedINoSINo aq 0} 9oIAISS wol ssjes A)ouos|e psonpal
8y} 4o} patedald Buiag s1oeIU0D pue s$8)Is {jypue] sy} 1e uononpoud
pue Ajyuow pasoyuoul Buleq AbBleus pajedionue usyy Jemoj 0}

s|aA8] swooui uononpoud ABiaug| Buneal WOEZ 03 JO 9oUBLBA 8SIOAPY|//E0 St L 8607/ UuoloB}j0Y) BISEAA

8aUBULIOLIB B Saoialeg Aiejjiouy

uoneuodsuel] R 2US0S}BVIIG

(wy) | (wy)
wnng 19bpng

paiinbay uonoy| aoueueA Jofe jo asnen| osoueuep | pojosiold | pasiney

AHVINIANS - ¥ HLNOW

SaoUBLIEBA pun4 [Iounocy)
Joday builiojiuoly 19bpng

T Xipuisddy



‘Bujobuo

Apusuno ssiotaxe Buuspusial
uopeyodsuel} ay; ybnouyy 1509
aonpai 0} buidoy "sJesA ainny 1o} 1s00
au} Jo Junodoe Bupie} SHLIN 8y Ul
padinbas 8q ||Im uonesspisuon Bulobu
‘sjustuaiinbal uoisinold Aiojnielg

0} anp HAA wody Buipuny jeuonippe oN

w0z 03 Aen syeuuon

01 j00y0g YBIH SIBWWNG Uyopr Wolj
sjidnd jeuotiippe Jo 51500 Hodsued)
9y "wggl 0F uonepinbij o

Buiob uojelado snoinaud ayy Buimoy|oy
senol yodsuel) [00Yos SNOLIBA
BusAoo Joy usiainood-al Buimojjol
s1509 Apisqgns jeuolippe BuiobuQ

Gge0

401G

ccly

uodsuel] jooyog

S4LIA 0 Hed se malnal Jepun deay]

wooL 03
g1//1 Jo} wniwald soueinsul 188|4 Ui

8sealou| "WsH 0F lesodoud Buuueid
ssauisng /1/91 wol} pasyeusiew
J0U sey sanuoyiny Buunogybieu
yum jueld 1sieioads paieys

1910

969y

88V ¥

$8OIAI9G 82IN0SeY B sonsIBo

sonsibo 9 uonepodsue.

‘sooud ABisus Bunybl| 1eans Joyuow
0} 9NUUOYD)  I8Yoe] ADUSIOIYT
pieog swwelbold ul pauodey

"S- 1IN 1o Hed se maiaal Japun doay)

wicL 07 jo ainssaud

e ul Buiyinsai 9,9 JO asesJoul

UB UM pIEpUBLS 9,2 8] 8Aoqe saold
ABisuse Buiybi 1eang "pojuswe|dul
usaq 184 J0U sBY WRSO 03

Buiyjeio} sjounon AJUNWWONUMO |
0] SaLsBWan) 10} pailssuen

Buieq Aujigey aosueusiuieWw ay)
H(s1VD) siajsuel] 19SSy AUNWWLIoD)
uo suoissnasip bulobuo oy eng

¥02°0

£e9' L

6lvL

Page 225

yomeN sAemybiy

‘um‘::_omm_ uolioy

aoueuep Jofe jo asnen

(w3z)

aoueLIBA

(wz)
winuno
pejosfoiyg

(w3)
}abpng
posiney

siompeN sAemybipy

T xipusddy

AHVIAINNS - ¥ HLINOW

SaDUBLIEA pun4 [IDUNos
jyiodsy buiojiuoy 1ebpng




0i6°L

16C°6C

08" LZ

uoneuodsuel] R sUSIS}BANG |BIO ]

€€0°0

€991

Oev'l

saoueLEA JOUIN J8UIO

T xipuaddy

‘S41IN Jo Hed se maiaal Japun doay

ioyoel] AsusidiyD
pieog swwelbold Ul pauoday

padinbay uonoy

‘UOIINLY 0] BLUOD 9S3Y)
41 @s1o1exs Juswainoold-al suodsuel |
jooyoS oY) woly pasiubooal

sBuiaes jeuonippe Aue Wolj 19840

8Q 0} SI SIy ] "Jeak ul paasiyode aq 0}
Aynun wsy L 03 jo Buiaes Aousiois
Apisgns sng WSOz 03 81/LL Wl
Aousioile Apisgng sng sy} Bulonpoiju
ui Aejap 8y "Wy 03 uonepinbil ol
Buiob Jojelado snoiaaid ayy Buimoy|o}
sanos podsuesy olignd snouea
Bupsao9 Joy wawelinsoid-a. Buimoyjoy
51800 Apisgns jeuociyippe BuiobuQ

aoueuep Jole jo asnep| aoueliep

G690

0LET

(wz)
uwinnno
pojoalfoid

ql9'l

(wz)
}obpng

pasinay

Page 226

m

uoneuodsues |

AHVIAINNS - ¥ HLNOW

SaJUBLIE pln4 [IoUnoy
jicday buniojiuopy 1ebpng




3jqissod
alaym ainjipuadxs papiwwod
BaA0OWBI/2oNPal pue ainyipuadxs

age 227

PaiWIOD JO)UCW 0} BNURUOYD (520°0) €480 868°0 S80UBLIE/ JOUIN
“suonosload
"/ 10¢ uwnny Ui 8oIAIes S| JUBLIND UO paseq ‘parsiyoe
1O 8ININ} 8YL MBIABY “9,¢ JO BSESIOUI aq o} Ajpyijun st 1961} SWooUl BY)
Areuoneur ue yym sull ul peseaioul ‘81//10Z Ol SpIEMUO PUE /1/910Z
sajel |ouoD 1s8d pue majnal e 0}  Buunp sjelslal Ul 9SesIoul e uses
108lgns usaq saey sabieys pue soa| sey aoiAIes By) Jey) 108} 8y audsad|se0 0 0v0°0 $00°0 [0JIUCD) 1584
Apunwiwos(
ajgissod
aloym alnyipuadxe paPILLLIoD
SAOWBI/2ONPal pue ainyipuadxse
PBJILILIOD JOjjUOW 0} 8nuluo) (900°0) 180°L 1801 S8OUBLIEA JOUIN
"PUBLLSPH Ul oseardul Sy}
ylim [eep 0} psyinioas Buiaq s18o0
yijesy [euswuonaug Aesoduis)
OM] Ul paynsads sey ssiuadoid
[eljuBpISal vjEsSuUN pue pasuaolun
"MBIABI pue Jojjuow o} snuiuon | o) Buneas suonnossod Ul 8seRIOUI UVY{960°0 $/6°0 670 |OHUOT uoiInjod

ssauisng

padinbay uonoy

T Xipusddy

~9oueleA Jolely Jo asne)| aouelep

(wz)
wnpno
pojosloud

(w3)
1abpng
pasianay

uswiuosAug R Buluueld

90IAI9G

AUVINIANS - ¥ HLNOW

SeJUBIIEA pund [IDUNoYH
yiodsy buiiojuoy 1obpng




a|gissod

alaym aunyipusdxe panIuwoD
sAOUIBI/EONPpal pue ainjpuadxs
POIWILIOD JOHUOW O} 8nuUiuon

(£00°0)

G610

8G1°0

SBoUBLEA JOUN

pasinbai se uonosloid puswe pue
SjoAs| 98- uoles)ddy ald pue s|oAg)
894 uoneosyddy Buiuue]d JoUUO

"898} uopeoldde sy} i yim

pue ssaooud Buiuued |ewlo] ayy Jo
Hels 9y} Ojul pasijeusiewl 184 JoU aaey
Uojum sajis ui 1sauajul Jadoenap Jo
uonesIpul ue st yoiym Japenb 1siy ey
1O pud oy} Ag Jow udaq Apealje sey
seo4 uopesiddy aid 10} 1861e) awooul
jenuue sy psjoipaid Ajsnoiasid
uey} pepiwugns Buteq suoneoydde

JO SWINJOA 18SS3| B Ul pa}jnsal

Sey SiY] PBAISDa) BWodUl 984 8y
1084e [jim uing Ul yoiym suoneoijdde
anjea ybiy swlos Jo uoissSILIgNS

8y} paAelap sey uonesijdde

ue Bumiwgns 03 Joud sAep gz o
pouad e 10} uojeynsucs aid oul Jsjus
0} stadoaasp olew Joj sjuslialinbal
JUSLULIBAOS) YS[OAA BU) JO

edwi syl 1SED8I0} UB|H SSauIsng
1B8A € BU} YOIUM JUSIXS B} 0] JOAQDSI
0} panuUiUod Jou sey AWouoos

8y} SB WGze 03 Apuauno si jjejioys
alioau| 894 Buluue|d pajosioid ayy

¥i€0

(e20°0)

(98£°0)

wawesbeuepy weawdojoas(]

Page 228

;_om.__:cwm uonoy

T Xjpusddy

aoueLieA Jofepy Jo asnes|

(wgz)

8ouBLIEA

(w3z)
winjn

pojoafoiy

(w3z)
Jobpng
pasinoy

)

Wwewdojanag

90IAIDS

AAVINIANS - ¥ HLNOW

SedUBIIBA pun4 [IDURoY

Yioday Bunojiuop 1ebpng




£0S°0

9EV'S

[4% 04

juswiuoslAUg ' Buluueld [ejol

ajgissod alaym ainypusdxs
PaIIWWOD anoWwal/aonpal

pue ainjipuadxa paPiILICD JojuoW
0} |anunuon siseq Alelodwa) e

uo siyl Buinsiyoe ui 1sisse (jim sBuines
ADUEOJBA BUIOS "MBIASY BDINIDS BU)
Jo ued se payjuapl 8q 0} $81OUBIOIYT

Buiyels 10} sarousioyg
Buiuuejd sseuisng jo souejeg

9¢€l0

8410

0ve0

Absjens wuswabeuey

3|qissod

aloym ainypusdxa payiluwon
DAOWBI/EINPEI pUB ainjipusdxs
Po}IWILLIOD JO}UOW 0} BNUIIUOD

(1000)

€680

€80

SOoUBLEA JOUIN

Abajens

a|qissod

alaym ainiipuadxs pPoRILILLOD
aAOWal/BINpal pue ainjipuadxs
POILLLIOD JOJUOW 0} SNURUOoND

(000°0)

L4170

L2410

SBoUBLBA JOUI

age 229

SOIIAIBS poIBYS

3|qissod

alaym ainyipuadxs papiuiwion
aA0WBI/EoNpal pue ainypuadxa
PB1HWIWIOD JOJUOW O} BNUIIUOYD)

800°0

£c0’L

clol

S8OUBLIBA JOUIN

uayeuspun buleq Ajjuaing
St apISAIIUNOYD LIYJIM MBIABI BDIAIBS

S]0BJUOD SINoY
oJez paosnpal pue sbuines Aoueoep

(150°0)

S.¢0

9¢e0

AsjieA playusaln

(w3z)

wnuno

$S890y

paiinboy :ozu.a

T xjpuaddy

ooueuep Joley 1o asney | oduellep

palosioad

AHVINIANS - ¥ HLNOW

sajueliep pun4 {1Idunocy
Hoday buliojiuoi 19bpng




 Joowo  [zewes |zowes sioouos
(920°0) 858°01 v€6°01 Yino\ '@ uoyeonpg [ejol
0000 2650 650 uoisinoid p Bujuueld jooyos i)
saoueuLeA JOUINIOLO 0) 0680 00¥'0 poddng % abueyn ssauisng D)
saoueleA JOUINI{RE0 D) GEQ'L £/8°L swvlsAg Juaweaaciduw| jooyog w
S8oUELBA JOUIN| L Y00 cee’l 162’1 UOISIAOIH YINOA pajesbaju| =
FEEEY
ay) Buunp aseauoul [m spusisoe|d
JO [9A8] By} ey} pajedionue si
3] "sjuswsoed AJUNOD 1O INQ 10 [9AS)
Wauno sy} s1os|ed puadsiepun ayl {8o0°0) 60.°9 9//°9 uoissaibold ® uoisn|ou|
YInoA g uoijeonpy

palinbay uonoy

(wy) | (wz)

wnnno | 19bpng
soueliep Jolely jo esne| eouepep | poajosioad posiasy

T xipusddy

AAVIAINNS - ¥ HLNOW

SSouelie), pung [Iounoy
jiodoy buliojiuoyy jobpng




LSY0

¥09'%v

JA AN $92In0say @ ajdoad [ejo ]

e e

‘pauued ueyy ssbuoj Bupie; meiasl
[spow Hupesado sy} pue anIss Jjes
Jabeuew jo N0 |jos B4} 0} 8NP S SIY |
‘w0z 03 4o Jeah ay) jo abejs siyy e
AdusIDlje UoHESILLIBPO BoUBUI- By}
uo j[ejuoys Jeah U jenualod e s atey |

8l¢0

9ee’e

8l1¢ aoueul4 sjeiodion)

—]
"
N
Q
o)
©
Al

‘S80IAISS UjesH [Euonedndsg

104 WeYXaIpA WOy UoiNgLuoo
8WOoUI JO $S0] pue Asusolye
Buuueld ssauisng jo JuswansIyoe
jeired o} snp s} puadsienD

0ve 0

892°¢

6202 Jo 8 HH

polinbay uonoy

soueueA Jofejp Jo asnel| asuelep

(wi3)
winnng
payoofoid

$904N0say R s|doay

(wgz)
1obpng
pasinay

T Xjpusddy

ALVINIANNS - ¥ HLNOW

S8dUBLIBA pung jIounoy
yodoy Buuiojiucyy jobpng




| | | | e

Page 232

w0 968°L 159°L 9IUBUIBAOL) [BIO |
EEYY

[BIOUBUL 1XBU |IN} Uj PBABIYDE 8q 0} ‘SBIOUBIOS

pajoadxa ale SaIouUBIsIYS paAsIyseun Buiuueld ss8UISNQ JO JUBLUBABIYDR
8y 'MBIABI pue JoJIUOW 0} SNUIU0Y) jered o] snp Ajjsow s1 puadsiennios00 8LS Y Qv b 191

‘reuod juswAed

ay} oo uonessibag 1oj swoou

Jaiddns ensund Jebuoj ou 0} uoisioap
SNOIDSU0D 0} 8np si puadsiann|alL L0 ¥82°0 8910 UBWaIN00I
‘93uUeleA ONJ000'0 (A4 AY evy’0 Hpny [ewtaiy]
'sooUBLEBA JOUINIS00'0 1261 $76°L SOOIAIBG DljBIO0Wa(]
‘Se8ouBLeA JOUIN|/E0'0 2,0 8890 $80IM8G [BBaT
DOUBUIOACD

(w3z) (w3z) (wg)
; u ununo 19bpng

padinboy uonoy aouelien Jolely jo asne)| ssuelep | peyoslold pasiney aoinIeg

T xipuaddy

AUVININNS - ¥ HLNOW

SSOUBIBA purni4 [Iouno?
jioday Buliciiuopy 1ebpng




6.0°0 006°S 128°G | abueyg jeuonesiuebiQ |ejo]
"MBIABI PUE JOJUCW 0} BNUIUOYD "'seouUeLEA JIOUIN|000°0 $Z0°0 $20°0 §188SY AHUNWILIOD

‘pOA0SSl

MOU Ble Sanssi 958t 'swi Jo

yibusy siyy Joy uoneoydde syy dn play

SABU JOU DINOYS Y34 8u Jeu] pue

JUBAS|B. 10U 849M 9SBU] JO Jaquunu

B 1By} uMmoys sey siosiape jeba| ino

yum o Auedwos ayy Buusysibal

ut (vD4) Ailoyiny 1onpuo) jeloueui

8y} wolyy sesuodsal ajeledes ¢

ur sauenb jo abues e 01 anp syUOW 7

Aq padejep useq sey siy| Jequisideg

1S| J0J 189S MOU S| SalieIqIT pue
"MBIAB] PUE J0JUOW 0} 8NUNUO0D 8INS[oT BINY JO JUSWIYSIARISS 92U 1198070 ov6'E 098°¢ a2InsiaT|
"MBIABS PUE JOJUOLW 0] 8NUIUOY) ‘SBOUBLIBA JOUINIOD0 O 98Z'0 9820 SBAIIY AJUNDD)
"MBIAB] pUE JOJUOW 0} BNUUOY) ‘sooueueA JouIN {000 0) /900 1900 SWNasniy
"MBIABI pUE 10UOW 0} SNUIU0Y) ‘saoueleA JoUINH{900°0) 11G°L €961 SIUBAT g aInN}ny) ‘SUY ¥ SaueIqlT olgnd
1 abueyn jeuonesiuebip

(w3z) (w3z)
| wnyuno 196png

palinbay uonoy aouelep Jofep jo asnen| ooueuep | paiosloid pasiney aglnlag

T xjpusddy

AAVINIANS - ¥ HLNOW

S8dUBlIE A pun4 [Iouncy
yiodsy Buuojiuoyy jobpng

Page 233




B 0 e e e

"W9Z0'0F SSOUEBLIBA JOUIN'WOE0 03 Aq
puadsiapun 0} pajoadxe ale suone|sy

AN pUE [IDUNOD) INOA/AHUNWILLIOYD
inoA ‘juawdojassp ajgeulelsns

10} s1aBpnq sisijetoads ‘WeS0 03

10} sBuiaes Aoueoea 1o suo aie alay |

(9L1°0)

144 K4

001°¢

0v6'e

8ARN29XT JOIYD

T Xipusddy

(681°0) 882 Z 8buey [euonesiuebiQ jejo)
(600°0) 0ee't 8ee't SaOUBLEBA JOUlN
"S810UBIDIYS 89140 Jsulebe
19SHO 8q ||iM SIU L "SW0ooUl [BIUS)
psAsiyoeun jo ynsaiese W/ 031210 (286°0) (gg1°1) SHUN [elsnpuy
‘wZLoos <
saouBlLRA Joulw Jayl( ‘sbuines Alejes B
Jeah ur wip/0 03 1eble) eaoge swooul o
89} [euolippe pajosfoid wee L 03{(122°0) 0L¥0 169°0 seolneg ubisad B NdD| o)
‘sbuines Atejes seah ul w/50°03((250°0) jeleTolly] 9y 0 wswidopas(] puy 18ssy Auedold ©
S8JUEBLIBA JOUINI900°0 1200 S1L0°0 sbuipjoH Auedoid
saoueueA JouliN|9%0°0 (zvl0) (681°0) saje}s [einynolby
‘lleH Ajunog ur ¢ pue
¢ soseyd Jo ainso|o sy} woly Bupinsal
SelousIolye pajewss woz L 03|(9Z1°0) SiL'lL Lve'L sbuipjing eAnessiuLIpY
z abueyn jeuonesiuebip
(w3z) (w3z) (wgz)
; winyng 18bpng.
_ pasinbay uonoy ooueLen Jofep jo esne)| souenep | pajosioid | pesiasy

AUVININS - 7 HLNOW

S3OUEBLIE/ pun4 [Iouno?)
poday bulicliuoly 1obpng




"PBULIUOD Apjusoal

24ED |BID0S 104 Buipuny JUBUWILIBA0D)
USIBM JO WIGES 0F leudippe Uy "siseq
10 8u0 e uoy ucneosoje uelb enuaal
pun4 aien pajelbaju; jeucibay

By} wody painoas sem Buipuny se

0} anp (WS 0F) ‘pesinbai sabuoj ou
91/.1 ul payebpng sinssaid Buiuiewal
woy buiynses (Wz 15 03F) - spuadsiono
Jeah ul Aue a1ebijiw o) Ajjenuen

play (W/09°13) jo puadsiepun

edwl /8| SSOSSE 0} SUOHRISPISUOD JeaA ul JJo 8uo ‘saoineg 8100
S41IN JO ved se mainal Jopun desy

(COXANVEY
10 puadsiapun ‘sea) Ipny peonpay

‘W80 03
jlejuoys awosul juliad Bupped ien

Page 235

"8)S00
Bunessdo jjeseno ul uoyonpal e 0}
anp WyEZ 03 10 (jepdoys e Ul pajnsal
sey ‘ebieyoal aoiAleg poddng

SUOJBIBPISUDD ‘Auunpioddo jo sealde Ajjuspl

S4LIN Jo ved se mainad Jepun daey| 0} Buinunuoo st dom ybnowy ‘Wz Ly 03
"awiooul sjessust oy Ayunuoddo JO JUBLUBABILDRIBPUN UB ‘SBRIAIIDE

10 seale Ajuapi 0] BUINUIUOD SI MOAA Bunetsusab awooul jeuolippy {08 L) FAR R A 919'vZ 9sueuid ajelodion pue jRiUSY

(w3) (w3) (wz)
; winung 19bpng
paiinbay uonoy ooueuep Jolep Jo ssneq| aoueuep | paoslold pasinay

AHYIIANS - ¥ HLNOW

SaduelieA pung [Iounosy
jioday BuLIG}iUO Jobpng

T Xjpuaddy



.

ainssaid

61/81 Jo uoneBiniw Joj [enusjod
1opIsuoo 0} Jeak ur maiaal Jepun dosy)

paiinboy uonoy

W90 0F) SooUBHEA JOUT

"81L/2102 ul

SUOINGUIUOD Uf BsSES8I0Ul 10} palinbal
196pnq o snidins 0} enp (WQgZ 03)
SOUBHEBA PUN} UOISUBY padsloid

98Z'L

aoueLiep lofe jo asnen

(43414

(w3z)

aouelep

9617652 B30 pueis)

(wz)
wining

pajoafoad |

age 236

(w3)
jobpng
pasiAsy

T Xipusddy

AAVININNS - ¥ HLNOW

S80UBIIE/ pun4 jlounos
poday buliojiuoly Jobpng




2017/18 Efficiencies Outturn - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Finance - Implementation of Collaborative Planning Software (o finance to

improve and automate our processes thus enabling workforce
efficiencies. Phased roll out of new finance model.

Review of Human Resources & Organisational Design operating model

and job roles and various other efficiencies.
DBS recharges
Total People & Resources

Governance
ICT - Reduction in management, staff and non pay costs.
Total Governance

Social Services

Develop a ‘progression’ model for Supported Living.

Develop alternative approaches to in house day services and work
opportunity schemes.

Total Social Services

Organisational Change 1
Alternative Delivery Models

Total Organisational Change 1

Streetscene & Transportation
Develop energy production at landfill.
Review subsidised bus routes.

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment
Staffing - management restructure.

Self financing for Public Protection Services.

- Animal & Pest Control.

- Licencing Charging.

Increase in planning fees (15% WG increase) and applications

Increase in number of planning applications
Total Planning & Environment

Total 2017/18 Budget Efficiencies
Total Projected 2017/18 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2017/18 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

Appendix 2

- - " —_ {Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2017118 2017118 2017118
£(m) £(m) £{m)
0.270 0.070 (0.200)
0.148 0.052 (0.096)
0.080 0.047 {0.033)
0.498 0.169 (0.328)
0.350 0.264 (0.086)
0.350 0.264 (0.086)
0.250 0.041 (0.209)
0.250 0.140 (0.110)
0.500 0.181 {0.319)
0.415 0.335 (0.080)
0.435 0.355 {0.080)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.350 0.145 (0.205)
0.450 0.145 {0.305)
0.125 0.062 (0.063)
0.030 0.000 (0.030)
0.015 0.000 (0.015)
0.035 0.000 {0.035)
0.205 0.062 {0.143)
% £
100 8.433
15 1.262
85 7471

Page 237



Page 238



APPENDIX 3

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2017

L.ess - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less — allocation from the Contingency
Reserve to support initial set up costs and
final technical support for the Community
Asset Transfer (CAT) of Holywell Leisure
Centre and Alternative Delivery Model (ADM)
agreed in 2016/17

Less — projected outturn overspend

Total Contingency Reserve as at 31st
March 2018

Page 239

£m £fm
10.953
(5.769)
5.184
(0.050)
(1.256)
3.878



Page 240



Page 241

0000 0000 JUNoasy anuaaay Buisnoy [ejoy
2oUBLEA JOWIN{B00°0 (9z00) (Geon) SaAIBSDY (WO0L4) / 0F UORNQUIUOD
aouBLIEA ON 9v0'0 9v0°0 s18(01d YeH
‘81500 Bumollog saonpal
anuaaal wol 18bpng (euded ay) spiemo)
Bugnguiuos wyH sS4l Ul aI8Umase
$1S00 pasealoap JO 8Snedaq aiqissod
S| @seasoUl SIYL "$1S00 [B)idED SPIBMO}
SNUBARL WOJ) UOINAQLIUOD B} Ul 98340
UB 0} 8NP S| WHEEQ'0F JO SOUBLIBA BUL({660°0 066°01 06801 (v¥30) enuaasy wold sinyipusdx3 [eided
|oUBLEBA JOUINIB000 08z°¢ FARA4 s$80IA18S Hoddng g Juswsbeuey
“SOOUBLEA JOUIW S] WZOO' 03
Buiuiewss ey} "puads lojoeiuoogns o}
sajeal WQZ0°03 'sisoo yels uo sbuines
SIW/Z0L03 "aoueusjuBRy pue shieday
uo pajediogue S| WG/ L 03 4o Buines vi(521°0) vGL'6 6266 soueuBjUIEl B Sileday
soueuea JOUN [{H00 0} vLEL gLeL S}S0Q) 80IAIBG plojpueT
SoUBLBA JOUINIEZ0'0 969°L ££9°1 juswabeuey oeisy
0UBLEA ON (D00 0) SpSL GYS L sableyn ueoT - Bupueuly jeuden
BOUBLEA JOUIN| 00 0 {gssec) (86508) BUI0oU|
WUNO23Y anuaAsy BUISNOH
(w3z)
(wgz) (wz)
pannbay uoloy asueuep lofey jo asnen daueLIBA winno pajosiond 196png pasiasy 821A18G

yXipusddy

AUVININNS - ¥ HINOW

S35UBHE ) JUNOIDY enusAsy BUISNOH
{ioday buiiojitoy jobpng




Page 242



APPENDIX B

LM

= Gir y Fflint
~ﬁ§§‘§“§§§‘§§§‘€3

SLHINTY Lol

CABINET MEETING

Date of Meeting

Tuesday 26" September 2017

Report Subject

Capital Programme Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4)

Cabinet Member

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report By

Corporate Finance Manager

Type of Report

Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The report summarises changes made to the Capital Programme 2017/18 since it
was set in February 2017 to the end of month 4 (July 2017).

The Capital Programme has seen a net increase of £9.659m during the period. This

is comprised of:-

Carry forward, as approved by Cabinet during 2016/17, of £3.589m;
Additional ADM works of £1.964m;

Confirmation of Local Transport Grant Allocation of £1.947m;
Street Lighting works of £1.400m; and

Other changes during the period of ££0.759m

Actual expenditure was £14.349m.

Whilst all funding for 2017/18 schemes is in place, there is still a shortfall in the total
programme (2017/18 - 2019/20) of £0.566m. The options for funding this were kept
flexible. Options included a combination of future capital receipts, alternative grants,
prudential borrowing or phasing schemes over several years that would be
considered during 2017/18.

Page 243




APPENDIX B

RECOMMENDATIONS
(1) | Cabinet are requested to approve the overall report.
(2) | Cabinet are requested to approve the carry forward adjustments set out at
1.13.
(3) | Cabinet are requested to approve the additional allocation as setout at 1.15.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE MONTH 4 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING
POSITION- 2017/18

1.01

Background

The Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital
programme for 2017/18 of £27.744m and a Council Fund (CF) capital
programme of £19.435m at its meeting of 14" February, 2017.

1.02

For presentational purposes the capital programme is shown as a whole,
with sub-totals for the Council Fund and HRA. In reality the HRA
programme is ring fenced and can only be used for HRA purposes.

1.03

Changes since Budget approval

Table 1 below sets out how the programme has changed during 2017/18.
More detailed cumulative information relating to each Portfolio is provided
in Appendix A:-

Table 1
REVISED PROGRAMME Original Carry Changes- | Revised
Budget Forward | ThisPeriod Budget
2017118 | from 2016/17 2017118
£m £m £m £m
Chief Executives 0.100 0 0 0.100
People & Resources 0.250 0.153 g 0.403
Govemance 0.620 0.145 0 0.765
Education & Youth 7.792 0.453 0.612 8.857
Social Care 2.145 0 0 2.145
Community & Enterprise 5.044 0 0 5.044
Planning & Environment 0 1.011 0 1.058
Transport & Streetscene 2.110 0.820 3.347 6.277
Organisational Change 1 0.524 0 2.064 2.568
Organisational Change 2 0.850 1.007 0 1.857
Council Fund Total 19.435 3.589 6.070 29.094
Housing Revenue Account Total 27.744 0.000 0.000 27.744
Programme Total 47.479 3.589 6.070 56.838

ragc L94



APPENDIX B

Carry Forward from 2016/17

1.04 | Carry forward sums from 2016/17 to 2017/18, totalling £3.589m (CF
£3.589m, HRA £0.000m), were approved as a result of the quarterly
monitoring reports presented to Cabinet during 2016/17.

Changes during this period

1.05 | Changes during this period have resulted in a netincrease in the programme
total of £6.070m (CF £6.070m, HRA £0.000m). A summary of the changes,
detailing major items, is shown in Table 2 below:-

Table 2
CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD
£m
COUNCIL FUND
Increases
ADM - Additional work approved by Cabinet 1.964
Local Transport Grant - Confirmation of allocation 1.947
Street Lighting - Introduction of Salix Funding 1.400
Schools modermisation - Connah's Quay HS Re-profiling of budget 0.359
Other Aggregate Increases 0.400
6.070
Decreases
Other Aggregate Decreases 0.000
0.000
Total 6.070
HRA
Increases
Other Aggregate Increases 0.000
0.000
Decreases
Other Aggregate Decreases 0.000
0.000
Total 0.000
1.06 | At its meeting on 18th July 2017, Cabinet approved additional expenditure

on new health & fitness facilities and changing spaces at both Mold Leisure
Centre and Jade Jones Pavilion in order to assist Aura Leisure & Libraries
ADM in generating additional income. This is to be funded from Prudential
Borrowing but offset by a reduction in the funding provided to Aura, resulting
in a nil cost to the Council.

Page 245



APPENDIX B

1.07

It is usual in the early part of the financial year to receive notification of
funding allocations that were not available at budget setting time. This is
the case with both the Local Transport Grant and Salix funding for Street
Lighting.

1.08

As part of the overall funding for Band A schemes, budgets have been re-
profiled to fund expenditure at Connah’s Quay High School.

1.09

Capital Expenditure compared to Budget

Expenditure as at Month 4, across the whole of the capital programme was
£14.349m. The breakdown of expenditure is analysed in Table 3, along with
the percentage spend against budget. This shows that 25.25% of the
budget has been spent (CF 13.77%, HRA 37.28%). Corresponding figures
for Month 4 2016/17 were 30.05% (CF 35.50%, HRA 24.58%).

The table also shows an underspend (pending carry forward and other
adjustments) of £2.156m on the Council Fund and an overspend of £3.219m
on the HRA.

Table 3
EXPENDITURE Revised | Cumulative | Percentage || Projected | Variance
Budget |Expenditure | Spendv Outturn Budgetv
Month 4 Budget Outturn
{Under}/Over
£m £m % £m £m

Chief Executives 0.100 0 0.00 0.100 0
People & Resources 0.403 0 0.00 0.403 0
Gowemnance 0.765 0 0.00 0.765 0
Education & Youth 8.857 1.617 18.26 8.857 0
Social Care 2.145 0.048 0.00 0.444 (1.701)
Community & Enterprise 5.044 0.957 18.97 5.044 0
Planning & Environment 1.058 0.126 11.87 0.508 (0.550)
Transport & Streetscene 6.277 0.775 12.34 6.372 0.095
Organisational Change 1 2.588 0.175 6.77 2.588 0
Organisational Change 2 1.857 0.309 16.64 1.857 0
Council Fund Total 29.094 4,006 13.77 26.938 {2.156)
Disabled Adaptations 1.030 0.198 19.22 1.030 0
Energy Schemes 0.500 0.141 28.20 0.500 0
Major Works 1.472 0.968 65.76 1.872 0.500
Accelerated Programmes 0.450 0.315 70.00 0.450 0
WHQS Improvements 16.588 7.168 43.21 16.088 {0.500)
SHARP Programme 7.704 1.553 20.16 10.923 3.219
Housing Revenue Account Tofal 27.744 10.343 37.28 30.963 3.219
Programme Total 56.838 14.349 25,25 57.901 1.063

Page 246




APPENDIX B

Details of the variances for individual programme areas are listed in
Appendix B, which includes the reasons, and remedial actions which may
be required, where those variances exceed +/- 10% of the revised budget.
In addition, where carry forward into 2018/19 has been identified, this is also
included in the narrative.

1.12 | Although Table 3 appears to show an overspend of £3.219m for the SHARP
programme, this is due to the re-profiling of expenditure and Prudential
Borrowing from 2016/17 and therefore budget will be introduced to match
this expenditure prior to the Month 6 Monitoring Report.

Carry Forward into 2018/19

1.13 | During the quarter carry forward of £2.330m (all CF) has been identified
which reflects reviewed spending plans across all programme areas; these
committed amounts have been identified as now required to meet the cost
of programme works and/or retention payments in 2018/19.

1.14 | Information relating to each programme area is contained in Appendix B and
summarised in Table 4 below:-

Table 4
CARRY FORWARD INTO Month 4 Total
2018/19 £m £m
Social Care 1.725 1.725
Planning & Environment 0.550 0.550
Transport & Streetscene 0.055 0.055
Council Fund 2.330 2.330
Housing Revenue Account 0.000 0.000
TOTAL 2.330 2.330

Additional Allocations

1.15 | Due to a landslip on the B5101 in Frith, emergency repairs are required to
allow the road to re-open. It is requested that £0.150m of the current
headroom provision of £0.260m be allocated to fund this.

Savings
1.16 | No savings have been identified in the programme in this quarter.

Page 247




APPENDIX B

Funding of 2017/18 Approved Schemes

1.17 | The position at Outturn is summarised in Table 5 below:-
Table 5
FUNDING OF APPROVED SCHEMES
£m £m
Surplus from 2016/17 (4.688)
Assumed in 2017/18 Budget 3.567 {(1.121)
Increases
Shortfall in Capital Programme 3.187
3.187
Decreases
Actual In year receipits (1.499)
Savings (1.499)
Funding - (Available)/Shortfall 0.566
1.18 | The final outturn surplus from 2016/17 was £4.688m. Of this £3.567m was
allocated to schemes in 2017/18 as part of the budget setting process.
In addition, schemes put forward for the years 2017/18 - 2019/20 showed a
potential shortfall in funding of £3.187m.
The detail behind the above figures can be found in the report ‘Council Fund
Capital Programme 2017/18 - 2019/20" which was presented to Council on
14% February 2017.
Actual in year receipts as at Month 4 amount to £1.499m.
Whilst all funding for 2017/18 schemes is in place, taken as a whole this
indicates that there is still a shortfall in the total programme (2017/18 -
2019/20) of £0.566m. The options for funding this were kept flexible.
Options included a combination of future capital receipts, alternative grants,
prudential borrowing or phasing schemes over several years that would be
considered during 2017/18. This will continue to be closely monitored and
updates brought in future monitoring reports.
2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | Financial implications - As set out in the body of the report.
2.02 | Personnel implications - None directly as a result of this report.

Page 248




APPENDIX B

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 No consultation is required as a direct result of this report.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | At this stage in the financial year and given the size and complexity of
schemes within the programme, it is considered that the level of spend
against budget is appropriate and poses no risk or negative impact for the
Council e.g. loss of external funding.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A: Capital Programme - Changes during 2017/18

5.02 | Appendix B: Variances

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Capital Programme monitoring papers 2017/18.
Contact Officer:  Andrew Elford

Accountant

Telephone: 01352 702291
E-Mail: andrew.elford@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Budget Re-profiling: Capital schemes are very dynamic and a number of

factors can influence their timing and funding. Budget re-profiling assures
that the correct resources are available in the correct accounting period to
finance the actual level of expenditure.

Capital Expenditure: Expenditure on the acquisition of non-current
assets or expenditure which extends the useful life of an existing asset

Capital Programme: The Council’'s financial plan covering capital schemes
and expenditure proposals for the current year and a number of future years.
It also includes estimates of the capital resources available to finance the
programme.

Capital Receipts: Receipts (in excess of £10,000) realised from the
disposal of assets.

Page 249




APPENDIX B

Carry Forward: Carry forward occurs when schemes due to be completed
in a given financial year are delayed until a subsequent year. In this case
the relevant funding is carried forward to meet the delayed, contractually
committed expenditure.

CERA: Capital Expenditure charged to Revenue Account. The Council is
allowed to use its revenue resources to fund capital expenditure. However
the opposite is not permissible.

Council Fund (CF): The fund to which all the Council’s revenue and capital
expenditure is charged.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA): The fund to which all the Council’'s
revenue and capital expenditure relating to its housing stock is charged.

MRA: Major Repairs Allowance. A general capital grant from WG for HRA
purposes.

Non-current Asset: A resource controlled (but not necessarily owned) by
the Council, from which economic benefits or service potential are expected
to flow to the Council for more than 12 months.

Target Hardening: Measures taken to prevent unauthorised access to
Council sites.

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB), commonly referred to
as Supported Borrowing - Each year Welsh Government provide Councils
with a Supported Borrowing allocation. Councils borrow to fund capital
expenditure equivalent to that annual allocation, Welsh Government then
include funding to cover the revenue costs associated with the borrowing for
future years within the Revenue Support Grant. The Council decides how
this funding is spent.

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing: Borrowing administered under the
Prudential Code, whereby Authorities can set their own policies on
acceptable levels and types of borrowing. The Prudential Framework allows
Authorities to take out loans in response to overall cash flow forecasts and
other factors provided they can show that the borrowing is to meet planned
capital expenditure in the current year or the next three years.

Page 250



APPENDIX A

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2017/18

Council Fund :
Chief Executives
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

People & Resources
Headroom
Corporate Finance -H & S

Governance
Information Technology

Education & Youth
Education - General
Primary Schools

Schools Modernisation
Secondary Schools
Special Education

Minor Works, Furn & Equip

Social Care

Partnerships & Performance
Learning Disability
Children's Senvices

Community & Enterprise
Town Centre Regeneration
Vibrant & Viable Places
Affordable Housing

Private Sector Renewal/improvt

Planning & Environment
Closed Landfill Sites
Engineering

Energy Senvices

Rights of Way

Planning Grant Schemes
Ranger Sendces

Townscape Heritage Initiatives

Original Carry Previously Reported Changes | Revised
Budget | Forward "Changes Carry Savings | (Current) | Budget
2017/18 from Forward to 2017/18
2016/17 2018/19
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

0.100 0 0 0 0 0 0.100
0.100 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.100
0.250 0.010 0 0 0 0 0.260
0.000 0.143 0 0 0 0 0.143
0.250 0.153 0.000  0.000 0.000 0.000 0.403
0.620 0.145 0 0 0 0 0.765
0.620 0.145 0.000 0.000  0.000 0.000 0.765
0.250 0.032 0 0 0 (0.228) 0.054
1.173 0.077 0 0 0 (0.573) 0.677
5.952 0.072 0 0 0 0.359 6.383
0.417 0.027 0 0 0 0.754 1.198
0.000 0.245 0 0 0 0.300 0.545
0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000
7.792 0.453 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.612 8.857
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2.045 0 0 0 0 0 2.045
0.100 0 0 0 0 0 0.100
2.145 0.000 0.000 0.000  0.000 0.000 2.145
0 0 0 0 0 0.120 0.120

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000
3.548 0 0 0 0 0 3.548
1.496 0 0 0 0 (0.120) 1.376
5.044 0.000 0.000  0.000 0.000 0.000 5.044
0 0.250 0 0 0 0 0.250

0 0.631 0 0 0 0 0.631

0 0 0 0 0 0.037 0.037

0 0 0 0 0 0.010 0.010

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000

0] Panp 2510 0 0 0 0.130
0.000]  1.011|  0.000 0.000  0.000 0.047 1.058




APPENDIX A (Cont.)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2017/18

Transport & Streetscene
Waste Senices

Waste - CCP Grant
Engineering

Highways

Local Transport Grant

Solar Farms

Organisational Change 1
Leisure Centres
Recreation - Other

Play Areas

Libraries

Organisational Change 2
Administrative Buildings
Community Asset Transfers

Housing Revenue Account :
Disabled Adaptations
Energy Schemes
Major Works
Accelerated Programmes
WHQS Improvements
SHARP Programme

Totals :

Council Fund

Housing Revenue Account
Grand Total

Original Carry Previously Reported Changes | Revised
Budget | Forward Changes Carry Savings {Current) Budget
2017/18 from Eorward to 2017/18
2016/17 2018/19
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000
1.000 0 0 0 0 0 1.000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000
1.110 0.448 0 0 0 1.400 2.958
0 0 0 0 0 1.947 1.947
0 0.372 0 0 0 0 0.372
2.110 0.820 0.000 0.000 0.000 3.347 6.277
0.404 0 0 0 0 1.964 2.368
0 0 0 0 0 0 0.000
0 0 0 0 0 0.100 0.100
0.120 0 0 0 0 0 0.120
0.524 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.064 2.588
0.600 0.302 0 0 0 0 0.902
0.250 0.705 0 0 0 0 0.955
0.850 1.007 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.857
1.030 0 0 0 0 0 1.030
0.500 0 0 0 0 0 0.500
1.472 0 0 0 0 0 1.472
0.450 0 0 0 0 0 0.450
16.588 0 0 0 0 0 16.588
7.704 0 0 0 0 0 7.704
27.744 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 27.744
19.435 3.589 0 0 0 6.070 29.094
27.744 0 0 0 0 0 27.744
47.179 3.589 0.000 0.000 0.000 6.070 56.838

Page 252




wingnp pajslfoid Ajabpng = souetiep

000°0 0 000°0 ¢0¥'0 0000 £0¥'0 g0l
Lnyno e 1senbay presuo) Aed 8o paroidde pue pajsenbal
E%:W 8l 8q |1t Uoneao|e juadsun Auy| - Se paleooje eq o} - toisnoid sjeiodio) 0 0 0000 0920 0 0920 wooipeay
wingno e 1senbal plemiojAued g o panosdde pue pajsanbal fajes
128lgns ay) 8q [|iM uogeoo||e wadsunAuy]  se pajeoo|je aq o} - uoisioid sjelodio) 0 0 0000 evl0 0 evL0 9 U}{BaH - 8oueUl Bjelodion)
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
18AQ
1P Asld afey, Jlaepun) uinyng dxg | jebpng
SjuaWWOY paunbay uoyoay 30UBLIEA JO 88NED soueuep | ssupuep | soueuep | pajosfoiy jenoy jejol valy awwesboig
¥ UpUOW - 81/4107 Burioyuoly JoBpng [ejde)
$304N0S3Y ¥ 31d03d
0000 0 0000 0010 000°0 0040 1291
0 0 0000 0010 0000 0010 nJukD Aeay) pAmo
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
18AQ
1 Asid afiey, J43pupn) wnpng dxg yofipng
sjusiwon paiinbay uonay doUBLIEA JO B8NEY soueniep | eoueuep | eoueuep | pajoslold jemay jejol valy awweiboid

8 XIONZddY

S3AILNJEXH 43IHD

 Ypuol - 81/£1.0Z Burioyuopy 3ebpng [endeg

Page 253



WInEnQ pajosfosd A jabpng = souenep

0000

0 000°0 §9.°0 000°0 690 [ej0)
0 0 000°0 5920 0000 8940 ABojouyoa | uojewioju)
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
IETY)
o Asld abes;, Jl4epun) wngno dxg 1ebpng
SjuaWWoy paiinbay ooy 80UBLIBA JO BSnEY sjuelep | soueuep | eaueuep | pawsloid | jemoy | (ol eady swweiboly

(3u09) g XIONIddY

¥ UIUOW - 81/.10Z Buiojiuopy 3ebpng [eydes

JONVYNYIA0D

Page 254



winpng pajoaloid A1aBpng = soueliep

000°0 0 6000 1588 L9l 1588 [ejoL
0 0 0000 0000 10000 | dinb3 g in4 ‘syiom Jouy
0 0 0 5p50 6200 GyG0 uogeanpg [enadg
,,,,,, 10 0 0 |86k} Hs0 864} . Sloouos Aiepuodag
0 0 0 0000 0 S} YNOA AUNLILO?)
0 0 0 £8¢9 67,0 £9€°9 UORES|LIBPO $10040g
0 0 0 1190 7440 LI90 5|05 el
0 0 0 P00 $00°0 500 jeisuag) - uojieanpy
w3 % w3 wg w3 w3
Jang
19 Adld abey, J(1apun) wWnpngo g 1abpng
sjuswwen palinbay uoyoy 92UBHEA JO 85nEY aouelep | souepep | saueypep | pasfold | jemoy jejol eaty swweiboiyd

(3u09) g XION3ddY

¥ Uuol - 81/, 102 Butiojiuop Jebpng feydes

HLNOA 8 NOILYONA3

Page 255



wnyng payosfold A jebpng = aouelep

0000 0 {Losy) adl 8y0°0 1N i}

0 0 000°0 0010 5200 0040 $8IIBS SURIP|IYD
"9seyd UoRONASU0Y
ay} urAe|ap & 0} peay [im YolymAprs
B61/8107 0 WISZL L] Auqises) ot Buimojjo) pessasse Buieq

40 Buipury show o} ferciddesenbey| 1S st le1ep ays oypeds - premiod Aued! o (v8) (Gz01) 0280 0 5907 Ayngesiq Buiues
saluow juelb pun4 aien

10 80UBJRY WOY paonpoiul 8g o) Buipun gleipauuay; a1 aimpuadxa [enpisay| ¢ o0 Y200 ez00 0 aouBLIOUad 9 sdlysiauley

w3 % wy w3 w3 w3
18nQ
i Aslg abey, J+apun) wnpng dxg 18fpng
SjusUIWon pasinbay uonay ajueliep Jo asnen saueliep | esueuep | eoueuep | pajasiold |enjoy |eol ealy awuwelboiyd

(u09) g XION3ddY

¥ UBUO - 81/21.07 Buriojuop jebpng jeyde)

3dVI vI008

Page 256



wingng pajosiold A ebpng = asueuep

0000 0 0000 oS 1560 yp0'e feiol

JusLWanold wjemausy
0 0 0000 9.8} L1570 9.E'L J0j98G 8jeAlid
0 0 0000 BSE 0 8ys'e BuisnoH ajqepioyy
0 0000 0000 (150°0) 0000 $898|d |qBIA 7 JUBIGIA
0 0 0000 0zio 1600 0z1o uofesauabiey ajus) umoy

w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
JaAQ
D Asld afiey, J{sapup) uingng dx3 yefipng
SUEDT pamnbay uopoy aouelieA JO 8snEn sguBlBA | BsuBMEBA | esuenep | pajosfoid | |enpy jejol paly awweiboiyd

(u09) g XIGN3ddY

v IO - 81/210Z Butiojiuopy Jebpng |eyden

3SIU4YALINT ' ALINNWINOD

Page 257



uinpnQ pajasfoid AlebBpng = soueLep

0000 (zg) (0s5'0) 805°0 9z1°0 850°} jelo}
0 0 0 0eLo 9900 0eL'0 _SoMjeRiU] mmscmx adeasumoy
0 0 0 0 0 saonag Jabuey
0 0 0 0 0 S8WBYIS jueic) Buluue|d
0 . 0 0100 9000 000 Repjo subry
0 0 0 1800 YEQD | 2800 _ sooweg Abiauz
8107 "udde 1§ Ag uoiyajdwod
104 p3INPAYIS S1WEBTOF SO A Ino[y
J0} uonEIOjR Ayl 3iqeIaw 4a8uo|
B UM paiapisuos Juiag mou ale
Aoy se spalold 304 Josaquinu e pade|ap
SEL UIN Ul SIYL 18G0I0 0] Pa|Npaydsa
UBBY SBY BUHPEIP UOISS|WANS
YL BOM (INHTD) uswaBeuepy 351y
"§I0T "UMEIN ISTE 4O auy[peap Buipuny o UO15013 {8)5e0) )y poo(4 j0 swwedold
pa1adiey ayy Aq uosidwon o) spefoid]  gumny jo uoyeWIYLD BY) Buipuad play| 3utladid o Byl UM 11y 01 sawweiolg
Bu103 uo aypads sanijag swweidolyd aq | Buipuny SINL "61/910Z O} WQES 03 teyiden 1eat g aredaid 03 peysanbas
_EES teak g dojaaap o} snunuo) J0 Buipun) anoLw o} _m>o.aafmm5vmm uBag BARY ST YS{aM - piesiog Aue)y g (%) (oog0) LECD 8100 18070 Bupssuibuzy
suOE[NBaI MHN UM
ueyd UoNIy SANS SOUBPIOI0E WY pue Bupojiuow ansusxe
ljpuey ay1iad se puel pajeunueiun) 61/810Z 0) WOSZ 03 Buimo||o} paulwialap aq o} suoloe
UG $}I0M 10} paINIas UoReIo| |y jo Bulpun) anow o) |eaosdde sanbay| |BIpwed U BINjpUsdXy - plemiod Aue)| g (001} (0sz°0) 0000 0 0520 SIS |lypue pasoln)
wz % uz urg w3 wyg
FETYS)
17 Adig afiey, Jlaspun) wnpng dxg yobipng
SUETIN ) palinbay uonoy QDUBHEA JO 9snen OUBMEBA | SOUBLEA | @dUBLEA pajosfosy remay jejo} ealy swweiboly

(09) g XIGNIddVY

p YIuol - 81/210z Buuoyuop yobpng [eyden

ANFINNOHIANT 8 ONINNV1d

Page 258



wingng pajasioid A ebpng = soueuep

000°0 4 G600 7Le9 SLLO LTS fejoL
61/8107 0y WSSO0 61/810¢2
J0 Butpuny saow o} jeacidde jsanbay anpiuslAed uogualpy - piemiod Auie) (1) {(550°0) LIE0 00070 2180 Sule Jejog
0 0 0000 Ly} (L100) | L¥6) 1ueJg Jodsuel] 207
padnbal SHIoM
papwgns| Aousbiate pue pasop Ajualing s peoy
94 0} $80In0sAI [UOHIDPE Jof PIg] ‘Uit ut pEO. LBl BY] UO Bpl|spueT) o g 0510 801'¢ 5290 956'C shemybiH
0 0000 0000 0000 000°0 Bupssuibuy
0 0 0000 0000 0000 184]0) - SRONIBG B1SEA
{d0n) auwweiboly sbueyn
0 0 0000 000t 9610 0001 SNJEICGE(|07) - SRONIBS BSEM
w3 % w3 w3 wy w3
18AQ
I rdlg afiey, J{aepun) wnyng dxg 19fipng
susWIWoY palinbay uonoy BOUBLIEA JO 8snEen souelep | esueuep | eoueuep | pejosioig jenjoy {10 ealy awweiboiy

(u09) g XIaN3AddY

¥ UUOIN - 81/£10Z Burioyiuoy Jebpng jeydes

INFOSLIFYLS ? LHOdSNVHL

Page 259



winpng pajosfoid A jebpng = soueuep

000°0 0 0000 885¢ G110 8857 jejo)
0 o 0000 0ck0 0000 0evo 4 souelar
dojansp SOLIBYIS B UMop
uselp aq o) Buipury yajew pue 9} S 0 0 0000 0010 €010 0010 sealy Aejd
;;;;;; 0 0000 0000 0000 0000 180 - uoljeansy
0 0 0000 89¢°C £L00 89¢°C S8uaQ ainsien
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
SETY)
1) Aslg abey, [(+8pup) wnpng ‘dxg yabpng
SJUBWIOY painbay uonsy 20UBLIBA JO 88NED asueliep | esuelep | souepep | pejosiond | jempoy [e10] valy swiweiboly

(3u09) g XIONIddV

¥ UIUOW - 81/2102 Bunoyuopy Jebpng eyde)

} JONVHO TVNOILYSINYOYO

Page 260



wnpnQ payoafoid A yebpng = saueuep

0000 0 0000 1681 60¢0 1581 jelol
wminojesanbail plemioj ALeo e o 4o paufiis aie sawayos
103lgns 8L 84 i uojeojie Juadsun Auy UBLM pue SE paknoul S| ainjipuadx3| 0 0 0000 6660 NN 5560 s19jSUBl] 1985y AunWiion
0 0 0000 2060 9910 2060 sBupjing sniessiuIwpy
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
JBAQ)
D Adid abey, J(sspup) winyng dxg 1abpng
SjusWLWOY pasinbay uonoy 30UBLERA JO B8NEY soueuep | aoueuep | souedep | pajosfoig jenjoy [elo) ealy swweiboid

(3u09) g XIONIddY

b UJuol - 81/£10Z Buniojuojy 1aBpng jeyden

¢ JONVHO TVNOILYSINYOYO

Page 261



uingnQ pajasioid A3abpng = aoueliep

000°0

4} BLE €96°0¢ E0L | vl ejoL
ainjipuadxa SIY} Yajew o) peonpodL 81/L102
aq fimebpng "saueyen sy pun; Ul ainyipusdxe pasessout us Bunnsal

(It Buimouiog {enUBpnid yyH Jauun4 | (£1/9102) 7 yoreg woy sbeddyg| 0 v BLZE £26'0) €951 poLL dUvHS
SO Jolepy ulpim

SpIoA U0 puadsiano punj o puadsiapur) (€) (0050) 880'9) 891, 885'9} Sjuswanoidw| SOHM

10 0 0000 0sy'0 g0 1080 Souweiboid pajessjoaty
auwweibod aup UM BIBUMBSID

181 84 0} SPIA U0 pUBdSIan0 [BJUS}Od] 0 7E 0050 26y 8960 eyl SYHOM Jofeyy

0 0 0000 0050 L0 0050 saopiag Afisug

0 0 0000 080} 8610 080} suofeldepy pajqesiq

w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
JBAQ
1) Asid afiey, J4apun) wnyno dxg | 39bpng
SjusWIWOo paiinbay uopoy a0URBLIBA JO 8snen douelBp | souenep | soueuep | pajosfold jenyoy L0 ealy suwiwelbouy

(u09) g XIONIddY

¥ Upuo - 81/.10z Buioyiuopy 19Bpng [eyden

LNNOJJV ANNIATYH ONISNOH

Page 262



wnpng pajosioid A 1abpng = aourlep

0000 [4 €90} 106°LS 6YEYL 8£8'95 [ejoy
0 4 612¢ £96°0¢ Tre 0l vl Lg Junoody anuaasy buisnoy
0000 () (951°2) 8£6'97 200y ¥60'6Z puny jounog - [Bj0L gng
0 0 0 158°) 60€0 158} z abueyp jeuonesiuebi
0 0 0 8857 §410 8892 | aBueyg Jeuogesiuebi
0 4 5600 7.9 SLL0 1129 8UBDSJRRNG ¥ Hodsuei]
0 (z8) (0s5°0) B0S0 9210 8501 Juawuoinuz g Buluueld
0 0 0 yro'g 1§60 yp0's asudisjuzg g Alunwiwo)
0 (62) (LoL1) pry0 0 Sv1'Z aie) [B100g
;;;;;; 0 0 0 1688 119} 1598 UINoA g uojeonpg
0 0 0 59L°0 0000 5900 BOUBLUIBAOY)
0 0 0 E0v'0 0 €070 $80in0sey g 8jdoad
0 0 0 0040 000°0 0010 S,8AIN9BXT JBIYD
w3 A w3 w3 wy w3
E:1%)
1P Asid abey, Hispun) wnpng dxgy jebipng
susWIWo) paiinbay uopoy 9OUBLEA JO 8snen asueiep | eoueuep | soueuep | peoeloid {enjoy 1gjo1 ealy swweiboigd

(u09) g XION3IddY

¥ UIUOR - 81/21.0Z Buriojuopy 1e6png [eyded

AUVININNS

Page 263



Page 264



Agenda Item 10

Sir y Fflint
("Elimsh.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Thursday 21st September 2017

Report Subject Workforce Information Report — Quarter 1 2017/18

Portfolio Holder Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

Report Author Senior Manager, Human Resources and Organisational
Development

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To provide Members with an update for the first quarter for 2017/18. This report
provides details of the following:

e Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

¢ Organisational Age Profile

e Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

Attendance

Performance Appraisals and Development

Resource Management (Agency Workers)

Equality and Diversity

The format of this report and the accompanying Workforce Information is intended
to focus on organisational performance and trends, with the information being
presented in a dashboard format. The dashboards are a visual presentation of
data, showing the current status and historical trends of the Council’s performance
against key performance indicators.

The report provides a brief narrative on the overall performance against a number
of indicators. A more detailed explanation is provided on an exceptional basis
where performance is falling below organisational performance indicators or where
there has been a significant movement, either upwards or downwards, in the
reported trends. The narrative will include an explanation for the movement in
trend and details of any proposed actions to improve or maintain performance.

The performance information for the whole organisation is split to show Schools
and Non-Schools data separately. The Schools data is further broken down into
Teaching and Non-Teaching.

Page 265



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Members comment on Workforce Information Report for quarter one
2017/18 to 30 June 2017.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT

1.01

Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)

The headcount and FTE figures for quarter one show an overall decrease
of 214 FTE across the Council since April, Non-schools show a decrease
of 207 FTE, and Schools show an overall decrease of 7 FTE. Within
Schools, teaching staff show a decrease of 6 FTE whereas non-teaching
staff decreased by 1 FTE. The significant reduction of FTE for quarter one
is attributable to the transfer of Facilities Services to NEWydd Catering and
Cleaning on 1 May 2017.

The headcount for Non-Schools is 3,034 and the headcount for Schools is
to 3,277 equating to 6,311. However, the overall Flintshire County Council
headcount is 6,274. The anomaly of 37 is in relation to employees who are
employed in both Schools and Non-Schools positions.

1.02

Age Profiling

Age profiling the organisation, departments and teams is an important part
of understanding the age demographics of our workforce and where we
may need to focus attention. Why do we use age profiling?

to identify work areas with a high average age

to help plan for retirements and how we will recruit or retain staff
to highlight patterns and trends across our workforce

to assist workforce planning.

Understanding our age profile supports good workforce planning, enables
the Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without
an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

1.03

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

The turnover percentage for the Council during quarter one is 7.14%. As
explained under the Headcount and Full Time Equivalent section, the
majority of this is attributable to the transfer of Facilities Services to
NEWydd Catering and Cleaning on 1 May 2017.

Page 266




1.04

Attendance

The FTE days lost for the Council during quarter one is 2.15. This is
improvement when compared to the same period in 2016/17 which
recorded 2.42 FTE days lost. This is the second consecutive quarter we
have seen an improvement in attendance, and builds upon the improved
out-turn for 2016/17 which saw Flintshire ranked the 7t highest performer
when benchmarked against other Welsh Local Authorities during 2016/17
with a total of 9.82 days lost per FTE.

1.05 | Performance Appraisals and Development

Performance Appraisals remain a high priority within the Council.
Historically, appraisal completion levels have been reported on the basis of
information (data) held in iTrent. A fundamental review of the data for
each portfolio identified the requirement to establish and apply an agreed
set of eligibility criteria so that future reporting is both meaningful and
consistent across the Council.
The following exemptions for inclusion in this performance indicator were
agreed last year, as follows:

e Schools based employees

e Relief/casual workers

e Employees on long term sick leave

e Employees on maternity leave or undertaking a career break

e Employees in their first 6 months of employment (new starters)

e Employees working a period of notice (leavers)

e Employees whose appraising manager is/has been absent for a

prolonged period
e Employees of Clwyd Theatre Cymru
e Employees engaged on a fixed term contract of less than 12
months duration
The revised annual target for completion of appraisals is 100% of eligible
employee, and as at 30 June 2017, the recorded completion rate on iTrent
against eligible employees was 66%. The details of those appraisals
scheduled to take place over the next few months and those recently
completed will be reported later in the year.
1.06 | Resource Management (Agency Workers)

The total agency spend for quarter one is £572,000, which exceeds our
target of £550,000. The largest agency spend is within Social Services
(£208,000), and the second largest spend was within Streetscene and
Transportation (£170,000). Social Services and, Streetscene and
Transportation are responsible for 66% of the overall agency spend for
quarter one.

Overall, there were 93 active agency placements on 30 June 2017.

At the time of running the report 54 placements exceeded the 12 week
Agency Worker Regulations threshold, the majority of placements, 27

Page 267




were within Streetscene and Transportation, 15 in Community and
Enterprise, 10 in Social Services, 1 in Planning and Environment, and 1 in
Education and Youth.

The Council’'s consolidated agency contract arrangements via a Managed
Agency Solution (hosted by Matrix) is due for renewal in the coming
months. A fundamental review is underway to establish the most effective
method of using what has traditionally been a complementary workforce
taking into account changes in legislation and working practices to ensure
value for money and visibility of alternative, off-contract arrangements.

1.07 | Equality and Diversity Workforce Monitoring
Workforce diversity monitoring is an important means of demonstrating,
implementing and promoting equality of opportunity.
Ongoing promotion and monitoring is carried out to gather information on
the diversity of our workforce including potential recruits as well as existing
employees. The Council collects diversity information based on current UK
equality legislation which aims to prevent discrimination on grounds of age,
disability, gender, race, sexual orientation, religion and other protected
characteristics. Information gathered can if analysed regularly, help us to
identify barriers that prevent access to employment and career
development for certain groups of people, and to develop solutions, such
as positive action plans or alternative policies and practices.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | None arising directly from this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None as the dashboard report appended to this report details existing
actual out-turns in the various measures.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None arising directly from this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix One: Dashboard — Workforce Information Report Q1 2017/18

Page 268




6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Contact Officer: Sharon Carney, Senior Manager, Human Resources and
Organisational Development.
Telephone: 01352 702139
E-mail: sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Headcount and FTE

This will provide information on the current levels of the Council’s
workforce.

Age Profiling

The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable the
Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential retirements
and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may arise. Without
an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning can be made.

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

This information will provide the awareness of trends in turnover rates
within the Council for potential measure to be put in place for high turnover
rates, if applicable.

Attendance

Attendance remains a high priority in the Council and will provide detailed
information on the areas for improvement for absence/attendance. Stage 1
and Stage 2 capability hearings are the formal stages of the Attendance
Management policy where sanctions including dismissal take place.

Performance Appraisals and Development
Reporting on performance appraisals and development will enable more
effective monitoring of potential training needs for future planning.

Resource Management
This information will include the usage of agency workers within the
Council.

Equality and Diversity Workforce Monitoring
Information will be provided to inform what measures, if any, need to be
implemented to prevent inequalities within the Council.

Page 269



mailto:sharon_carney@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATEDASHBOARD

REPORTS
(FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL) '

2017718 - QUARTER 1
(APRIL - JUNE)

|
g

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



Table of Contents

1. Flintshire County Council Cumulative Totals......ccccccereiieieiinirecieiieiiececrecrncreneecencencnnes 4

2. Non - Schools

2.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE).......cccccccteirenirecreirenniencreecrncennnens 5
2.2. Age Profile......cco ittt et et era s e e ranesanesnnsenesanennnes 6
2.3 dittendaige. ... . . . .. . o .. icoieees bitaencansraessoncnnnanessaainntasessdiihe 9
_l'j 2.4. Turnover and Stability........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirci s re s 10
2 2.5. EQUAlity aNd DiVersSity.cccceeeeeeeieniinireirecenireiieiieiiesescrocrosroseescssssserassassnscescsnns 11
:3) 2.6. Resource Management (AZENCY)...cccieuiiieniieniienirnnieennernnirencrnneesascrnsesensernne 12
N
3. Schools
3.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE)
3.1.1. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Schoois................... 13
3.1.2. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Teaching................. 14
3.1.3. Headcount and Full Time Equivalent (FTE) - Non-Teaching......... 15

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



¢/ ¢ abed

Table of Contents Cont...

3.2. Age Profile

3.2.1. Age Profile - SChOOISs......ccciieniieiiiiiiieiicrnrecrecr e reereeeeans 16

3.2.2. Age Profile - TeaChing....ccoeeueeuiieiieiiiireniincieiieiiencenceecrecrecrencencencnnns 17

3.2.3. Age Profile - NON-Teaching.........ccccceeeerieniiinnieniiecincincinncencennnes 18
3.3 Attendance

3.3.1. Attendance - SChOOIS........cccceeeiieniimiiiiieiicrirrcrecrecre e reereae 19

3.3.2. Attendance - TeAChING....ccceuiieireiieiiiiiriiiicecrecrecrerecenernenanes 20

3.3.3. Attendance - Non-Teaching.....ccccoeeueeuireiieniencreiieireecencrerencencnnenes 21
3.4 Turnover and Stability

3.4.1. Turnover and Stability - Schools.........c.ccceeiiereiiiiiceirecrceennnees 22

3.4.2. Turnover and Stability - Teaching.......c.ccceeevvereireiieiiireciecrecrannen. 23

3.4.3. Turnover and Stability - Non-Teaching.....c..cccceeueenrerererrecrncennnnes 24
3.5 Equality and Diversity

3.5.1. Equality and Diversity - SChOOISs........cccccerereieieiierrcecenrecreceecennes 25

3.5.2. Equality and Diversity - Teaching......ccccccceieeiiniiiniieiiecinicieniennnen. 26

3.5.3. Equality and Diversity - Non-Teaching......c.cccceeereererencenceecrennanees 27

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




2017/18 DASHBOARD 4
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CUMULATIVE TOTALS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT LEAVERS / TURNOVER
6;274 ' w
TOTALETE By R1a% !

. 4,827

* " AGENCY SPEND 2017/18 DAYS LOST PER FTE 2017/18

|.572,000 | , 215
TARGET2017/18ATQ1 | | TARGET2017/18ATQ1/ " |

550,000 2.25

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD

HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - NON SCHOOLS

" TOTAL HEADCOUNT

3,034

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

2,547

01/04/2017 I‘Dligrease Iof 30/06/2017 01/04/2017 DGZC(;;?:STeEof 30/06/2017
3,452 (-13.77%) 3,034 2,754 (-8.13%) 2,547
>
® HEADCOUNT AND FTE-12 MONTH TREND
3o
3500 -
3300
3100 \\4.05.0—-0 3034 —+—Headcount
2900 - 4 ~=-FTE
2700 = = = —" = . = — 555 2547
' 2500 me—=x

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017-18 DASHBOARD 6
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Chief Executives Community and Enterprise
o 0 Al g0 - 73 -
10 2 70 53 56
60 -
8 - 50 - 38
6 - :g 123
a4 - e 13 3 -
2 B ey 0 O - p—
n -- o T T T T T T T T T 1
0 . . . I l . w . . 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
g 25-34 35-44 45-49 50 - 54 55-59 60 - 64 65-69 70 - 75 75 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 75 and
D over Over
N
> |
Education and Youth Governance
= 32
60 - 52 35 -
50 A 42 20 30 T 75
40 - - - 259 2
20
30 - 17 15 - . 12 11
20 - i
10 - 2 2 2 1(5) | 2 g g
0 ... 0 T T T T T T T T T T
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over Over

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint

-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 1 2017-18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Organisational Change 1 Organisational Change 2
10
] 88 ) 9
100 10 8
80 - i
0 ’ 6
60 - 43 45 46 6 | 5
30
40 - 3
13 4 -
20 - 6
0 T T T T T T T T T 1 2 | ‘g g
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 0 .... T T T T T T ’.x
' 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75 and
U Over Over
Q
®
N, People and Resources Planning and Environment
\I
~ 56
50 41 60 -
40 o N 50 7
28 26 | -
20 25 24 40 26 25 27
30 - 19-
20 8 20 -
10 3 0 0 10 - 4 2 0 1
0 A S 0 A e A
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over Over

CYNGOR

Sir y

Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 1 2017-18 DASHBOARD 3
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Social Services Streetscene and Transportation
200 - oo '
160 *
147 ] 56
p'? 150 - 60 -
Q o
M 100 - 73 40 -
N 5
Ny 30 - 18
)m 50 - 25 20 1 '
2__ 1 10 - =
A S
0 T T 1) T Y T T T T 1 o T T T T T T T T T 1
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over Over

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 9
ATTENDANCE - NON-SCHOOLS

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/2017

30/06/2016 2 1 5 30/06/2017
2.81 ® 2.15

Improvement of 0.66

"

TOP a4 REASONS | FTE DAYS LOST BY PORTFOLIO

1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2. MUSCULOSKELETAL

3. STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING
4. INFECTIONS

b/l 9Dk

@ q,ob < mmm Portfolio Days Lost

o Target FTE (Days Lost)

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 10
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - NON SCHOOLS

LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

407 407

LEAVER REASON - Q1
2y
QD
(@]
D 300
N
0 250
-) 200
150
100
50 -
0 -
X ' 3 ;
@\"z v\\{& o (\b\’(' 6\(? *6& &?}& \"b*%A (\d &’b‘A ‘&(@ Q/’b‘\ 3
Q < > O .
06) QQQ (ao '® Q\’ Qé' \\"o (\b 40\0 'e ('\" V’o
‘(\\ '(, 'b\' ’b\ & Q‘é QO b\) (a\g, &Q, <0
> > < & & o R ® QA & o >
Q& (X N \S . C (2 <& X <
Q O > K X L2 (2 N
Q) Q\‘, 0\9 N bo (\6 0\\* <& ,;@
N o ™ o
Q < Qgp <€ <&

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 11
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - NON-SCHOOLS

GENDER BREAKDOWN ETHNICITY
ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN
MALE | FEMALE | ™7 : ‘
911 u BME
1 116 {018 WHITE - 2,112 Q ke
‘ Not Stated
g 1 NOT STATED - 911
> 1 (Bel73%) (63.22%)
D
o
= || GENDER BREAKDOWN (%) = | SEXUAL ORIENTATION
9 9 & s
miemale 1 Gay Woman/Lesbian - 14
m Male B Heterosexual/Straight - 1,194
B Not Stated - 1,733
H Other -4

Prefer Not To Say - 71

r_ §i'r y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 12
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT - AGENCY

Agency Tenure Management Q1

40 -
20 - - B Placements as ‘
" " " at 30/06/2017 |
0 T T T T T T T
=y 0-12 weeks 13-26 weeks 27-52 weeks 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5+ years
Q
«Q
(0]
I3
N
Agency/Headcount Pecentage by Portolio Q1
12.00% 10.12%
10.00%
8.00% 6.38%
6.00%
4.00% = 0 .
2.00%  0.00% 039% 078% 000% 000% 0.00% 0.56% _ 1.35% |
0.00%
Chief Executives Community and Education and Governance  Organisational Organisational People and Planningand  Social Services Streetscene and
Enterpirse Youth Change 1 Change 2 Resources Environment Transportation
(Community) (Alternative

Service Models)

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 13
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT
3,277 2,280
01/04/2017 Dfﬂoe:;slgf 30/06/2017 01/04/2017  Decreaseof 30/06/2017
3201 (-0.43%) 3,277 2,287 0.31%) 2,280
i HEADCOUNT AND FTE -12 MONTH TREND ‘
U3600

Jul-16  Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017/17 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

TOTAL HEADCOUNT

1,385

1,265

14

01/04/2017 Dgc;ggﬁeof 30/06/2017 01/04/2016 Dec;aTsEe of 30/06/2017
‘ 1,390 ('0-36%) 1’385 1,271 (_0_47%) 1,265
5
QD
N
S HEADCOUNT AND FTE-12 MONTH TREND
1500
1450
1400 1385
1350 =o—Headcount
-B-FTE

1300

1250 -
|| 1200

1265

Jul-16  Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17

v

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 15

HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

TOTAL HEADCOUNT TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

1,892 1,015

01/04/2017 Decrease of 30/06/2017
1,901

01/04/2017
1,016

Decrease of 30/06/2017

1FTE
(0.10%) 11015

9 people
(-0.48%)

1,892

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND ‘

892
——Headcount

-B-FTE

1015

Nov-1 Dec-1 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 Mav-17 Jun-17

Jul-16  Aug-1

-1 t-1

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 16
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS

900 -

800 -

700 -

600 -

500

98¢ abed

400 - ‘

300 -

200 -

100 -

16-24 25-34 35-44 45 - 49 50-54 55 -59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70-74 75 and
Over

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

/8¢ abed

500 -

450 -

400 -

350 -

300 -

250 -

200 -

150 -

100 -

50 -

111

A sy de

16-24

25-34

35-44

45 - 49 50 - 54 55 -59 60 - 64

65 - 69 70-74 75 and
Over

17

v

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 18
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

400 -

350 -

300 -

250 - ‘

200 /

150 - ‘

8g8¢ abed

100 -

50 -

16-24 25-34 35-44 45 - 49 50-54 55 -59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70-74 75 and
Over

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 19
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/17

30/06/2016 1 5 7 30/06/2017
1.93 o 1.57

Improvement of 0.36

"

TOP a4 REASONS 3 FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE ‘

5 2.41

b 9k

1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2. INFECTIONS

3. MUSCOSKELETAL
4. STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING

I School Type Days Lost
——Target FTE (Days Lost)

Primary Secondary Special Schools
Schools Schools

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 20
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (TEACHING

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/17

30/06/2016 1 1 2 30/06/2017
1.71 ® 1.12

Improvement 0.59

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

> TOP 4 REASONS |-

1. STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
2. INFECTIONS 1.11 1.14

| I School Type Days Lost
3. MUSCULOSKELETAL | —Target FTE (Days Lost)
4. STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING |

Primary Secondary Special Schools
Schools Schools

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 21
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING

"

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/17

30/06/2016
2.22

2 . 1 4 30/(;%2‘017

Improvement of 0.08

B WN !_\Lbé olE(

TOP 4 REASONS

STRESS, DEPRESSION, ANXIETY
INFECTIONS
MUSCULOSKELETAL
STOMACH, LIVER, VOMITING

FTE DAYS LOST BY SCHOOL TYPE

2.97

I School Type Days Lost
——Target FTE (Days Lost)

Primary Secondary Special Schools
Schools Schools

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 22
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS

LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

54 o4

LEAVER REASON - Q1

¢6¢ abed

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 23
w
LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18 \

15 15

LEAVER REASON - Q1

€6¢ 9bed

CYNGOX

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 24
TUBNOVER AND STABILITY - SCHOOLS ‘NON-TEACHINGI

LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2017/18

39 39

LEAVER REASON - Q1

v6¢ obed

S]ry Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 25
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS

GENDER BREAKDOWN ETHNICITY |

' BME - 2 ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%) ' |
MALE FEMALE 8 e
WHITE - 1,678 (5 . - whie
508 2’769 u Not Stated
, (15.50%) (84.50%) | . NOT STATED - 1,591
D
| il ,
N
& || GENDER BREAKDOWN (%) SEXUAL ORIENTATION
, WYY 1
Wiemale I Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1
H Male

M Heterosexual/Straight - 643
H Not Stated - 2,594

Other - 2

Prefer Not To Say - 32

ey DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD 26
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (TEACHING)

GENDER BREAKDOWN | ETHNICITY |

l BME - 2 ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)
MALE FEMALE ' A
355 1 035 WHITE - 695 093 = White
%;’ ¥y (7’4 i ' . NOT STATED - 693 b
mﬂ =t
GENDER BREAKDOWN (%) | SEXUAL ORIENTATION
B Gay Man -3
B Female ¥ Heterosexual/Straight - 234 |
® Male

Not Stated - 1,140

N Other-1

H Prefer Not To Say - 11

oy DI Y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2017/18 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS (NON-TEACHING)

GENDER BREAKDOWN

MALE FEMALE
153 1,734
(8.11%) (91.89%) |

GENDER.BREAKDOWN (%)

B Female

m Male

ETHNICITY

ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN (%)
6

| BME- 6
H BME

WHITE - 983 598

&

NOT STATED - 898

H White

Not Stated

SEXUAL ORIENTATION

M Bisexua 1-1
B Gay Man -1

1 211
i
]V/ I Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1
B Heterosexual/Straight - 409
H Not Stated - 1,454
Other-1
Prefer Not To Say - 21

.

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting Thursday 21st September 2017
Report Subject Forward Work Programme
Cabinet Member Not applicable
Report Author Democratic Services Manager
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the Chair of
the Committee be authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme
between meetings, as the need arises.

Page 299



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 | In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?

3. Are there issues of concern in performance?

4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

5. lIs it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | None as a result of this report.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Forward Work Programme

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins

Democratic Services Manager
Telephone: 01352 702320
E-mail: robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 300



mailto:robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Page 301




This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

DATE

ISSUE

O&S FOCUS / PURPOSE

REPORT FROM

Thursday 19t
October 2017
10.00 a.m.

~
a

abe

Emergency Planning Annual report
Flintshire Public Service Board and

Strategic Partnership Performance
Update

Community Endowment fund
Workforce Quarterly Report

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18

Assurance

To provide assurance and an overview of the Flintshire
Public Services Board (PSB) following the introduction of the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
work of the Board to date

Colin Evans from the Community Foundation to present the
Annual progress report

Monthly Monitoring

Neil Culff

Karen Armstrong

Karen Armstong

Sara Dulson

w Approval & Development
B Forward Work Programme Robert Robins
Thursday 16t | Fire & Rescue Service Budget Consultation Robert Robins
November Consultation
2017
10.00 a.m. Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 Monthly Budget Monitoring. Sara Dulson
Approval & Development
Forward Work Programme Robert Robins
Early Budget Consultation Meeting To review, scrutinise and comment on the budget proposals
December for 2018/19.

Page 1 of 3




Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Thursday 14t
December
2017

10.00 a.m.

Quarter 2 Council Plan 2017/18
Monitoring Report

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

The committee is invited to consider the reports, highlight
and monitor poor performance and feedback details of any
challenge to the Cabinet

Monthly Monitoring

Approval and development

Karen Armstrong

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday 18t
January 2018
10.00 a.m.

‘%J

Workforce Information Report —
Quarter 2 2017/18

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring:to provide Members with an update for the second
quarter for 2017/18

Monthly Monitoring

Approval & Development

Sharon Carney /
Andy Adams

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

yLate January
D

N

£2NC

Budget Consultation Meeting

To review, scrutinise and comment on the Budge proposals

Thursday 15"
February 2018
10.00 a.m.

Workforce Information Report —
Quarter 3 2017/18

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

Monitoring and an update for the third quarter for 2017/18.

Monthly Monitoring

Approval & Development

Sharon Carney /
Andy Adams

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Page 2 of 3




Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2017/18

Thursday 15t
March 2018
10.00 a.m.

Quarter 3 Council Plan 2017/18
Monitoring Report

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18

Forward Work Programme

That the Committee is invited to consider the Quarter 3
Council Plan Monitoring Reports, highlight and monitor poor
performance and feedback details of any challenge to the
Cabinet.

Monthly Monitoring

Approval & Development

Karen Armstrong

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday 19t | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017 / 18 | Monthly Monitoring Sara Dulson
April 2018
10.00 am
Forward work programme Approval and development Robert Robins
U
ol
«Q
D
S
O1The previous Corporate Resources O&SC had resolved at its January 2017 meeting to invite Ms Alwen Williams, the Wales director of BT

to attend a meeting and provide an update on the provision of broadband in the County. Ms Williams had previously attended a meeting of
the committee in April 2016.

Page 3 of 3




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Community Safety Partnership Annual Report (this meeting is designated as a Statutory Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee meeting)
	Enc. 1 Safer Communities Board Plan

	5 Annual Improvement Report of the Auditor General for Wales
	Enc. 1 - Annual Improvement Report 2016/17
	Enc. 2 - Executive response

	6 Wales Audit Office Study Reports
	Enc. 1 - Corporate Assessment follow-up
	Enc. 3 - Review of the effectiveness of the efficiency savings programme
	Review of the Effectiveness of the Council’s Efficiency Savings Programme – Flintshire County Council
	Summary
	Proposals for improvement
	Arrangements for planning and monitoring efficiency savings are effective, but arrangements for evaluating non-financial impact and for sharing post-project learning are under-developed
	The Council has effective arrangements for planning and monitoring the financial impact of its efficiency savings programme
	Arrangements for evaluating the non-financial impact of efficiency initiatives are not systematic, but are being strengthened
	Arrangements for capturing and sharing post-project learning are under-developed



	Enc. 4 - Executive response

	7 Council Plan 2017 - 23
	Appendix 1: Council Plan 2017-18
	Appendix 2: How achievements will be measured

	8 Procurement Strategy Action Plan
	Appendix 1 - Procurement Business Plan

	9 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4) and Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 4)
	Enc. 1 - Revenue Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Month 4)
	Enc. 2 - Capital Programme Monitoring (Month 4)

	10 Workforce Information Report Q1 2017/18
	Enc. 2 - Dashboard report for Q1 2017-18
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q1 17-18
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q1 17-18
	Dashboard_Workforce Information Q1 17-18
	Dashboard Cover Sheet Q1 -  FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Dashboard - TABLE OF CONTENTS 1
	Dashboard - TABLE OF CONTENTS 2
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - NON SCHOOLS PART 1
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - NON SCHOOLS PART 2
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - NON SCHOOLS PART 3
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - NON SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - NON-SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE 1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - SCHOOLS - TEACHING
	Dashboard - Age Profile  Q1 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Attendance Q1 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Turnover and Stability Q1 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - SCHOOLS
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - SCHOOLS TEACHING
	Dashboard - Equality and Diversity - Q1 - SCHOOLS NON TEACHING

	Dashboard - Resource Management_Agency - Q1

	Dashboard - Total Figures (Schools and Non-Schools) - Q1

	Dashboard - Headcount and FTE Q1 - SCHOOLS - NON TEACHING


	11 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)




